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MBREE

Percentage

2014 2013 Change

20145 20134 EHEol

Turnover (RMB'million) BEE(HEARE) 10,038.7 10,872.4 (7.7%)

Gross profit margin B[P 14.7% 12.5% 2.2%

Consolidated net profit (RMB'million) AHFNE(AEARY) 51.1 215 85.8%

Profit attributable to equity shareholders ADAREEEEF (AEARK) 25,6 104.4 (75.5%)

of the Company (RMB'million)

Net cash generated from operating activities ~ E&EFBEL 2 FHL (BBEARE) 85.2 549.3 (84.5%)
(RMB'milion)

Basic and diluted earnings per share BRAR B ERMARES) 0.41 1.68 (75.6%)
(RMB cents)

Proposed final dividend per share (HK cents) &R ERE (751l) 10.0 8.0 25.0%
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Corporate Culture & Mission
EEXRFEw

OPERATION PHILOSOPHY
Technology leads markets
Services Create Value

ENTERPRISE MOTTO

To do things honestly

To treat people sincerely

To understand causes and results
To unify theory and practice

CORPORATE MISSION
For the country

For the customers

For the employees

For the shareholders

MANAGEMENT CONCEPTS
Sustainable Development

Circular Improvement
Statistics Analysis
Continuous Improvement

™

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2014

R
B EIEEh
RIS EIEEE

3

HEME
HEFA
REA IR
HITE—

(o SEd
&l BIRER - REP
RET - BRI

IR
SIEI R
fEIRMUE
Gt AT

TER®

e ——

!l

C Adddddddadadaaasa



PRODUCT CONCEPTS
Service

Quality

Cost

WEALTH CONCEPTS
Wealth means responsibility

TALENT CONCEPTS
Judging people on his performance
Talent comes first

MARKETING CONCEPTS

Identify the needs of the customers
Create value for the customers
Provide best services to the customers

CULTURE CONCEPTS
Respect

Communicate
Understand

Integrate

Pursue

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES
Independent Brand

Independent Intellectual Property
Independent Marketing Network
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

N

No legacy and honesty are the basic principles of self-
cultivation. Big talents will come up with great success.

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Yuanda China
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), together with its subsidiaries (the
“Group” or “Yuanda China”), | hereby present to you the Group’s
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2014 (the “Reporting
Period”).

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2014
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group recorded a turnover of RMB10,038.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2014, a decrease of approximately 7.7% as
compared to 2013. In 2014, the Group had undertaken 189 new
projects with a total contract value of approximately RMB12,195
million, a decrease of approximately 5.0% as compared to 2013.

In respect of the domestic market, in 2014, China’s macro-economy
maintained stable development and total investment in real estate
development increased by approximately 10.5% from the year 2013
to approximately RMB9.5 trillion, dropped to around 10.0% for the
first time after staying over 20.0% for years. Among which total
investment in non-residential real estate development amounted,
to approximately RMBS3.1 trillion, representing an increase of
approximately 13.4% as compared to last year. As for the overseas
market, save for the slow recovery of the European market, major
economies such as the Middle East and Asia remained sluggish. The
business environment of the Group was faced with challenges and
opportunities.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Amid the new situation of domestic real estate market and the steady
recovery of overseas economy, the Group will continue to adhere
to the prudent operation strategy and strengthen its management
on new order, budget and cost control rather than blindly pursuing
growth in revenue and new construction project. Meanwhile, in
order to strengthen the management of export trading risk and
the recollection of receivables, the Group continued to take out
comprehensive credit insurance for export with China Export &
Credit Insurance Corporation, Liaoning Branch, which proved to be
beneficial to its “outreach” development strategy and mitigate risk
of overseas projects. Furthermore, the Group will cooperate with
the SAP Company to establish intelligent business solutions as well
as the financial and business management platforms with a view to
strengthening its capability of operation management and standards
of internal control.

The Group has benefited from those measures adopted since 2013
and managed to turn losses to gains, while projects with low profit
margin had basically been completed, new orders of higher quality
will gradually contribute more profit. The Group’s profitability will thus
have a steady rise. Moreover, following the expansion of economic
cooperation of “One Belt and One Road” entered into between China
and countries in Asia and the Pacific periphery, the Group, leveraging
on its own advantages, will seize the opportunities arising from the
higher demand for infrastructure construction. Amid the new market
trend, the Group will gradually expand construction investments in
the overseas market in the coming three to five years, considering
lease of plants, production and processing in overseas areas based
on the market demand. The Group will also await opportunities to
enhance its profitability and global influence by investing in new
businesses and extending the production chain. The Group will
make every effort to create more values for its shareholders.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2014
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On behalf of the Board, | hereby expressed my heartfelt appreciation
to all shareholders and partners who care and support Yuanda
China and all employees of the Group who made great efforts and
contribution. The Group will continue to implement the operational
philosophy of “Technology leads the market, Services create value”
and upholds the corporate spirit of “To do things honestly, To treat
people sincerely, To understand causes and results, To unify theory
and practice”. With these in mind, the Group will modernize its
workforce to talent who will act responsibly, in good faith and repay
the society. Based on this, the Group will prudently operate, pioneer
and innovate so as to bring sound results for seniors and friends who
have been giving selfless support to Yuanda and best investment
returns for shareholders as a whole.

Kang Baohua
Chairman

31 March 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a provider of one-stop integrated curtain wall
solutions covering the design of curtain wall systems, procurement
of materials, fabrication and assembly of curtain wall products,
performance testing, installation of products at construction
sites and after-sales services. End users of the Group’s curtain
wall solutions are mainly located in domestic and overseas non-
residential and infrastructure development areas, such as office
buildings of government authorities or headquarters of leading
companies from various industries, hotels, shopping centers,
convention, cultural and art centers, stadiums, exhibition halls,
airports, train stations, hospitals and universities.

The Company believes that it is one of the world leading curtain
wall providers with a comprehensive product portfolio. The Group’s
integrated elements of new materials, new technology, alternative
energy, environmental protection and energy conservation into
curtain wall products through much sophisticated research and
development (“R&D”), design, production and installation works
to further develop different types of curtain wall products and be
committed to realizing the idea of “Low carbon, Function, Safety”
in curtain wall products. Such products include double-skin,
photovoltaic, ecologically friendly, video and membrane structure
types of curtain walls. The Group also provides ancillary products to
complement its curtain wall systems, including skylights, metal roofs,
canopy systems, shading systems, balustrade and breast board
systems, fire door, roll-up door and energy-saving aluminum alloy
doors and windows.

Newly-awarded Projects (excluding VAT)

During the year 2014, the Group was awarded with 189 new projects
with an aggregate amount of approximately RMB12,195 million,
representing a decline of approximately RMB641 million or 5.0% as
compared to 2013. The main reason for the decline was that, in light
of the declining growth rate of investment in real estate and fierce
competition in markets, the Group took a more prudent approach in
its operation and has foregone bidding for those projects with less
favourable payment terms and an expected lower profit margin in
order to ensure the quality of orders.
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B slE R RREEE M - e
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XEZOEEHBWAKE  URBEE -
HAEBMTL 83 XMt Efff
Do BES RESE - 5 NE-
Bt XBFEA - BINFHEEMER

BPRERMREEEEEMEEGNE
RALHERESD - HPIBERRERM
RBTT B R B ([ 3 ) « RAEH - £E -
RRRE - BRBERENMH - TR
oy~ FHEEIR - IRIR - EIREH R —RB1L
MEE  E—SHESEREBER X
WRERFEERD MK - e - 22
- ZFEEMBREERE  LNR=E
% ARRE GRS ENEEERE
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Em BRXELE 2BE@ REXR
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) EEOE(E)
Newly-awarded Projects (excluding VAT) (continued) HAZETR(TSER) (&)
2014 2013
2014 20134
Number Number
of projects RMB million of projects RMB million

HEBE ARWHER HE#E ARBBEET

14

Domestic A 163 7,980 135 8,943
Overseas BN 26 4,215 29 3,893
Total S5 189 12,195 164 12,836

Details of the certain landmark projects obtained by the Group in REB 2014 FEFEFENSE THFHIER

2014 are as follows: N
Domestic: AIER :
Category of Approximate
Project name project utilization contract value
HA &R HE RRER BHREENR
RMB million
AREBET
Eton Residence Commercial Complex 228.8
EFIRFL [EESN=y
Suzhou Centre Financial Center 21548
#RM L o=tV
Shenzhen Bay Ecological Park Industrial Park 208.8
Y E A REE] EXE
Guangzhou Metro Governmental Authority 177.5
JE& 3 85 HTHE
Changsha Meixi Lake Art Centre Cultural and Art Centre 157.9
ROZ A ALl O
Tianjin 03-15 land parcel Governmental Authority 151.9
KE03-15Hb38 BURT#
Hangzhou Gaode Office 144.9
mM =R N
Beijing C9 land parcel Commercial Complex 141.5
1t CO b iR EE3SS=
Shanxi International Financial Centre Commercial Complex 138.0
LI 75 B B R O [EE3 S
Guangtian 108 land parcel Office 135.9
&M 108 ik /N

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2014



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Newly-awarded Projects (excluding VAT) (continued)

Overseas:

Project name

HE B8

The British Black Apartment
ERMERAE

No. 1 William Street, Australia
1SRERIEAE - BAAM T
Kuwait Administrative Centre
R T O

Sri Lanka Waterfront Resort
HEHERESE RN

Kuwait Al Shaya
AL

Baku New Moon Palace, Azerbaijan
BEHAS @ MEFE
Hardy Building, Italy
BEAFIG@BAE

Four Seasons Hotel in Malaysia
B RS R S

Indonesia SCBD Lot10

E[JJE SCBD Lot10

Newington Apartment, the UK
ERAEREAE

Area 8, Indonesia

HRENE

EBEmEE)

A TR (TEEER)(E)

AR -

Category of
project utilization

HE ABER

Apartment

yNCS

Commercial Complex
[EE3 S
Governmental Authority
BT

Resort

ERAT

Hotel

BIE

Commercial Complex
[GE3 S
Commercial Complex
HEAR

Hotel

BIE

Office

N -

Apartment

yNCS

Office

N

Approximate
contract value

BREENR
RMB million
ARKRET
444.6

238.3

232.7

226.2

211.2

210.7

198.5

161.7

160.0

1568.0

144.4

BRPBERARAT =% - PUEER
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) ¥KOEE)
Backlog AELER

As at 31 December 2014, the remaining contract value of backlog M2014FE12 4310 » REBARTZTIAMR
amounted to approximately RMB22,209 million (31 December 2013: SEEA) A ANREE22 200F &It (2013F12

approximately RMB20,228 million). A318 : #HAR¥ 20,228 BETT) °
2014 2013
20145 20134
Remaining contract value Remaining contract value
BTEEEER BRTEREE
Number Number
of projects RMB’million of projects RMB’million
HEHE AR¥ HEHE AR
(B&x) (B&T)
Domestic Al 396 13,525 365 13,455
Overseas T 87 8,684 92 6,773
Total &t 483 22,209 457 20,228
Major technology achievements and awards FEREKR R B HRIE

£0 &

The Group adopts the strategy of “energy saving, information REBEA [EigERIR « E21E - Baefk

technology, intelligent, new technology, new materials” as its future RN~ MR AARIREITEE R A (A

technical development direction, and pioneers the development BEREEEHELCRNRMTEKER
trend of the industry based on its technical expertise and extensive SIBITHEMRRERBE - K2014F R
research and development experience. In 2014, the Group obtained SEFTEEREEISIE - R EEER
35 patents, including 21 patents for invention and 14 patents for 2118 - ERFAERN 1418 - BE20145F
utility model. The total number of patents owned by the Group was 12A318 - AEEZ5HEEFH)9281F -

928 as at 31 December 2014.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Amid the new situation of domestic real estate market and the steady
recovery of overseas economy, the Group will continue to adhere
to the prudent operation strategy and strengthen its management
on new order, budget and cost control rather than blindly pursuing
growth in revenue and new construction project. Meanwhile, in order
to manage export risk and for the recollection of receivables, the
Group continued to take out comprehensive credit insurance for
export with China Export & Credit Insurance Corporation, Liaoning
Branch, which proved to be beneficial to its “outreach” development
strategy and mitigate risk of overseas projects. Furthermore, the
Group will cooperate with the SAP Company to develop intelligent
business solutions as well as the financial and business management
platforms with a view to strengthening its capability of operation
management and standards of internal control.

The Group benefits from those measures adopted since 2013 to turn
losses to gains, while projects with low profit margin had basically
completed and new projects of higher quality will gradually contribute
more profit, the Group’s profitability will have a steady rise. Moreover,
following the expansion of economic cooperation of “One Belt
and One Road” entered into between China and Asian and Pacific
countries, the Group, leveraging on its own advantages, will seize
the opportunities arising from the higher demand for construction of
infrastructure facilities. Amid the new market trend, the Group will
gradually expand the investments in overseas market in the coming
three to five years by considering lease of plants, production and
processing in overseas areas, based on the market demand. The
Group will also seek for opportunities to enhance its profitability and
global influence by investing in new businesses and extending the
production chain. The Group will make every effort to create more
values to its shareholders.

RBRE

T 1 B A 55 1t 2 T 3 O 3 R TE A SR
BRIEHOKNBE  AEBEENT
REBEENKSLERE - MR AKITE
B RIEREEEMAAES - ~E
BBSKE KW AT AR TI2MIE &K
R AEEASTHNAREELOESE
A E U BR SR B - B2 ep B O (S AR
ROREEDRBETEE AEAAR
SERHEFUEAEARERE - B
MRAEBRERFERENERK
B - FREAGINER B - BN AEE
B ESAPA B AE - B AT LR
RITEMBBEREBEEFE  EBK
B hnog AR 2B TR B N AN ERIEHIKF o

2013 F R E RN R — R 51 B h AR
R RARRRMENEIREEEER
I FAKNRSEENESER
TERMEZNE MBS RAEER
MBES - A B - BEZE B TN AR
ARABERN &3] REAIER
B BELAEFESERREEZRFLR &
BHERFBESNELLEEP - B
HHOMISEBE - RKI-5FAEERE
FRABINTIZORA - RIEMIHHFR
ZEABIIMUBERERMEL ETEEM
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover

For 2014, the Group’s turnover was approximately RMB10,038.7
million (2013: approximately RMB10,872.4 million), representing a
decrease of approximately RMB833.7 million or 7.7% as compared
to last year. Among the turnover:

1. The turnover from domestic market decreased by
approximately RMB542.5 million or 6.4% from last year to
approximately RMB7,909.6 million (2013: approximately
RMB8,452.1 million), contributing to approximately 78.8% of
the total turnover of the Group.

2.  The turnover from overseas market decreased by
approximately RMB291.2 million or 12.0% from last year
to approximately RMB2,129.1 million (2013: approximately
RMB2,420.3 million), contributing to approximately 21.2% of
the total turnover of the Group.

The changes were primarily due to the Group’s more prudent market
strategy and the slowing growth of real estate industry in 2014.

Cost of sales

In 2014, the Group’s cost of sales decreased by approximately
RMB954.1 million or 10.0% from last year to approximately
RMB8,558.1 million (2013: approximately RMB9,512.2 million).
Among the sum, cost of materials, installation costs and processing
fee decreased by 10.2%, 10.6% and 17.5% as compared to last
year respectively, mainly due to the Group’s efforts in strengthening
management of project budget to avoid the situation that actual cost
exceeds the budget cost.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Gross profit and gross profit margin

In 2014, the Group’s gross profit increased by approximately
RMB120.3 million or 8.8% from 2013 to approximately RMB1,480.6
million (2013: approximately RMB1,360.3 million).

In 2014, the Group’s domestic gross profit margin decreased by
approximately 1.9% from last year to 16.4% (2013: 18.3%), but
representing an increase of 1.8% from the first half of 2014. Given
the tightening policy in the domestic credit market and market
competition, the gross profit of certain domestic projects was
adversely affected.

In 2014, the Group’s overseas gross profit margin increased by
approximately 16.2% from last year to 8.6% (2013: -7.6%). Given
the stronger cost control and changes in local markets, gross profit
margin of overseas markets, save for Americas and Asia-Pacific,
improved as compared to last year, especially Europe and Australia.

Other revenue

In 2014, the Group’s other revenue decreased by approximately
RMB4.3 million or 11.7% from last year to approximately RMB32.3
million (2013: approximately RMB36.6 million). This was mainly due
to the decrease in government subsidy of approximately RMB5.2
million.

Other net (loss)/income

Other net (loss)/income primarily comprises net income from
provision of repairs and maintenance services, sale of raw materials
and net gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
and land use rights.

In 2014, the Group’s other net (loss)/income decreased by
approximately RMB9.4 million from last year to a net loss of RMBO0.8
million (2013: net income of approximately RMB8.6 million). This was
mainly due to the net loss on disposal of fixed assets and land use
rights of the Group in 2014.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Selling expenses

In 2014, the Group’s selling expenses decreased by approximately
RMB1.3 million or 0.7% from last year to approximately RMB175.5
million (2013: approximately RMB176.8 million).

In 2014, selling expenses accounted for 1.7% of the operating
revenue of the Group (2013: 1.6%).

Administrative expenses

In 2014, the administrative expenses increased by RMB4.7 million
or 0.5% from last year to approximately RMB1,040.7 million (2013:
approximately RMB1,036.0 million). This was mainly due to the
fact that the Group continued adhering to a principle of prudent
operation and the bad debt provision for receivables during the year
2014 increased by approximately RMB35.3 million as compared to
last year to approximately RMB119.0 million. However, it had been
partially offset by the cost control of other expenses which resulted
in the slight increase in the administrative expenses as compared to
last year.

In 2014, administrative expenses accounted for 10.4% of the
operating revenue of the Group (2013: 9.5%).

Finance costs

In 2014, finance costs increased by approximately RMB74.4 million
or 46.5% as compared to last year to approximately RMB234.4
million (2013: approximately RMB160.0 million). This was mainly due
to increase in interest expenses resulting from increase in bank loans
and the foreign exchange loss arising from the depreciation in GBP,
Swiss Francs and others against RMB.

In 2014, finance costs accounted for 2.3% of the operating revenue
of the Group (2013: 1.5%).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Income tax

In 2014, the Group’s income tax increased by approximately
RMB5.3 million or 103.9% from last year to approximately RMB10.4
million (2013: approximately RMB5.1 million).

The Group’s effective tax rate increased from 15.7% in 2013 to
16.9% in 2014.

Consolidated net profit

In 2014, the consolidated net profit of the Group increased by
approximately RMB 23.6 million or 85.8% as compared to last year
to approximately RMB51.1 million (2013: approximately RMB 27.5
million). It was mainly due to:

(@  most projects contracted with lower profit margin in the past
have been completed;

(b)  more customers confirmed their supplemental orders and
contract value in time which created more room for the
Group’s profit growth; and

(c) the measures adopted by the Group since 2013 aiming to
turn loss into profit achieved satisfactory results, including
measures for stricter production cost control, enhanced
budget management, which have contributed to the Group’s
recovery from loss during the year.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

In 2014, the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
decreased by approximately RMB78.8 million or 75.5% from
last year to approximately RMB25.6 million (2013: approximately
RMB104.4 million), mainly due to some subsidiaries with non-
controlling interest turned from significant loss in 2013 into profit in
2014.

The basic and diluted earnings per share decreased by
approximately RMB1.27 cents or 75.6% from last year to
approximately RMBO0.41 cents (2013: approximately RMB1.68
cents).

Net current assets and financial resources

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s net current assets
were approximately RMB2,283.0 million (31 December 2013:
approximately RMB2,677.2 million).

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately RMB2,962.5 million (31 December
2013: approximately RMB3,273.8 million), mainly denominated in
RMB, AUD, British Pound Sterling and USD.

Bank loans and gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s total bank loans amounted
to approximately RMB3,320.0 million (31 December 2013:
approximately RMB3,063.2 million). All of the bank loans as at 31
December 2014 were denominated in RMB and repayable within
one year.

The Group’s gearing ratio (calculated by total loans divided by total
equity) was 87.6% (31 December 2013: 74.6%). The increase was
due to the increase in bank loans of the Group in 2014 and the
decrease in total equity arising from the dividends approved in 2014.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Turnover days of receivables/trade and bills payables/inventory

BrISERE (45 )

EWIERESRNRARENRE 7
5 AEH

Turnover days (day) 2014 2013
A (R ) 2014 & 20134
Receivables (note 1) FEUER R (F3E1) 257 219
Trade and bills payables (note 2) B I RNR R ENER(ME2) 253 208
Inventory (note 3) F&(KI3E3) 37 34
Notes:— BosE : —

1.  The calculation of the receivables turnover days is based on the 1. EWRERZVFEH RS EEERRN

average amount of trade and bills receivables net of provision and
net contract work receivables (gross amount due from customers
for contract work less gross amount due to customers for contract
work net of provision) as at the beginning and ending of the
relevant period divided by total turnover of the relevant period and
multiplied by 365 days.

2. The calculation of turnover days of trade and bills payables is
based on the average amount of trade and bills payables as at the
beginning and ending of the relevant period divided by cost of raw
materials and installation cost of the relevant period and multiplied
by 365 days.

3. The calculation of inventory turnover days is based on the average
amount of inventory as at the beginning and ending of the relevant
period (net of provision) divided by cost of raw materials of the
relevant period and multiplied by 365 days.

During the Reporting Period, the receivables turnover days were 257
days (2013: 219 days), an increase of 38 days, which was mainly
due to the fact that amidst the credit crunch of the financial market,
payment schedule of owners was delayed.

During the Reporting Period, the trade and bill payables turnover
days were 253 days (2013: 208 days), an increase of 45 days, which
was mainly due to the Group’s working capital management.

During the Reporting Period, the net operating cash flow amounted
to approximately RMB85.2 million (2013: approximately RMB549.3
million), a decrease of approximately RBMB464.1 million, which was
mainly due to the fact that amidst the credit crunch of the financial
market, payment schedule of owners was delayed.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Inventory and inventory turnover days

The Group’s inventories primarily consist of materials used in
fabrication of curtain wall products, including extrusions aluminum,
glass, steel and sealant.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s inventory amounted to
approximately RMB446.1 million (31 December 2013: approximately
RMB417.3 million). During the Reporting Period, the inventory
turnover days were 37 days (2013: 34 days), an increase of 3 days.

Capital expenditure

In 2014, the Group’s payment for capital expenditure amounted
to approximately RMB47.7 million (2013: approximately RMB87.6
million), which was mainly related to the payment on acquiring land,
construction of plant and purchase of equipment.

Foreign exchange risk

The overseas projects of the Group were mainly dominated in USD,
Euro, GBP, AUD and Swiss Francs. To hedge any foreign exchange
risks, the Group has entered into forward foreign exchange contracts
which hedge the forecast transactions and monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies of the Group with the
net fair value of approximately RMBO.1 million and approximately
RMB44.8 million, respectively. The Group ensures that net exposure
to currency risk arising from assets and liabilities maintained at an
acceptable level.

Contingent liabilities

Details of the Group’s contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2014
are set out in Note 33 to the Financial Statements.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Charge on assets

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s bank loans of approximately
RMB530.0 million were secured by property, plant and
equipment and land use rights with an aggregate carrying value of
approximately RMB555.6 million.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other charge on its
assets as at 31 December 2014.

Material Acquisitions and disposals

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any material
acquisitions and disposals of its subsidiaries and associated
companies.

Significant Investments

The Group did not make any significant investments during the
Reporting Period.

Future Plans for Significant Investments or Capital Assets

The Group does not have any future plans for significant investments
or capital assets as at the date of this annual report.

Global offering and use of proceeds

In May 2011, the Company conducted a global offering (the “Global
Offering”) through which 1,708,734,000 new ordinary shares were
offered at a price of HK$1.50 per share. Net proceeds raised by
the Company were approximately HK$2,402,947,000. The ordinary
shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 17 May 2011.

As stated in the Company’s prospectus dated 20 April 2011 and the
supplementary prospectus dated 5 May 2011 (the “Prospectus”),
the Group intended to use the proceeds from the Global Offering for
expansion of its production capacity, repayment of its existing debts,
investment in research and development, expansion of its sales and
marketing network.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Global offering and use of proceeds (continued)

As at 31 December 2014, an accumulated amount of approximately
HK$1,832 million of proceeds from the Global Offering (of which
expansion of production capacity: HK$389 million; repayment of
bank loans (mainly comprised the bridge loan of Standard Chartered
Bank): HK$962 million; expenses in research and development:
HK$261 million; and expansion of its sales and marketing network:
HK$220 million) was utilized in accordance with the intended
use as stated in the Prospectus. It is intended that the remaining
proceeds of approximately HK$570 million will be used in the
future in accordance with the proposed allocation as stated in the
Prospectus.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had 9,445 full-time employees
in total (31 December 2013: 11,357). The related employees’ costs
for the Reporting Period (including directors’ emoluments) amounted
to approximately RMB1,083.1 million (2013: approximately
RMB1,092.0 million). The Group has sound policies of management
incentives and competitive remuneration, which align with the
interests of management, employees and shareholders’ alike.
The Group sets its remuneration policy with reference to the
prevailing market conditions and the performance of the individuals
concerned, subject to review from time to time. The components
of the remuneration package consist of basic salary, allowances,
fringe benefits including medical insurance and contributions to
pension funds, as well as incentives like discretionary bonus and
share options. The Group has also adopted a share option scheme
and a share award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants, including the Directors, and full-
time or part-time employee of the Group. Details of the share option
scheme and share award scheme will be available in the annual
report of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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Directors and Senior Management
EERSHREEAER

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Kang Baohua (EEE %), aged 61, is the founder and chairman
of the Group, and was appointed as an Executive Director on
February 26, 2010. Mr. Kang is the vice president of the Liaoning
Chamber of Commerce (EZE &S ). Graduated from Liaoning
University (& %8 X 22) with a diploma in politics in 1984, Mr. Kang has
over 21 years of experience in the curtain wall industry and has been
responsible for the overall management and strategic development
of the Group since 1992. Prior to founding the Group, Mr. Kang was
an executive director of Shenyang Strong Wind Group Company
(BF5 58 E%EE A F]). Since the establishment of the Company,
Mr. Kang has been involved in the management of the Company,
including business development, finance and corporate strategy
formulation. Mr. Kang is also a director of various other subsidiaries
of the Group.

Mr. Tian Shouliang (H=FR ), aged 51, is the chief executive
officer of the Group and was appointed as an Executive Director
on December 18, 2010. Mr. Tian joined the Group in 1994 and has
over 20 years of experience in the curtain wall industry. From 1995
to 1997, Mr. Tian was the vice general manager in production of
Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium Industry Engineering Co., Ltd. (&zi&
KEnZETIEAR A7) (“Shenyang Yuanda®), where he was involved
in curtain wall product design and managed curtain wall production
systems. From 1997 to 2008, he was the vice President of Shenyang
Yuanda Aluminium Industry Group Ltd. ((BF5 iz KR EBARE A
A)) (“Yuanda Group”) where he was in charge of operations, finance
and human resources management activities. Since 2008, Mr. Tian
has been the president and a director of Shenyang Yuanda, leading
its business expansions and product development plans. Mr. Tian
graduated from Harbin Industrial University (*5 88 L2 AE) in
1986 with a bachelor’'s degree in engineering specializing in the
study of heat turbines.
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EERENEEAE

DIRECTORS (continued)
Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Guo Zhongshan (28 1), aged 50, was appointed as an
Executive Director on December 18, 2010. Mr. Guo joined the
Group in 1994 and has over 20 years of experience in the curtain
wall industry. From 1994 to 1996, Mr. Guo was the chief engineer
of Shenyang Yuanda, responsible for engineering design works
related to curtain wall products. From 1996 to 1997, Mr. Guo has
been the vice president of Shenyang Yuanda, responsible for market
development in the PRC. Since 1997, Mr. Guo has been the vice
president of Shenyang Yuanda. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Guo
was the technical director of Shenyang Strong Wind Company
(BFZ58R A R]) from 1992 to 1993. Mr. Guo graduated from
Shenyang Aviation Industrial College (ERFANZE T2 EF7) with
a bachelor’s degree in mechanical engineering in 1986 and from
Dalian Polytechnic University (A IE T KE2) with a master’s degree
in mechanical engineering in 1992.

Mr. Wang Yijun (E&%), aged 46, is the vice president of the
Group, managing director of the Group’s international operations
and was appointed as an executive Director on December 18,
2010. Mr. Wang joined the Group since 1993 and has more than 21
years of experience in the curtain wall industry. From 1993 to 1998,
Mr. Wang held various managerial positions in Shenyang Yuanda
where he managed engineering design and technology works.
In 1999, Mr. Wang was the technical manager of the Shanghai
branch of Shenyang Yuanda. Since 2000, Mr. Wang has been
the general manager of the international operations of Shenyang
Yuanda, responsible for its business in overseas markets. Mr. Wang
graduated from Shenyang Aviation Industrial College (j&F5 2=
%27 ) with a bachelor’s degree in mechanical engineering and
design in 1992. Mr. Wang is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Group.
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Directors and Senior Management
EERSHREEAER

DIRECTORS (continued)
Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Wang Lihui (E37¥&), aged 45, was appointed as the chief
financial officer of the Company on 20 June 2012 and was appointed
as an Executive Director on December 18, 2010. Mr. Wang joined
the Group in 1996 and has more than 21 years of experience in
accounting and finance. Mr. Wang has experience in dealing with
internal control, risk management, corporate finance and taxation
matters and is responsible for the overall management of the
Group’s financial operations. He has been involved in formulating
the Group’s budgets, remuneration and incentive schemes. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Wang was an accountant in Northeast (No.
6) Pharmaceutical Manufacturer (SR1E55 7SR %) from 1992 to
1994 and the finance director of Shenyang Wumei Shopping Centre
(BE5HFEmE) from 1995 to 1996. From 1996 to 2004, Mr. Wang
was the financial manager of Shenyang Yuanda. Since 2004, Mr.
Wang has been the chief accountant of Yuanda Group. Mr. Wang
graduated from Anhui Trade and Finance College (& &84 & £653 )
with a bachelor’s degree in accounting in 1992. Mr. Wang is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Zhang Lei (&%), aged 42, since February 2013, he acted
as vice President of Shenyang Yuanda, one of the subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in July 2002 and had
over 12 years of experience in curtain wall industry. Before joining
the Group, from 1994 to 2000, Mr. Zhang held various managerial
positions in Northeast Refractory Plant, including vice director in
charge of production and equipment and director of equipment
department in No.4 branch of Northeast Refractory Plant. From 2001
to 2002, Mr. Zhang acted as a management intern in Japanese YKK
company.From 2002 to 2005, Mr.Zhang held various key positions
including quality control and technology minister in Northeast
Branch of Shenyang Yuanda. He acted as a designer in Zhongdong
Branch of Shenyang Yuanda from 2005 to 2006. From 2006 to
2008, he acted as chief designer in Dubai Branch of Shenyang
Yuanda, responsible for the Group’s ACC44 residential buildings,
imperial buildings and commercial bay administration building
and other projects. From 2008 to 2012, Mr. Zhang held various
positions in Shenyang Yuanda, including assistant to chief engineer
in International Operation of Shenyang Yuanda, deputy director of
International Curtain Wall Manufacturer under Shenyang Yuangda,
factory controller and factory president of Shenyang Yuanda. Mr.
Zhang graduated from Shenyang Electrical Industrial School with a
diploma in electrical and mechanical engineering in 1994.
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Directors and Senior Management
EERENEEAE

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (EMEE]), aged 52, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 12 April 2011. Mr. Poon
obtained a Master’s degree in international accounting, a Bachelor’s
degree in laws and a Bachelor’'s degree in business studies. He
was awarded a postgraduate diploma in laws by the University of
London. He is a fellow member and an associate instructor of the
Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute, a fellow of The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries (“HKICS”) and The Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. He is also a member
of the Technical Consultation Panel and Professional Development
Committee of HKICS. He now serves as an executive director, vice-
president and company secretary of Huabao International Holdings
Limited. Mr. Poon has over 25 years of experience in regulatory
affairs, investment banking and listed company management.
Currently, he is also an independent non-executive director of the
following companies: Sunac China Holdings Limited (Hong Kong
stock code: 1918), Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd.
(Hong Kong stock code: 292) and Tonly Electronics Holdings Limited
(Hong Kong stock code: 1249). He retired from his position as an
independent non-executive director in China Tianrui Group Cement
Company Limited, Ningbo Port Company Limited and Guangzhou
Shipyard International Company Limited upon expiry of his term of
office in December 2012 and May 2014 for the latter two companies,
respectively.

Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond (#Z#8), aged 45, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 12 April, 2011. Mr.
Woo is a non-executive director of IRC Limited (Hong Kong stock
code: 1029). Mr. Woo has over 20 years of experience in the
accounting and financial services industry. He began his career as
a certified accountant at Arthur Andersen & Co where he qualified.
Subsequently, he was employed in senior positions as an investment
banker at ING, CITIC Securities and Credit Suisse. Mr. Woo holds
a Bachelor of Commerce degree. He is a member of both the
Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants and a fellow of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2014

EE(E)
BYIFATES

BEREEEE 525 N2011F4H12
BEZAEABUIERNTES - FLER
B Sr8EL FBB L REESE
gl IEF”IMﬁKHW%iﬂﬁﬁ
EXR - BEBBEFRIRES R
E&ﬁ%ﬁ%%\E%ﬁHWEﬂﬁﬁ
FELE  RERSHFATMWERITEHA
BERNEERE T BEENRBEBRET
MEAGHREMHRNEKE REFE
BRZEEZE  HAESTERERE
RARIMITES  BIABRAAIWE -
%%E#ﬁﬁ$% BERITEETA
RIEESEEA B2 FAEE - RITE
FELATARIZBYIEHITES : @l E
ERER AR (FBRHARIR:1918) - &
ERLZREVREHDBRAR(FBRGD
KRR 292) KRB HEBEFIZERBRAR(H
R REE © 1249) » FRPEIRInEE
KEBRAT - BEERNBERAAR
FMF%I%%@E@“ﬂM%Z#@
TEEZ—BHDRIR2012412 A %2014
¢5H0&ﬁﬁwﬁﬁﬁﬁo

\

HRBAEE - 4555 * N2011F4H128
BEFRRBIIFNITES - AEERE
IREERAR(FEARMGRIE - 1029)
WIERITES - BBEER S R SRR
BITEEBB20F LR - tATERBS
TEESHAEBMEBRRES A
FREEHE  WHRZESETAIEHATER
BEEBERE BE RYREHEEERT
(ING) R EEL BT EENRERTT
HER - AEERERERLBM - &
RARNEFTRMAEEE  URABES
FHRIAREREE o



Directors and Senior Management
EERSHREEAER

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny (&), aged 42, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 12 April 2011. Mr.
Pang is a member of each of the audit committee, nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Pang
is the managing partner of Messrs. Pang & Co., in association with
Loeb & Loeb LLP. Between 1997 and 2009, Mr. Pang practiced
as a lawyer with several international law firms in Hong Kong and
Sydney. Mr. Pang received his bachelor’s degree in laws (honors)
from Bond University, Australia, in 1996. In 1997, Mr. Pang obtained
his Graduate Diploma in Legal Practice and master’s degree in laws
from The College of Law, Sydney and the University of New South
Wales, Australia, respectively. He has been admitted as a legal
practitioner of the Supreme Court of New South Wales, Australia
since 1997 and as a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong since
2009. He is a member of both the Law Society of New South
Wales, Australia and the Law Society of Hong Kong. Currently,
Mr. Pang is also an independent non-executive Director of the
following companies: China Regenerative Medicine International
Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 8158) and Goldenmars Technology
Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 8036).

Save as otherwise disclosed, there was no change to any
information required to be disclosed in relation to any Director
pursuant to Rule 13.51(2)(a) to () and (g) of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) during the year ended 31 December 2014. All
Directors are not involved in any matters concerning Rule 13.51(2)(h)
to (v) of the Listing Rules.
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Directors and Senior Management
EERENEEAE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yu Leung Fai, Philip (R%#&), aged 37, was appointed
as the company secretary and authorized representative of
the Company on 20 June 2012 and has over 10 years of
experience in corporate services field. He was an auditor of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from 2000 to 2001. Since 2001, Mr.
Yu has been the director of the Corporate and China Services
Division of Fung, Yu & Co. CPA Limited. Mr. Yu has also been
the company secretary of China National Materials Co. Ltd.
(Hong Kong stock code: 01893), Beijing Media Corporation Ltd.
(Hong Kong stock code: 01000) and Vale S.A. (Hong Kong stock
code: 06210, 06230), all of which are listed companies in Hong
Kong, since 2009, 2010 and 2010, respectively. Mr. Yu graduated
from the University of Toronto with a bachelor’s degree in commerce
in 2000 and from the University of London with a bachelor’s degree
in law in 2005. He is a member of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, Certified Practicing Accountants of Australia
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Xie Haizhuang (E78iR), aged 47, is the chief engineer of
Shenyang Yuanda. Mr. Xie joined the Group in 1995. From 1995
to 2002, Mr. Xie held positions including technical designer and
technical manager, dealing with the technical aspects of curtain
wall projects. He has worked on the technical design of proposals
for bidding major projects. Since 2002, Mr. Xie was involved in the
Group’s corporate technical development management. Graduating
from Huadong Industrial College (2% T £2Fx) in 1990, Mr. Xie holds
a bachelor’s degree in mechanical construction design.
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Corporate Governance Report

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to
present this Corporate Governance Report in the Group’s Annual
Report for the year ended 31 December 2014.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group strives to maintain high standards of corporate
governance to enhance shareholder value and safeguard
shareholder interests. The Group’s corporate governance principles
emphasize the importance of a quality Board, effective internal
controls and accountability to shareholders of the Company.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices contained in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has adopted
the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its own
code to govern its corporate governance practices.

The Company reviews its corporate governance practices regularly
to ensure compliance with the CG Code.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance with the objective of enhancing shareholders’
value including setting and approving the Company’s strategic
implementation, considering substantial investments, reviewing the
Group’s financial performance and developing and reviewing the
Group’s policies and practices on corporate governance. The Board
has delegated to the chief executive officer, of which the directors
also undertake, and through him, to the senior management the
authority and responsibility for the day-to-day management and
operation of the Group. In addition, the Board has established Board
committees and has delegated to these Board committees various
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.

All directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests
of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.

BOARD COMPOSITION

As at the date of this report, membership of the Board is made
up of nine members in total, with six executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors. The composition of the Board
is set out below:
Executive Directors
Mr. Kang Baohua Chairman
Mr. Tian Shouliang Chief executive officer
Mr. Guo Zhongshan
Mr. Wang Yijun

Mr. Wang Lihui

Mr. Zhang Lei

Chief financial officer

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2014

EESRERERENARF UEE
AEBORS - BEORERKR - IR
FTHCREE - BREGIF RILERNRRNE
BERE ZREARE BRI AEEHY
BRBARBERREBHASEERER
MR RER - EEQCRTTHRAHRK
MBI AL WEBTHRARRD
REREBERERENLBE  AEAKE
BEEENMEE- I EFSTEK
VEEXZEg YRAXFEFZEER
TZHEBE  EERBEINESENR
REHER °

EREFARFRAZERLETEM L
BRIERARERRRIZ AR R R E
BEREOMamEBITRE -

ARRCABRAREBRHBEZTLD
REEBROMNEEFRDMELENES
SABREEEREEEENRE

RAREEH EFTEHXMNBKEA
B ERERABRRTESR =28
FHTES - EFSAXIIIAT ¢

HITES

FEELLE S
BTREL TTIEHEE,
AL

IRESRLE

TUBEE BEEHE
RESLE



Corporate Governance Report

BOARD COMPOSITION (continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok
Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond
Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules from time to time. The independent non-executive directors
are expressly identified in all corporate communications pursuant to
the Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the members of the Board are disclosed
under the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this
report. None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board at all times
met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive directors with at least
one independent non-executive director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all independent non-executive directors to be independent
in accordance with the independence guidelines as set out in the
Listing Rules.

All directors, including independent non-executive directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning. Independent non-executive directors are
invited to serve on the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination
Committees of the Company.

Save as otherwise disclosed, there is no relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material relationship) between any
member of the Board.
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TEERRE

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and duties of the chairman and the chief executive officer of
the Company are carried out by different individuals and have been
clearly defined in writing.

The chairman of the Board is Mr. Kang Baohua, and the chief
executive officer is Mr. Tian Shouliang. The positions of chairman
and chief executive officer are held by separate persons in order to
preserve independence and a balance of views and judgement. With
the support of the senior management, the chairman is responsible
for ensuring that the directors receive adequate, complete and
reliable information in a timely manner and appropriate briefing on
issues arising at Board meetings. The chief executive officer focuses
on implementing objectives, policies and strategies approved and
delegated by the Board. The chief executive officer is in charge of
the Company’s day-to-day management and operations. The chief
executive officer is also responsible for developing strategic plans
and formulating the organizational structure, control systems and
internal procedures and processes for the Board’s approval.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive directors of the Company is engaged on a
service contract for a term of three years, and the appointment may
be terminated by not less than one month’s written notice. Each
of the independent non-executive directors of the Company has
been appointed for a term of one year and the appointment may be
terminated by not less than three months’ written notice.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, all
directors of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and any new director appointed by
the Board to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board
shall submit himself/herself for reelection by shareholders at the first
general meeting after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of
Association. The Nomination Committee established on 12 April
2011 is to be responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of directors and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive directors.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

BOARD MEETINGS

Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to directors in advance.

Notice of regular Board meetings is served to all directors at least 14
days before the meeting. For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all directors at least 3 days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting to keep directors apprised of
the latest developments and financial position of the Company and
to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each
director also have separate and independent access to the senior
management where necessary.

The Company’s senior management, including chief executive
officer, chief financial officer and company secretary, attend all
regular Board meetings and where necessary, other Board and
committee meetings, to advise on business developments, financial
and accounting matters, statutory and regulatory compliance,
corporate governance and other major aspects of the Company.

The company secretary of the Company is responsible for taking
and keeping minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings.
Draft minutes are normally circulated to directors for comment within
a reasonable time after each meeting and final versions are open for
directors’ inspection.

The Company’s Articles of Association contain provisions requiring
directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum
at meetings for approving transactions in which such directors or any
of their associates have a material interest.
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TEERRE

BOARD MEETINGS (continued) BEEgeR(A)

Directors’ Attendance Records BEHEERCi

During the year ended 31 December 2014, nine regular Board HZ2014%F12 A31BILFE » EF<2F

meetings were held for reviewing and approving the financial and ST RNTFHI®:% - B RHEE S L&
operating performance, and considering and approving the overall BEBRIAUARZERILERNA BRI EES
strategies and policies of the Company. BE R BUR ©

The attendance records of each director at the Board meetings HZE2014F 12 A31HIEFE @ K=

during the year ended 31 December 2014 and the annual general FEEee AL HFER201445 A28

meeting for the financial year of 2013 held on 28 May 2014 (the HERM 2013 FM B FRERRAFAE

“2013 AGM") are set out below: (2013 F R AFAE |) MWt srE 5 a0
I

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERY/ &H#A

Annual Extraordinary
Name of Nomination Remuneration Audit General General
Director Board Committee =~ Committee = Committee Meeting Meeting
Bz Bz REZEE FMZEEE ENLERE RRBEFAE RREHAS
Kang Baohua 77 1/ - - 1/1 1/1
Tian Shouliang 7 = 11 = 11 11
HFR
Guo Zhongshan 7 - - - 11 11
E il
Wang Yijun 77 - - - 1/1 1/1
FEE
Wang Lihui /7 - - - 11 11
FanE
Zhang Lei /7 = = = 11 11
RE
Poon Chiu Kwok 7 11 - 2/2 11 11
&R
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond 77 = 1/1 2/2 1/1 1/1
AR
Pang Chung Fai, Benny 7 11 11 2/2 11 11
ZHhiE
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TEERRE

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities
and are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The Company would provide to each newly appointed director or
alternative director an induction package covering the summary
of the responsibilities and liabilities of a director of a Hong Kong
listed company, the Group’s businesses and the statutory
regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company as well
as the Company’s constitutional documents to ensure that he/
she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. The
Group also provided briefings and other training to develop and
refresh the directors’ knowledge and skills from time to time.
Further, the Company continuously updates directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, there was one in-
house seminar conducted covering the topics of directors’ duties,
corporate governance practices and disclosure requirements under
the Listing Rules and SFO. In addition, some of the directors also
attended external seminars and/or conferences organized during the
year under review.
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TEERRE

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING (continued) BEEEIE)

Details regarding the trainings attended by the Directors during the BEENEE2014F12 A1 HIEFELE
year ended 31 December 2014 are as follow: EIIR BT ¢

Types of training

EIEE
External
seminars
and/or
In-house conferences
seminar ShERERETE
Directors BEE RIS &/ REgH
Executive Directors BITES
Kang Baohua REE 1 1
Tian Shouliang HFR 1 1
Guo Zhongshan AL 1 1
Wang Yijun FERE 1 1
Wang Lihui Firis 1 1
Zhang Lei IREE 1 1
Independent Non-Executive BIEHITES
Directors
Poon Chiu Kwok &R 1 30
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond LEER A 1 10
Pang Chung Fai, Benny T 1 10
MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS HERXZERETH

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities NN E) B AN AR B BT 810 ([ B &%
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as 10T EMBITAEZETESFRS
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Appendix 10”) and RSP A (MR 2SRRI ) RIEET T HAF
devised its own code of conduct regarding directors’ dealings in KBRS 10 TSR ZE ST B A B K
the Company’s securities (the “Company Code”) on terms no less SEREEEBARAFEFNITRTA
exacting than the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10. ([aR)=FAI]) ©

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and the directors AAREMEBESREHARBER -

have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code and BEOER  HE2014F12 A31 BHIEF
the Company Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2014. B HE—EETEESFRIRARSFL -
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The Company has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information of the
Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in major
Company matters, including the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those that
may involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the company secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable laws
and regulations are followed. Each director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are delegated to the chief executive officer and the
senior management. The delegated functions and responsibilities
are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
aforesaid officers. The Board also has the full support of the chief
executive officer and the senior management for the discharge of its
responsibilities.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure
for formulating policies on remuneration of senior management of
the Group. Details of the remuneration of each of the directors of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in Note
8 to the Financial Statements.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of sound corporate governance practices, the
Board has established three committees, namely, the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All
Board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference which are available to shareholders
on the Company’s website. Each of the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises three members, namely Mr.
Kang Baohua (chairman), Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok and Mr. Pang Chung
Fai, Benny, the majority of which are independent non-executive
directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and succession planning of directors, and
assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Nomination
Committee:

° reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board annually and
made recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to implement the Company’s corporate strategy;

° made recommendations to the Board to ensure that the
independent non-executive Directors comprise at least one-
third of the Board;

° assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

o made recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment
of Directors.

The Nomination Committee will meet at least once per year
according to its terms of reference. One Nomination Committee
meetings was held during the year under review.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely
Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond (chairman), Mr. Tian Shouliang and Mr.
Pang Chung Fai, Benny, the majority of which are independent non-
executive directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the directors’ remuneration and other benefits.
The remuneration of all directors is subject to regular monitoring
by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that level of their
remuneration and compensation are reasonable. Their written terms
of reference are in compliance with the provisions of the CG Code.
Pursuant to code provision B.1.4 of the CG Code, the Remuneration
Committee would make available its terms of reference, explaining its
role and the authority delegated to it by the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Remuneration
Committee:

o made recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

o reviewed and approved the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued) Ex=zEe(#)
Remuneration Committee (continued) FMEEg (&

. reviewed and approved the disclosure details of any o Tt R AR SR IR N AR

remuneration payable to members of senior management by BEREMNSHREEASNEMMEEE
band in the annual reports; and B R

. conducted regular evaluations of the Board on its performance o ZEeREETHIZESENEK
as it may consider appropriate. I o

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG code, the remuneration BECEE AT ZTFEEXEBAS
of the members of the senior management by band for the year & SLEEEBKENREHZE2014F 12 B

ended 31 December 2014 is set out below: 31 HIEFE 2 H S E ST ¢
Number of
individuals

In the band of FrBEiE AEL

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000/ 7T 10

HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 /7T & 2,000,000 7% 7T,

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year FMEE@NEHE2014F12 A31 B 14
ended 31 December 2014. EERITT1REH -
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely Mr. Poon
Chiu Kwok (chairman), Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond and Mr. Pang
Chung Fai, Benny, all of which are independent non-executive
directors.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control system
and to provide advice and comments to the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Audit Committee:

o made recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor, and
approved the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor;

o reviewed and monitored the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

° reviewed the annual results in respect of the year ended 31
December 2013 and the interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2014 as well as significant issues on financial
control, internal control and risk management systems;

o discussed the internal control system with management to
ensure that management has performed its duty to have an
effective internal control system. This discussion included the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting functions; and

o developed and reviewed the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and made recommendations to the
Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2014.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors of the Company
twice without the presence of the executive directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

During the period under review, the Board is responsible for
determining the policy for the corporate governance of the Company
performing the corporate governance duties as below:

° to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the directors and senior management;

° to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements (where
applicable);

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and

directors of the Group; and

° to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure requirements in the Corporate Governance Report.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2014.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
announcements of inside information and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory
requirements.

The management of the Company has provided to the Board such
explanation and information as are necessary to enable the Board
to carry out an informed assessment of the Company’s financial
statements, which are put to the Board for approval.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Company including the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training programmes and
budget.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal
control system to safeguard shareholder investments and Company
assets and with the support of the Audit Committee, reviewing the
effectiveness of such system on an annual basis.

The internal control system of the Group is designed to facilitate
effective and efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, to
identify and manage potential risks and to safeguard assets of the
Group. The internal auditor and senior management reviews and
evaluates the control process, monitors any risk factors on a regular
basis, and reports to the Audit Committee on any findings and
measures to address the variances and identified risks.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yu Leung Fai of Yu & Co. CPA Limited, the external company
secretary service provider of the Company, has been engaged by the
Company as its company secretary since 30 June 2012. The primary
corporate contact person at the Company is Jason Li, the vice
president of the Finance and Securities Department of the Company.

The company secretary’s biography is set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” on pages 27 to 32 of this report.
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the company secretary
undertook over 32 hours of professional training to update his skills
and knowledge.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the financial statements of the Company
is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 80 to 81.

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company in
respect of audit services for the year ended 31 December 2014
amounted to RMB7.3 million. The external auditors of the Company
did not provide any non-audit services to the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting (including making proposals/moving a resolution at the
extraordinary general meeting)

° Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”), to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition, including making proposals or
moving a resolution at an extraordinary general meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting (including making proposals/moving a resolution at the
extraordinary general meeting) (continued)

° Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene an extraordinary
general meeting for the purpose of making proposals or
moving a resolution at an extraordinary general meeting must
deposit a written requisition (the “Requisition”) signed by the
Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned to the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit 1101-06,11/F,
Prosperity Millennia Plaza, 663 King’'s Road, North Point, Hong
Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary.

o The Requisition must state clearly the name of the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their shareholding in the
Company, the reason(s) to convene an extraordinary general
meeting, the agenda proposed to be included the details of the
business(es) proposed to be transacted in the extraordinary
general meeting, signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned.

o If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition, the Board
has not advised the Eligible Shareholders of any outcome to
the contrary and fails to proceed to convene an extraordinary
general meeting, the Eligible Shareholder(s) himself/herself/
themselves may do so in accordance with the memorandum
and articles of associations, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned by the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Disclaimer

The contents of this sub-section headed “Shareholders’ Rights”
are for reference and disclosure compliance purposes only. The
information does not represent and should not be regarded as legal
or other professional advice from the Company to the shareholders.
Shareholders should seek their own independent legal or other
professional advice as to their rights as shareholders of the
Company. The Company disclaims all liabilities for losses incurred
by its shareholders in reliance on any contents of this sub-section
headed “Shareholders’ Rights”.

Making enquires to the Board
Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by
addressing them to the principal place of business of the Company

in Hong Kong by post through the following means:

Telephone number:  (86) 24 25273288

By post: 20, Street 13 Shenyang Economic &
Technological Development Area,
Shenyang, 110027, China

Attention: Investor Relations Department

By email: investors@yuandacn.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its articles of association. An up-to-date version of the

Company’s articles of association is also available on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)

Investors Communication Policy

The Company regards the communication with institutional investors
as important means to enhance the transparency of the Company
and collect views and feedbacks from institutional investors. To
promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.yuandacn.com, where up-to-date information and updates
on the Company’s business operations and developments, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information
are posted are available for public access. During the year under
review, the directors and senior management of the Company
participated in numerous road shows and investment conferences.
In addition, the Company also maintains regular communication with
the media through press conferences, news releases to the media
and on the Company’s website, and answering enquiries from the
media.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders face-to-
face dialogue with the shareholders. The Chairman of the Board
as well as chairmen of the Nomination Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee or, in their absence, other
members of the respective committees and, where applicable, the
chairman of the independent Board committee, are available to
answer questions at shareholder meetings.

The annual general meeting regarding the financial results for the
year ended 31 December 2014 (“AGM”) will be held on 2 June 2015.
The notice of AGM will be sent to shareholders at least 20 clear
business days before the AGM.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their report and
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014 of the Group.

MAJOR BUSINESS

The Company is principally engaged in the provision of one-stop
integrated curtain wall solutions for its customers to meet the
technical specifications and performance requirements of their
projects. The analysis of the revenue of the Group for the year is set
out in Note 4 to the Financial Statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 and
financial condition of the Company and the Group as at that date are
set out in the Financial Statements on pages 82 to 219.

SHARE CAPITAL

The changes in the share capital of Company during the year are set
out in Note 29(c) to the Financial Statements.

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends a final dividend of HK$10.0 cents per share
for the year ended 31 December 2014, approximately HK$620.9
million in aggregate which is expected to be paid on or around
Tuesday, 23 June 2015, subject to the approval of the shareholders
of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company (the “Annual General Meeting”).

There is no arrangement that a shareholder of the Company has
waived or agreed to waive any dividends.
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BOOK CLOSURE PERIOD AND RECORD DATE

1. For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
Annual General Meeting

The Group’s register of members will be closed from Thursday,
28 May 2015 to Tuesday, 2 June 2015 (both days inclusive),
during which time no transfer of shares will be registered. To
ensure that the shareholders are entitled to attend and vote
at the Annual General Meeting, the shareholders must deliver
their duly stamped instruments of transfer, accompanied by
the relevant share certificates, to the Group’s share registrar
in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Room 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong by no later than
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 27 May 2015 for registration of the
relevant transfer.

2. For determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend

For determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s register
of members will be closed from Monday, 8 June 2015 to
Wednesday, 10 June 2015 (both days inclusive), during which
time no transfer of shares will be registered, and the record
date is fixed on Wednesday, 10 June 2015. To ensure the
entitlement to the final dividend, which will be approved at
the Annual General Meeting, the shareholders must deliver
their duly stamped instruments of transfer, accompanied by
the relevant share certificates, to the Group’s share registrar
in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Room 1712— 1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong by no later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 5 June 2015 for registration of the relevant
transfer.

RESERVE

Details of movements in reserve of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2014 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity of the Financial Statements. Details of movements
in the reserves of the Company during the year are set out in Note
29(a) to the Financial Statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium of the Company is available for distribution of dividends to
the shareholders subject to the provisions of the Company’s Articles
of Associations, and with the sanction of an ordinary resolution,
dividend may be declared and paid out of share premium account or
any other fund or account which can be authorised for this propose.
As at 31 December 2014, the distributable reserves of the Company
were RMB1,0683.8 million (31 December 2013: RMB1,454.4 million).
Details of distributable reserves of the Company are set out in Note
29(e) to the Financial Statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS

The changes in property, plant and equipments of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in Note 13 to the
Financial Statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, the percentage of purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest suppliers and the Group’s
five largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for approximately
4.4% and 18.8% of the Group’s total purchase, respectively. The
percentage of turnover attributable to the Group’s largest customers
and the Group’s five largest customers in aggregate accounted
for approximately 3.2% and 11.3% of the Group’s total turnover,
respectively.

Save as disclosed herein, so far as is known to the Directors,
none of the Directors or his/her close associates and none of the
shareholders possessing over 5% of the interest in the share capital
of the Company possessed any interest in the abovementioned
suppliers and customers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors in office during the year and as of the date of this report
are as follows:

Executive Directors

Kang Baohua (Chairman)

Tian Shouliang (Chief Executive Officer)
Guo Zhongshan

Wang Yijun

Wang Lihui (Chief Financial Officer)
Zhang Lei

Independent non-executive Directors
Poon Chiu Kwok

Woo Kar Tung, Raymond

Pang Chung Fai, Benny

Biographical details of the directors and senior management are set
forth in the section “Directors and Senior Management” of this report.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

Details of service contracts for our executive Directors and non-
executive Directors of the Company are set out under the section
headed “Appointment and Re-election of Directors” of the Corporate
Governance Report. There was no service contract entered by the
Company and any Directors to be re-elected in the coming annual
general meeting stipulating that the Company may not terminate the
appointment within one year without compensation payment (other
than the statutory compensation).

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association and the
CG Code, Mr. Kang Baohua, Mr. Tian Shouliang and Mr. Zhang Lei
will retire at the annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting. Please refer
to Note 8 to the Financial Statements for details of the remuneration
of Company’s directors for the year ended 31 December 2014.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Other than those transactions disclosed in Note 30 to the Financial
Statements and in the section “Connected transactions” below,
there was no other significant contract with any member of the
Group as the contracting party and in which the Directors of the
Company possessed direct or indirect substantial interests, and
which was still valid on the year end date or any time during the year
and related to the business of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETITIVE BUSINESS

Our Chairman, Mr. Kang Baohua, owns and through Best Outlook
Limited (“Best Outlook”) and Neo Pioneer Limited (“Neo Pioneer”)
owns in aggregate approximately 53.36% of the issued share
capital in the Company as at the date of this report of the Board.
Mr. Kang Baohua, Best Outlook and Neo Pioneer are the controlling
shareholders of the Company. Mr. Kang Baohua also owns 100%
interest in Yuanda Aluminium Industry Engineering (Singapore)
Pte. Ltd. (“Yuanda Singapore”) through Yuanda Group, which
is owned by Mr. Kang Baohua. Yuanda Singapore is primarily
engaged in curtain wall works and trading as well as investment
holding. Although the Company has established a wholly owned
subsidiary in Singapore to carry out curtain wall contracting projects,
the ability to contract for large-scale public curtain wall projects
in Singapore is dependent on local contracting experience. Given
the lack of direct local contracting experience, the Group has been
cooperating with Yuanda Singapore on the contracting of large
scale public curtain wall projects in Singapore during the last five
years and will continue to supply curtain wall products to Yuanda
Singapore until the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary will be able
to undertake such projects in Singapore on its own. Please see the
section headed “Connected Transactions” in the prospectus of the
Company dated 20 April 2011 (the “Prospectus”) for details. For the
aforesaid purpose, Yuanda Singapore has been excluded from the
deed of non-competition (“Deed of Non-competition”) provided by
the controlling shareholders to the Company on 21 April 2011.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from
each of the Company’s controlling shareholders in respect of the
compliance by them and their associates with the Deed of Non-
competition. Each of the controlling shareholders of the Company
have also confirmed that all of them have abided by the Deed of Non-
competition during the year ended 31 December 2014.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the Deed of
Non-competition, the confirmation given by each of the Company’s
controlling shareholder and whether the controlling shareholders
have abided by the non-competition undertaking under the Deed
of Non-competition. The independent non-executive Directors
confirmed that they had determined that the controlling shareholders
have not been in breach of the Deed of Non-competition during the
year ended 31 December 2014.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETITIVE BUSINESS
(continued)

Save as disclosed, no Directors nor their respective connected
persons possessed any interests in any business that competed or
might compete with the business that the Group conducted.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 12 April 2011, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(“Share Option Scheme”) whereby the Board of Directors can
grant options for the subscription of our shares to the employees,
managerial staff and senior employees of the Group and those
other persons that the Board of Directors considers that they will
contribute or have contributed to the Group (the “Participants”)
as described in the Share Option Scheme in order to serve as
compliment and to reciprocate their contribution to the Group. The
maximum number of shares that may be issued under the Share
Option Scheme was 600,000,000 shares which is equivalent to
10% of the issued capital of the Company after completion of
the Global Offering (as defined in the Prospectus). The number of
shares that may be granted pursuant to the terms of the Share
Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued shares of the
Company immediately after the completion of the Global Offering.
Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting, the number of shares that may be granted to
the Participants under the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed
1% within any 12-month period (other than those granted to the
substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)), or the
total number of shares that may be granted under the options to
the independent non-executive Directors or any of their respective
connected persons shall not exceed 0.1% of the shares in issue of
the Company from time to time. There is no minimum period that
the options must be held before they become exercisable, and the
options granted shall be exercised within the period decided by the
Board of Directors, and however no options shall be exercised 10
years after they have been granted. The exercise price of the option
shall be the highest of:
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(@  the closing price of the Shares on the daily quotation sheet of
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;

(b)  the average closing price of the Shares on the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

() nominal value of the Share. Each grantee shall pay a
consideration of HK$1.00 at the time the option is granted.

The Share Option Scheme shall take effect from the date it is
adopted and shall remain effective within a period of 10 years from
that date.

Since the Share Option Scheme was adopted, no options have been
granted.

DEBENTURE

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company, its holding
company or its subsidiaries were not the contracting parties of
any arrangements from which the Directors could make a profit by
purchasing the shares or debentures of the Company or any other
companies.

INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2014, the interest or short position of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interest or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or which would be required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which would be required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to Model Code, are as follows:
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INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS IN EENRG - HEARODREFNERR
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES RE(E)
(continued)
()  Interest of the Company () MAEAREHERS
Approximate
percentage of
Name of Director Nature of Interest Number of Shares Shareholding
BExps ERtE BB BRESNES L
Kang Baohua Beneficial owner 181,600,000 (L) 2.92%
FREE EnEEA
Interest of controlled corporation 3,313,104,693 (L) 53.36%

R FE R

Tian Shouliang Beneficial owner 10,075,845 (L) 0.16%
H<TR ExBBA
Guo Zhongshan Beneficial owner 10,075,845 (L) 0.16%
AL EnEEA
Wang Yijun Beneficial owner 10,075,845 (L) 0.16%
IEE ExBEAA
Wang Lihui Beneficial owner 7,707,729 (L) 0.12%
TUE ExEAA
Zhang Lei Beneficial owner 2,000,000 0.08%
R EREBA
Notes: BI5E -
(1) The letter “L” denotes long position in such securities. (1) FEILIRKRRZEBZSFNTE °
(2)  Of the shares held by Mr. Kang Baohua, 2,579,971,923 P REEELTEMFAEHNRM
Shares were held by Best Outlook Limited and 733,132,770 ER EREEAERAAFAE
Shares were held by Neo Pioneer Limited, both companies 2,579,971,923 & %1 * M EIH
of which are wholly-owned by Mr. Kang Baohua. FRA BRI A 733,132, 770 AR A% AR
7 MRATERREELES
BHER o
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INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(continued)

(i) Interest in associated corporations

Name of associated

Name of Director corporation
BExps HE=EER
Kang Baohua Best Outlook Limited
REE ERARAE

Neo Pioneer Limited

HEIBRAR

Kang Baohua

REE
(1) The letter “L” denotes long position in such securities.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS

As at 31 December 2014, the following persons (other than the
Directors and chief executives of the Company) had or deemed
or taken to have an interest and/or short position in the Shares or
the underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336
of SFO, or who was directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of
the issued share capital of the Company:
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS (continued)

TERRNEERAR(E)

Interest of the company AR BRI RS
Approximate

Percentage of
Name Capacity Number of Shares® Shareholding
8 54 RAEE REBNBDL
Best Outlook Limited™ Beneficial owner 2,579,971,923 (1) 41.55%
ERARARD BREEA
Neo Pioneer Limited® Beneficial owner 733,132,770 (L) 11.81%
MEIBRAN ERBEA
Standard Chartered PLC Beneficial owner 374,885,803 (L) 6.04%
Standard Chartered PLC EalEEA
Long Thrive Limited® Beneficial owner 318,793,918 () 5.13%
RERARAFA BREEA
Notes: BoaE

M Best Outlook Limited and Neo Pioneer Limited are companies
incorporated in the BVI and are wholly-owned by Mr. Kang
Baohua.

@ Long Thrive Limited is a company incorporated in the BVI and is

owned by 4 Directors and 3 employees of the Company.

@ The letter “L.” denotes long position in such securities.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the major subsidiaries of the Company as of 31 December
2014 are set out in Note 15 to the Financial Statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the

whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year under review.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected transactions of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2014 are as follows:

Connected Transaction Exempt from the Independent Shareholders’
Approval Requirement but are Subject to the Reporting and
Announcement Requirements

On 29 October 2014, Shenyang Yuanda, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into an agreement (the “SAP Services
Agreement”) with Shenyang Yuanda Science and Technology
Park Co., Ltd. (&G EAEEABR2AF]) (“Yuanda Science
and Technology Park”), pursuant to which Yuanda Science and
Technology Park agreed to provide SAP services to Shenyang
Yuanda at a consideration of RMB2,501,200 (equivalent to
approximately HK$3,176,524).

Yuanda Science and Technology Park is owned as to 56% by
Yuanda Group, which is in turn beneficially owned by Mr. Kang
Baohua, an executive Director and the controlling shareholder of the
Company. Accordingly, Yuanda Science and Technology Park is an
associate of a connected person of the Company for the purpose
of the Listing Rules and the transactions contemplated under the
SAP Services Agreement constitute connected transactions for the
Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
prescribed in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the
connected transaction entered into by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2014.

Details of the SAP Services Agreement are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 29 October 2014.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the Independent
Shareholders’ Approval Requirement but are Subject to the
Reporting and Announcement Requirements

(1) Purchase of metal materials and parts from Yuanda
Environment

On 24 December 2014, Shenyang Yuanda entered into a
master agreement (the “Yuanda Environment Purchase
Agreement”) with Shenyang Yuanda Environment
Engineering Co., Ltd. (Bl R ARIE T EER R 7))
(“Yuanda Environment”), pursuant to which the Group
agreed to purchase metal materials and parts from Yuanda
Environment for a term of three years ending 31 December
2016, subject to annual caps not exceeding RMB6.0 million,
RMB6.1 million and RMB6.4 million, respectively. The
transaction amount for the year ended 31 December 2014
was approximately RMB3.3 million, which did not exceed the
annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2014.

The annual caps under the Yuanda Environment Purchase
Agreement were determined based on fluctuation of metal
price and the historical transaction amount as well as taking
into account the projected continuing increase in the sales
volume of products which require metal materials and parts
for manufacturing, the demand of the Group and the current
market prices for such products.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the Independent

Shareholders’ Approval Requirement but are Subject to the

Reporting and Announcement Requirements (continued)

(1)

@

Purchase of metal materials and parts from Yuanda
Environment (continued)

As at the date of the Yuanda Environment Purchase
Agreement, Yuanda Environment was a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Yuanda Group, which was in turn beneficially
owned by Mr. Kang Baohua, an executive Director and the
controlling shareholder of the Company. Accordingly, Yuanda
Environment was an associate of a connected person of the
Company pursuant to the Listing Rules and the transactions
contemplated under the Yuanda Environment Purchase
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions for
the Group under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the Yuanda Environment Purchase Agreement
are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 24
December 2014.

Processing services from Shenyang BLT

On 24 December 2014, Shenyang Yuanda entered into a
master agreement (the “Processing Agreement”) with
Shenyang Brilliant Elevator Co. Ltd. (EZEMEF BN A
[R 2 7)) (‘Shenyang BLT"), pursuant to which Shenyang BLT
agreed to provide processing services to the Group for a term
of three years ending 31 December 2016, subject to annual
caps not exceeding RMB11.0 million, RMB95.3 million and
RMB97.8 million, respectively. The transaction amount for the
year ended 31 December 2014 was RMB Nil, which did not
exceed the annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2014.

The annual caps under the Processing Agreement were
determined based on the expected demand of structural
steel processing services by the Group during the term of the
Processing Agreement.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the Independent £
Shareholders’ Approval Requirement but are Subject to the ==k

Reporting and Announcement Requirements (continued)

(2)  Processing services from Shenyang BLT (continued) ©2) EEGIENIFIEE TR ()
As at the date of the Processing Agreement, Shenyang BLT was RINT iR E - BEENE AR
a subsidiary of Yuanda Group, which was in turn beneficially REBHKEBAR - mMERAEEH
owned by Mr. Kang Baohua. Accordingly, Shenyang BLT was EEELEERNEE - At » BS
an associate of a connected person of the Company and the HEME AN A B REE A THEEZE A
transactions contemplated under the Processing Agreement + - T HaEE N RETHR S5
constituted continuing connected transactions for the Group FHRBE14AZ N S BRAEE
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. HIFERERS °
Details of the Processing Agreement are set out in the BRANIHEZFBESHRARNRHE
announcement of the Company dated 24 December 2014. EAR2014F 12 A24 B2 A

(3) Construction, decoration and renovation services from (8) WEEELETIGEER  EER
Puhua Construction BRI
Prior to 1 January 2013, there were no historical transactions R2013F1 A1 B Al > A& B &

between the Group and Shenyang Yuanda Puhua
Construction and Decoration Engineering Co., Ltd. (&=
AEEZAKMTIEFR2AA]) (“Puhua Construction”).
On 22 July 2013, Shenyang Yuanda entered into a master
agreement (the “Puhua Construction Service Agreement”)
with Puhua Construction, pursuant to which Puhua
Construction agreed to provide the construction, decoration
and renovation services to the Group for a term of three
years ending 31 December 2015, subject to annual caps not
exceeding RMB10.0 million, RMB10.0 million and RMB10.0
million, respectively. The transaction amount for the year
ended 31 December 2014 was approximately RMB1.8 million,
which did not exceed the annual cap for the year ended 31
December 2014.
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EEERE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the Independent

Shareholders’ Approval Requirement but are Subject to the

Reporting and Announcement Requirements (continued)

E)

4)

Construction, decoration and renovation services from
Puhua Construction (continued)

The annual caps under the Puhua Construction Service
Agreement were determined with reference to the prevailing
market rates for the provision of services of a similar nature and
based on the contract amount of the confirmed construction
projects and the planned construction projects of the Group.

As at the date of the Puhua Construction Service Agreement,
Puhua Construction was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Yuanda
Group, which was in turn beneficially owned by Mr. Kang
Baohua. Accordingly, Puhua Construction was an associate
of a connected person of the Company and the transactions
contemplated under the Puhua Construction Service
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions for
the Group under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the Puhua Construction Service Agreement are set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 23 July 2013.
Supply of curtain wall products to Yuanda Singapore

Prior to the Listing Date, Yuanda Singapore contracted for

curtain wall projects in Singapore for which the Group supplied
the curtain wall products.
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Report of the Board of Directors

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the Independent

Shareholders’ Approval Requirement but are Subject to the

Reporting and Announcement Requirements (continued)

(4)

Supply of curtain wall products to Yuanda Singapore
(continued)

On 12 April 2011, the Company entered into a master supply
agreement (the “Yuanda Singapore Supply Agreement”)
with Yuanda Singapore, pursuant to which the Group agreed
to supply curtain wall products to Yuanda Singapore for a term
of three years. On 15 November 2012, the Company entered
into a supplemental agreement (the “Yuanda Singapore
Supplemental Agreement”) to the Yuanda Singapore Supply
Agreement with Yuanda Singapore, pursuant to which the
annual caps for each of the years ended 31 December 2012
and 2013 have been increased to RMB208.0 million and
RMB156.0 million, respectively.

On 31 December 2013, the Company entered into an
agreement (the “2013 Yuanda Singapore Supply
Agreement”) with Yuanda Singapore, pursuant to which
the Group agreed to supply curtain wall products to Yunada
Singapore for a term of three years ending 31 December
2016, subject to annual caps not exceeding RMB80.0 million,
RMB40.0 million and RMB40.0 million, respectively. The
transaction amount for the year ended 31 December 2014
was approximately RMB42.2 million, which did not exceed the
annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2014.

The annual caps under the Yuanda Singapore Supply Agreement,
Yuanda Singapore Supplemental Agreement and 2013 Yuanda
Singapore Supply Agreement were determined based on
prevailing market prices.

As at the dates of the above agreements, Yuanda Singapore
was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Yuanda Group, which was
in turn beneficially owned by Mr. Kang Baohua. Accordingly,
Yuanda Singapore was an associate of a connected person of
the Company and the transactions contemplated under 2013
Yuanda Singapore Supply Agreement constituted continuing
connected transactions for the Group under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Details of the 2013 Yuanda Singapore Supply Agreement
are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 31
December 2013.
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EEERE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the Independent

Shareholders’ Approval Requirement but are Subject to the

Reporting and Announcement Requirements (continued)

6

Purchase of raw materials from Shenyang Xinwan Fulong

On 12 April 2011, the Company entered into a master
purchase agreement with Shenyang Xinwan Fulong
Commerce Co., Ltd. (B M B REEME B R 2 7))
(“Shenyang Xinwan Fulong”), pursuant to which the Group
agreed to purchase building materials and hardware tools
from Shenyang Xinwan Fulong for a term of three years ending
31 December 2013, and such agreement has expired on 31
December 2018.

On 31 December 2013, the Company entered into a new
agreement (the “Shenyang Xinwan Fulong Purchase
Agreement”) with Shenyang Xinwan Fulong, pursuant to
which the Group agreed to purchase building materials and
hardware tools from Shenyang Xinwan Fulong for a term of
three years ending 31 December 2016, subject to annual
caps not exceeding RMB20.0 million, RMB20.0 million and
RMB20.0 million, respectively. The transaction amount for the
year ended 31 December 2014 was approximately RMB6.2
million, which did not exceed the annual cap for the year ended
31 December 2014.

The annual caps for the Shenyang Xinwan Fulong Purchase
Agreement were determined based on the historical
transaction amount and taking into account the demand of the
Group and the current market prices for such products.

As at the date of the Shenyang Xinwan Fulong Purchase
Agreement, Shenyang Xinwan Fulong was wholly-owned by
Ms. Kang Fengxian (FEJEl{ll), the sister of Mr. Kang Baohua.
Accordingly, Shenyang Xinwan Fulong was an associate of
a connected person of the Company and the transactions
contemplated under the Shenyang Xinwan Fulong Purchase
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions for
the Group under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the Shenyang Xinwan Fulong Purchase Agreement
are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 31
December 2013.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
prescribed in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the
above continuing connected transactions of the Group.

All independent non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions, and
confirmed that those transactions were entered into:

1. inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

2. under normal commercial terms, or on terms better to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

3. in accordance with the agreements governing the above
continuing connected transactions, the terms of which are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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EEERE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Based on the work performed, the auditors of the Company
confirmed to the Board that the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions:

1. have been approved by the Board;

2. are in all material aspects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group;

3.  have been entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

4. have not exceeded the relevant cap disclosed in the previous
announcements.

Pursuant to Rule 14A. 56 of the Listing Rules, the auditor has issued
an unqualified letter containing their conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions of the Group. A copy of the
auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As of 31 December 2014, the Group had an aggregate of 9,445
full-time employees (2013: 11,357). The Group has sound policies
of management incentives and competitive remuneration, which
aligns the interests of management, employees and shareholders’
alike. The Group sets its remuneration policy by reference to the
prevailing market conditions and the performance of the individuals
concerned, subject to review from time to time. The components of
the remuneration package consist of basic salary, allowances, fringe
benefits including medical insurance and contributions to MPF, as
well as incentives like discretionary bonus and participation in share
option scheme. Details of the share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 12 April 2011 are set out in the paragraph headed
“Share Option Scheme” in this section.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT STATUS

The Company received the letters of confirmation of independence
issued by all the independent non-executive Directors in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board of Directors was
satisfied with the independent status of all the independent non-
executive Directors.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

In May 2011, the Company conducted a global offering through
which 1,708,734,000 new ordinary shares were offered at a price
of HK$1.50 per share. Net proceeds raised by the Company were
approximately HK$2,402,947,000. The ordinary shares of the
Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
17 May 2011.

As stated in the Company’s prospectus dated 20 April 2011 and
supplementary prospectus dated 5 May 2011, the Company
intended to use the proceeds for expansion of its production
capacity, repayment of its existing debts, investment in research and
development, and expansion of its sales and marketing network. As
at 31 December 2014, an accumulated amount of approximately
HK$1,702 million of proceeds from the global offering (of which
expansion of production capacity: HK$259 million; repayment of
its existing debts (mainly comprised of the bridge loan of Standard
Chartered Bank): HK$962million; investment in research and
development: HK$261 million; and expansion of its sales and
marketing network: HK$220 million) was utilized. The remaining
proceeds of approximately HK$1,832 million, representing 76.2%
of the total net proceeds, will be used in the future in the manner
consistent with the allocation as stated in the Prospectus and the
supplementary Prospectus of the Company.
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KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS

The Group owns only 49% of the equity interests of its operating
companies, Yuanda Kuwait General Contracting for Buildings
Underes (“Yuanda Kuwait”) and Yuanda Qatar Aluminium Industry
Engineering Co., W.L.L. (“Yuanda Qatar”), in Kuwait and Qatar
respectively, as both Kuwait and Qatar laws do not allow foreign
companies to own a majority interest in a local operating company.
The Group had no operation in Qatar prior to the establishment of
Yuanda Qatar and prior to the establishment of Yuanda Kuwait,
the Group supplied products to a local company for projects it
undertook in Kuwait.

Yuanda Kuwait

Under Kuwait law, the Group is not allowed to own a majority interest
in the local operating company. In order to enable it to govern and
control the financial and operation of Yuanda Kuwait and capture
its entire economic interest from its operations, the Group entered
into an agreement on 30 March 2009 (the “Kuwait Incorporation
Agreement”) with Mr. Mohamed Tareq Al Essa (the “Kuwait Local
Partner”), an independent third party, pursuant to which the Kuwait
Local Partner agreed to be the facilitator of the Group in relation
to the conduct of the Group’s business in Kuwait. Pursuant to the
Kuwait Incorporation Agreement, the Kuwait Local Partner has
declared that:

all the capital and assets belong to Shenyang Yuanda;

° he has no share (and hence no voting rights) or the right to get
any share in Yuanda Kuwait or any entitlement to the profit of
Yuanda Kuwait;

° he is not involved in the day-to-day operation of Yuanda
Kuwait, save for assisting Yuanda Kuwait with coordination
with the local government authorities;

o all works in relation to tendering, execution of contracts and

collection of proceeds are carried out by Yuanda Kuwait under
the management of Shenyang Yuanda;
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)

Yuanda Kuwait (continued)

o he would not be held liable for any losses; and

° the above terms in the Kuwait Incorporation Agreement is
irrevocable for three years effective from the date of signing
and will be automatically renewed for a similar period unless
and until terminated by both parties with a notice at least 90
days in advance.

Through the above arrangement, the Group is able to control the
operation of Yuanda Kuwait. As advised by the legal advisors of the
Company as to Kuwait law, the Kuwait Incorporation Agreement is
legal, valid and binding to its parties and constitutes legally binding
and enforceable obligations against the Kuwait Local Partner under
Kuwait law and is in compliance with the laws and regulations
of Kuwait. Based on the above, and in accordance with relevant
accounting standards, the Group consolidated Yuanda Kuwait into
its consolidated financial statements as a wholly-owned subsidiary.

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 20 April 2011
and the annual report of the Company in respect of the year ended
31 December 2011, notwithstanding that the Company considers
that it is able to effectively operate and conduct the business of
Yuanda Kuwait under the present arrangement, the Company has
undertaken that in order to protect the interests of the Company,
it will introduce further measures, including using our best efforts
to amend the terms of the Kuwait Incorporation Agreement, by
entering into supplemental agreements that would include, among
others, revisions that the Kuwait Local Partner will not transfer any
of its shares in Yuanda Kuwait without the prior written consent of
the Company, it will vote for any resolutions of Yuanda Kuwait in
accordance with the instruction of the Company, and if there shall
be any change to the Kuwait laws or regulations and/or policies
such that a foreign entity becomes legally entitled to hold a majority
interest in Yuanda Kuwait, it will promptly transfer its relevant interest
in Yuanda Kuwait to the extent permitted by the then applicable
laws or regulations to Shenyang Yuanda to enable the Company to
become the majority shareholder of Yuanda Kuwait.
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KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)

Yuanda Kuwait (continued)

If the above additional measures cannot be implemented, there
will not be any legal consequences assumed by the Company
arising solely as a result of the Company’s failure to enter into the
supplemental agreements to implement these additional measures.
However, in order to better protect the Company’s interests,
the Company will search for a replacement for its existing local
partner who is willing to enter into a cooperation agreement with
the Company that will contain the terms of the abovementioned
additional measures which are in compliance with the requirements
of the Stock Exchange.

As of the date of this annual report, the Company is still in negotiation
with the Kuwait Local Partner on the implementation of the above
additional measures and the Company will disclose any measures
implemented and/or replacement of existing local partner in the
Company’s future annual reports.

Yuanda Qatar

Under Qatar law, the Group is not allowed to own a majority interest
in the local operating company. In order to enable the Company
to govern and control the financial and operation of Yuanda Qatar
and capture its entire economic interest from its operations, the
Company has entered into the memorandum of association of
Yuanda Qatar dated 20 January 2008 (the “Qatar Articles”) with
Mr. Ahmed Omar Bbhaa Ahmed (the “Qatar Local Partner”), an
independent third party, and an agreement dated September 16,
2007 (the “Qatar Incorporation Agreement”) entered into between
Shenyang Yuanda and Actrade for Trading & Contracting, a
company of which the Qatar Local Partner was the authorized
signatory with respect to the governing of the operation of Yuanda
Qatar.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)

Yuanda Qatar (continued)

Pursuant to the Qatar Articles and the Qatar Incorporation
Agreement, Yuanda Qatar was established and held as to 51%
by the Qatar Local Partner and as to 49% by Shenyang Yuanda.
Pursuant to the Qatar Articles:

o representatives of Shenyang Yuanda are responsible for
managing the company during the entire term of its existence;

o profits of the company will be distributed as to 95% to
Shenyang Yuanda and as to 5% to the Qatar Local Partner;

The Qatar Articles were supplemented by the Qatar Incorporation
Agreement pursuant to which it was agreed that:

. the Qatar Local Partner will facilitate Shenyang Yuanda to
conduct business in Qatar;

o instead of receiving dividends from Yuanda Qatar, the Qatar
Local Partner will be paid an annual service fee of US$40,000
plus a scalable commission calculated based on 1% to 5% of
the contract value of projects that Yuanda Qatar won with the
assistance of the Qatar Local Partner;

° the dividends declared by Yuanda Qatar may be used to offset
and settle any service fees due or payable to the Qatar Local
Partner;

o save for assisting Yuanda Qatar with coordination with the
local government authorities, the Qatar Local Partner is not
involved in the day-to-day operations of Yuanda Qatar;

° all works in relation to tendering, execution of contracts and
collection of proceeds are carried out by Yuanda Qatar under
the management of Shenyang Yuanda.

B R S EEEE(E)
EEEEA )

BREREASREAL R REBXIL
o REBERAEEKIY > T HRER
BEHBHLBEGERDBIFAELI% N
49% - RIBFREBERAA] :

s REBEANRRARRZATFHE
MEEHAREEZ QR

o RATMMBERIZIS% KE5%DET
BEEARREREWRL

RIERERAAT B RIE B B
e Jit  EHRE

o  REBEMBHBHIESERR
REBETER

s TREBEMBAHLTSUWERER
BEANRE - MERNEFREE
F340,0003%7T © RN REBEKN
EREBE R TRGHIA
BHEREE1%ZE5%THMNADE
ERE

o  REMEAST KRS AREH
KMBERMSEN T RERE B
HREMRIEE R

o BREZEMERATHEREE 1 A B KI5
BEASN - BHBHIL NP R RIE
RMERNBEBEE

o FIAEABRIE  BIARRWERAT

BRENTIE  DERGERNE
BT R REREAHET

FRPBERARAT =% - PUEER 75



Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)

Yuanda Qatar (continued)

As advised by the legal advisors of the Company as to Qatar law,
subject to the Qatar Articles, the Qatar Incorporation Agreement is
legal, valid, binding and enforceable under Qatar law, and as the
Qatar Incorporation Agreement and the Qatar Articles are related
to the same subject matter, the Qatar Incorporation Agreement is
considered to be an explanatory to the Qatar Articles under Qatar
law. The Company’s legal advisors as to Qatar law has further
advised that the Qatar Articles is a validly binding and legally
enforceable document and constitutes legal, valid, binding and
enforceable obligations of the parties thereto with respect to the
governance of the affairs of Yuanda Qatar and is in compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations of Qatar and the Qatar
Incorporation Agreement is enforceable against the Qatar Local
Partner.

The Company entered into this arrangement in Qatar in order to
enable it to control and operate Yuanda Qatar and capture the
economic interest from its operations, and these are supported by
the following terms in the Qatar Articles and the Qatar Incorporation
Agreement:

° the representatives from Shenyang Yuanda are entitled to
similar responsibilities and authorities in Yuanda Qatar as
board members in other subsidiaries of Shenyang Yuanda;

° the representatives from Shenyang Yuanda are responsible for
managing Yuanda Qatar during the entire term of its existence
and they may not be removed without the approval from
Shenyang Yuanda;

° resolutions of the shareholders of Yuanda Qatar will only be

valid by approval from a majority of the shareholders holding
75% of the shares in Yuanda Qatar;
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)

Yuanda Qatar (continued)

o Yuanda Qatar is managed exclusively by Shenyang Yuanda
and its representatives for the period of its existence.
Shenyang Yuanda and its representatives shall have full and
absolute authority and exclusive right to manage and operate
the business of Yuanda Qatar. Such powers are irrevocable
and the Qatar Local Partner may not intervene in managing
the company or bind or commit Yuanda Qatar in any way
whatsoever except with prior written consent from Shenyang
Yuanda;

o Pursuant to the Qatar Articles, the profits of Yuanda Qatar
will be distributed as to 95% to Shenyang Yuanda and as to
5% the Qatar Local Partner, while the dividends declared by
Shenyang Yuanda may be used to offset and settle any service
fees due or payable under the management of Shenyang
Yuanda under the Qatar Incorporation Agreement.

Based on the above, and in accordance with relevant accounting
standards, the Group consolidated Yuanda Qatar into its consolidated
financial statement as a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 20 April 2011
and subsequent annual reports of the Company, notwithstanding
that the Company considers that it is able to effectively operate
and conduct the business of Yuanda Qatar under the present
arrangement, the Company has undertaken that in order to protect
the interests of the Company, it will introduce further measures,
including using its best efforts to amend the terms of the Qatar
Incorporation Agreement, by entering into supplemental agreements
that would include, among others, provisions that the Qatar Local
Partner will not transfer any of its shares in Yuanda Qatar without the
Company’s prior written consent, it will vote for any resolutions of
Yuanda Qatar in accordance with our instruction, and if there shall be
any change to the Qatar laws or regulations and/or policies such that
a foreign entity becomes legally entitled to hold a majority interest
in Yuanda Qatar, it will promptly transfer its relevant interest in
Yuanda Qatar to the extent permitted by the then applicable laws or
regulations to Shenyang Yuanda to enable the Company to become
the majority shareholder in Yuanda Qatar.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)

Yuanda Qatar (continued)

If the above additional measures cannot be implemented, there will
not be any legal consequences to the Company arising solely as
a result of our failure to enter into the supplemental agreements to
implement these additional measures. However, in order to better
protect the Company’s interests, the Company will search for a
replacement for its existing local partner who is willing to enter into a
cooperation agreement with the Company that will contain the terms
of the abovementioned additional measures which are in compliance
with the requirements of the Stock Exchange.

As of the date of this annual report, the Company is still negotiation
with the Qatar Local Partner on the implementation of the above
additional measures and the Company will disclose any measures
implemented and/or replacement of its existing local partner in its
future annual reports.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report in this report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE GROUP

During the year ended 31 December 2014, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
listed securities of the Company, except that the trustee of the share
award scheme adopted by the Board on 10 April 2013, pursuant to
the terms of the rules and trust deed of such scheme, purchased on
the Stock Exchange a total of 17,304,000 shares of the Company
during the Reporting Period.

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.20 OF THE LISTING
RULES

The Directors are not aware of any circumstances resulting in the

responsibility of disclosure under Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules
regarding the provision of advances by the Company to an entity.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events after the reporting period of the Group
are set out in Note 34 to the Financial Statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group in the
past five years is set out on page 220 of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision regarding pre-emptive rights in the Articles of
Association of the Company or the ordinance of Cayman Islands,
stipulating that any new shares shall be offered according to the
respective shareholding of the existing shareholders of the Company
when new shares are issued by the Company.

SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of our Directors, the Company has maintained
the prescribed minimum percentage of public float under the Listing
Rules from the Listing Date to the year ended 31 December 2014.

AUDITOR

The Company appointed KPMG as the Auditor of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2014. The Company will submit a
resolution in the coming annual general meeting to re-appoint KPMG
as the Auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board
Kang Baohua
Chairman

31 March 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BY 2R S

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yuanda
China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 82 to 219, which comprise
the consolidated and the Company’s statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2014, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

31 March 2015

BBET 2 EE ()

EZEEETRERFARGES G5 H
RABEENPBRERERZIERR
& o B ZEREFBURNZ A Z
B BRI EEHFM B RR CERER
Rt (w2 S EEKEF ek sR Bl R ) 2
==°Ef”ﬁﬁ.u# PR AT (4B - A E
JE £ T%%ﬁ*“$zﬂAﬁﬁﬁﬁ

R ABERE  URFTEEEZRE
Fro B FEREZA TZW*BW?“E'T

BYRERR - BERNEBRNBESMN

RAZE@BREGRENMIELZE
AHEFTRE AR - UNFHEA B

RZEBENNTA -

*HP  BECHBRNREZERX

¢ I
fn%k I
il

REEL BE RRGRE -
5
BE - AHTBRRRERENS
R HEMAFHRRE AR

B 201412 A 31 B 2B #EAR -
%laiJH¢EFZﬂﬂ&ﬁi
IE BREBDAERA 2 #HER

o

S % mg 5 o
e mf %FFFF HPr 4H$

il
hedl
aF -
El =
W

EFERSTME®AT
RS AT
BAEFIR

EITB 1098
KFRESE

20153 A 31H

BRPBERARAT =% - PUEER

81



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

EffiEm%
(Expressed in Renminbi (‘RMB”))  For the year ended 31 December 2014
(AAREE(TAR% ) REML) BE2014F 12831 BHIEFE

2014 2013
=F-mFE  —F-=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR¥T AREFIT
Turnover =] 4 10,038,653 10,872,404
Cost of sales SHERMA (8,558,050) (9,512,152)
Gross profit EF 4(b) 1,480,603 1,360,252
Other revenue E At A 5 32,347 36,615
Other net (loss)/income HiF (51E) A 5 (842) 8,648
Selling expenses HEEH (175,479) (176,781)
Administrative expenses THFAX (1,040,700) (1,036,034)
Profit from operations #e e R 295,929 192,700
Finance costs B & KA 6(a) (234,398) (160,019)
Profit before taxation i A0 F 5 6 61,531 32,681
Income tax FriS#i 7 (10,424) (5,133)
Profit for the year FERFHE 51,107 27,548
Attributable to: LR AT FEAL :
Equity shareholders of the Company N2 a] A% & 25,597 104,367
Non-controlling interests I i s 25,510 (76,819)
Profit for the year FERFE 51,107 27,548
Earnings per share (RMB cents) BRERN(AR®ESD)
— Basic and diluted —BEARKRE#E 12 0.41 1.68

The notes on pages 91 to 219 form part of these financial FNEEFE219E 2MFRILZERBRE 2

statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of — 0 o FERHARAN RIIRE FE(E A FE 2
the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in Note A% B IEE M sE 29(b) °
29(b).
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
R REMEERER

(Expressed in RMB)  For the year ended 31 December 2014
(AARMEREN) HZE2014F12A31BLEFE

2014 2013
—E-NF =
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE ARYT T ARET T
Profit for the year FERFE 51,107 27,548
Other comprehensive income FREMEEKE
for the year (after tax and (BB REFHIE
reclassification adjustments): FEE) 11
ltems that may be reclassified HERAEFHEE
subsequently to profit or loss: EmMIER ¢
— Exchange differences on translation ——#8 A& 2 71| ¥ 1)
into presentation currency PE H Z=RE 45,746 72,357
— Cash flow hedge: —REmEEH
net movement in the P REEE)FRE
hedging reserve (32,292) 27,473
Other comprehensive income FREMEZEKE
for the year 13,454 99,830
Total comprehensive income FRAEENGEHEEE
for the year 64,561 127,378
Attributable to: U AL HE(hL -
Equity shareholders of the Company — ZANA &A% ER 26,995 206,573
Non-controlling interests IR fE 37,566 (79,195)
Total comprehensive income FRAEZHER DB
for the year 64,561 127,378

H

The notes on pages 91 to 219 form part of these financial

o

N EEF219R 2 HERULFERHREK 2
vl

statements. —xB
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B OB R R

(Expressed in RMB) At 31 December 2014
(AARBRER) R2014F12H31H

2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR¥T AREFIT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB KRR 13 794,582 829,175
Lease prepayments e 14 551,708 597,338
Deferred tax assets LT IBEE 27(c) 289,696 237,903
1,635,986 1,664,416
Current assets REEE
Short-term investments EHERIEE 16 300,000 —
Inventories 78 17 446,061 417,325
Gross amount due from customers EWERE AR ITIZ4A%E
for contract work 18 5,933,550 5,152,193
Trade and bills receivables BorEWR G ENEE 19 2,864,965 2,843,223
Deposits, prepayments and & - BRRK
other receivables H fth e Wk 20(a) 597,564 583,567
Cash and cash equivalents He RESZEEY 21(a) 2,662,517 3,273,800
12,804,657 12,270,108
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and bills payables BN R EMNEZE 22 4,663,206 4,275,207
Gross amount due to customers ENEEARIIZ
for contract work 18 1,365,694 1,310,610
Receipts in advance TEWRIE 23 119,776 202,783
Accrued expenses and FERTF S R E M ER
other payables 24(a) 803,748 626,220
Bank loans RITEK 25(a) 3,320,000 2,933,153
Income tax payable FET ST 27(@) 207,994 190,963
Provision for warranties 1RIERBE 28 41,254 53,977
10,521,672 9,592,913
Net current assets RBEEFE 2,282,985 2,677,195
Total assets less current liabilities #EEFABAS 3,918,971 4,341,611

The notes on pages 91 to 219 form part of these financial FNEZE219E 2 M RILENBRK 2
statements. —& e
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

ABIIBRRE (B)
(Expressed in RMB) At 31 December 2014
(MAREAEBM) R2014F12A831H
2014 2013
—E-NF —T—=%
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt ARET AREFIT
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Bank loans IRITER 25(b) - 130,000
Deferred tax liabilities REHEAE 27(c) 2,067 1,768
Provision for warranties RIS 28 128,630 103,107
130,697 234,875
NET ASSETS BEE 3,788,274 4,106,736
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARREHE 29
Share capital &R 519,723 519,723
Reserves i 3,425,653 3,781,681
Total equity attributable to equity 2~ TR EFE(L
shareholders of the Company AR 3,945,376 4,301,404
Non-controlling interests eI = (157,102) (194,668)
TOTAL EQUITY BRER 3,788,274 4,106,736

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 BEEN20155F3 A31 At/ RIRFEREM -

March 2015.

Kang Baohua Tian Shouliang

BEEE HFR
Director (Chairman) Director
BE(LE) EE

H

The notes on pages 91 to 219 form part of these financial

N EEF219R 2 HERUILFERHREK 2
vl

statements. —B
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Statement of Financial Position
B IR R 3R

(Expressed in RMB) At 31 December 2014

(MARBABN) M2014F12A318

Non-current assets
Investment in a subsidiary

Current assets
Prepayments and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Accrued expenses
and other payables
Bank loan

Net current assets

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

FRBEE
R—EHB AR ZIEE

hBEE
TR RN EL A UK
ReMREEEY

REBAE
FEETRIS )2
HAb R
RITER

RBEEFE
FEE
BARKEE

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31

March 2015.

Kang Baohua

FHEE

Director (Chairman)

EF(FE)

The notes on pages 91 to 219 form part of these financial

statements.
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Note
HizE

15

29

2014 2013
=F-mFE  —F-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR  ARETT
27,366 12,089
1,684,280 2,069,125
8,957 22,002
1,693,237 2,091,127
287,440 195,515
- 90,911
287,440 286,426
1,405,797 1,804,701
1,433,163 1,816,790
519,723 519,723
913,440 1,297,067
1,433,163 1,816,790

BEE22N2015F3 A31 AL RIFHEEM -

Tian Shouliang
HFR
Director

EF

AEFNORZMERUENHRER
g



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
S EREER

(Expressed in RMB)  For the year ended 31 December 2014
(AARMEREN) HZE2014F12A31BLEFE

Attrbutable to equty shareholders of the Company

RATRRE
Shares held
under shre
award PR Non-
scheme stafutory controling
Share S FERG  Captd  Ofer reseves Exchnge  Hedghg  Retained erests  Totdl

capit  premim #EE  resene  resene BEEE  eseve  resene  pofis  Tod  FER ey

RE KRR FERD AAEE AbEE  BE EXRE HREE REWR & B 4E
RMB'OOO RMBO00 RMBOOO RMB'OOO RMBO00 RMBOOO RMB'OOO RMBIO00 RMBOOO RMB'OO0 RMBI000 RMBOOO
NREFT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT

(Note  (Note  (Noe (Moo (Nole  (Note (Mo (Mo

) 2900 200 M) 90 2 ) 2

W e o W W i i

20) 290 200 200 200 2944 M) 26

Balance at 1 January 2013 H13E1 B 1R 28 519,723 1,605,728 = - 189698 206075 (19494 5148 1663807 4310685 (15473 4195212

Changes in equity for 2013: WIIEZERRE:

Profifoss)for the year Enfle/(E8) - - - - - - - - M3 104367 (8819 27548

Other comprefensive income Hh2Eks - - - - - - AT 214713 - 10006 376 99,830

Total comprehensive income AbREE - = = = = - AT 2413 104367 206573 (19,19 127,378

Dividends approved n respect FL-EEREIRE

of the previous year (Hizoabm)

ols 290 -y - - - - - - -y - pota

Shares purchased under the share — RETR & 2RE

award scheme (Note 26) LR WEz) - - (26568 - - - - - - (26568 - (26568

Shares granted under heshas BRI RS

award scheme (ote 26) 2R (i 6) - - - 12088 - - - - - 12088 - 12088

Shres vested under the share RERNREHE5E

award scheme (Vote 26 2 i 26) - - 12s (1208 - - - - - - -

Appropriaton o resenves ARERE - - - - - 68 = -6y = = -
- I B - -6 - ALY I 2. )

Balance at 31 December 2013 M2013F 12831 B2 519723 1454364 (15389 - 189698 302803 65280 32621 1762319 4301404 (194,668 4,106,736

The notes on pages 91 to 219 form part of these financial

H

N EEF219R 2 HERULFERHRER 2
vl

statements. —B

o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
SR BB R (E)

(Expressed in RMB)
(AARBRER)

Balance at 1 January 2014

Changes in equity for 2014:

Proft for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Dividends approved in respect
of the previous year
(Nots 2900
Shares purchased under the share
award scheme (Note 26)
Shares granted under the share
award scheme (Note 26)
Shares vested under the share
award scheme (Note 26)
Appropriation o resenves

Balance at 31 December 2014

The notes on pages 91 to 219 form part of these financial

statements.

R0 B 1 RZER
NUEZERSE

ERilE
o2 EdE

PpEEE

FL-EEHEZRE
(Fz290m)

RERH % EEE
2z z6)
RERR R E
LR H28)
BERREHRE
R )
e

=

H14E12731 B2k

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HBE2014F 12 A1 BIEFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ANRRREE
Shares held
under share
award PRC Non-
scheme statutory controlling

Share  Share BERH  Capitll  Other reserves Exchange Hedging Retained interests ~ Total
capital premium  REirE reseve reseve WEETE reseve reseve  profits  Totl  EER  equity

Re REEE #ERD 48R EBBR  BE EXRE MMRRE REWR &t  EE  fER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARNTR ARMTR ARMTR ARKTR

(Note ~ (Note ~ (Note  (Note ~ (Note  (Note  (Note (Note

) 290)  2li) - 2li) 29 2] 2S(e) 25

Wz mE WE B WE K KR b

26 2990) 2460 2900 2900)) - 2961)  2460) 296l

SOT3 1454354 (15359 189608 302800 520 %621 1762310 401404 (194668 410673
- 1 1 IR

- .o e B m) - 138 1006 134

- ..o o B0 (M) /T %95 N6 64560

- Py - - - - - (o059 - (59
. (1 I (1

- - - - - - .t - f5m

- [ - - - - 14l - -

5 3151 oS - - -

- psY 68 - - 31 o1 B0y - pRe

519728 1063835  (9210) 189698 340364 88920 39 1,751,778 3945376  (157,102) 3,788,274

FNEEZFE2N0BZMERUFIHHRERZ
g
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

o~ — 1§

EHAERER

(Expressed in RMB)  For the year ended 31 December 2014
(AARMEREN) HZE2014F12A31BLEFE

2014 2013
—E-MEF —T=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hiat ARMET T ARETTT
Operating activities REES
Profit before taxation TR 61,531 32,681
Adjustments for: ARIER
Depreciation and amortisation & R 6(c) 65,021 68,042
Interest income FEUWA 6(a) (16,742) (12,263
Interest expenses and FEFRE REAM
other borrowing costs BERKA 6(a) 231,581 190,299
Net loss/(gain) on disposal HEME - BEK
of property, plant and BB R A3 AR
equipment and land use rights B8 (Was) 34 5} 5,062 (1)
Equity-settled share-based PARR 2 8 5 AR )
payment expenses e 6(b) 15,277 12,088
Changes in working capital: LEEGEY
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE M, w (28,736) 67,972
Increase in gross amount due from EREFARTIE
customers for contract work FEE)I (781,357) (198,059)
Increase in trade and bills receivables O ES S| (21,742) (338,959
Increase in deposits, prepayments e BTk
and other receivables Eofh e de s (56,883) (63,319
Increase in trade and bills payables eV e 471,596 473,953
Increase in gross amount due ENEEARI2EREEM
to customers for contract work 55,084 220,565
(Decrease)/increase TEWEIE CRd) /S8
in receipts in advance (83,007) 66,247
Increase in accrued expenses FERTRA S K b A ZR I8 00
and other payables 189,518 15,816
Increase in provision for warranties IRER LN 28 12,800 414,077
Cash generated from operations REmBES 119,003 586,139
Income tax paid ERFER 27(a) (33,794) (36,829)
Net cash generated RETEBEREFE
from operating activities 85,209 549,310

H

o

The notes on pages 91 to 219 form part of these financial 1B EF219E 2 M AUt EMBHE 2
statements. —H#B5

BRPBERARAT =% - PUEER 89



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)
RS RER (H)

(Expressed in RMB)  For the year ended 31 December 2014
(AARBREBN) BE2014512A31BIEFE

2014 2013
—E-MEF =%
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Mzt ARETRT ARETTT
Investing activities REEH
Payments for purchase of property, BEYE BEX
plant and equipment B INEN (47,693) (80,036)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BERKZHEAR
plant and equipment T {5 AR 2 Fr{S 5008
and land use rights 39,981 619
Payments for land use right premiums THE R ES NS = (7,997)
Payments for purchase of BRI ENR
short-term investments (300,000) -
Interest received B U A8 16,742 12,347
Net cash used in investing activities RETEFIARSEE (290,970) (74,667)
Financing activities MEEE
Proceeds from new bank loans LRI TE SIS FE 4,190,000 3,678,163
Repayment of bank loans BERIBITER (3,933,153) (2,466,990)
Payments for purchase of shares RIERR D BT SRS
under share award scheme R PANES 26 (7,781) (26,568)
Net decrease in advances granted BN AR BRI R R E
to the controlling equity shareholder BN B BRFURR A
of the Company and his affiliates 30(a) 1,886 1,981
Dividends paid to the equity BERARRRREARE
shareholders of the Company 29(b)(ii) (390,519) (201,374)
Borrowing costs paid BEEERA (234,471) (185,346)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BMEEE (),
financing activities ELXRSTHE (374,038) 699,856
Net (decrease)/increase in cash ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%{’%
and cash equivalents WD) EEE (579,799) 1,174,499
Cash and cash equivalents FS‘1 B1HHES
at 1 January EREZEY 21(a) 3,273,800 2,132,343
Effect of foreign exchange IEERSENTE
rate changes (31,484) (33,042)
Cash and cash equivalents R12A31BEHERSE
at 31 December KESZEEY 21(a) 2,662,517 3,273,800
The notes on pages 91 to 219 form part of these financial FNBEF2N9B ZMIFALENHEREZ
statements. — &k o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Yuanda China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 26 February 2010 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands. The shares of the Company were
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 17 May 2011. The consolidated financial
statements of the Company comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”). The
principal activities of the Group are the design, procurement,
production, sale and installation of curtain wall systems.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@  Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and related Interpretations issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board
(the “IASB”). These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, which for this
financial year and the comparative period continue to
be those of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance with transitional
and saving arrangements for Part 9 of the new Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and
Audit”, which are set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule
11 to that Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is
set out below.

B RS AR BT RE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BEHHERN  AARERER)

RAEHR

BAPEZERERAB ([ARR DR
201052 H26 A RIBEH S FH S A A
VA 22 F (1961 FE =AM - £&4R
G RIEF]) EREHSTMK L A
HNEBRAR o AARIRRMHIR2011F
S5A17TBEERBERZBRAR
(TB AT ) £ o AR BN E HFI 7
®EBEARRREWE R R (5B
[AEEDWER - AEBWHEZH
AR - KB £E  HERETHE
BBRG

EXg

=113

BUR

@ &EHEHRA

S EM B WA IIRIZ A A
F) B8 % B 765 3 5 22 R ([ B B
BHREEL ] HEGHGERE
EEER e EREES ([BER
SR EAEEE ) RONME
328 PR 8 ) B R B 75 3 o 22 )
R EA(BEREE
A1) kAR EMRE - 1F
MBHRR T A BB RBRD
EREEMRE (REHEEAR
P (BB EDIFE622F) HFE9
BB R E REA | HBE MIRE
L (R ZIEPI R 115£76
E871§) » AMHERE KB
B A2 BE AR RHEE (&
BABIE 2T ) EERKER
E) o WEFBRR I B
Pregss EMAR R LR )
F) 38 PR 4 BR M5 3T - NER PR
MEASFTTBERMMINT
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Mg R R ML (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRHERAN  AARBRER)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@)

Statement of compliance (continued)

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and
the Company. Note 2(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2014 comprise the Group.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except for
derivative financial instruments which are stated at their
fair values (see Note 2(f)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2014
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G 3R R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BEHHERN  AARERER)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in Note 3.

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued a number of amendments to
IFRSs and one new Interpretation that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Of these, the following developments are
relevant to the Group’s financial statements:

o Amendments to IAS 32, Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities

o Amendments to IAS 36, Recoverable amount
disclosures for non-financial assets

o Amendments to IAS 39, Novation of derivatives
and continuation of hedge accounting

° IFRIC 21, Levies

None of these developments have had a material effect
on how the Group’s results and financial position for
the current or prior periods have been prepared or
presented. The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

2 EXEHBEE)

(b)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Mg R R ML (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRHERAN  AARBRER)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity interests
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those equity interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those equity interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the
Group can elect to measure any non-controlling interests
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable
assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G 3R R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BEHHERN  AARERER)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from the equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s equity interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments are
made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change
in relative equity interests, but no adjustments are made
to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire equity
interests in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. Any equity interests retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss (see Note 2(k(ii), unless the investment
is classified as held-for-sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Mg R R ML (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRHERAN  AARBRER)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)

Investments in debt securities

The Group’s policies for investments in debt securities
are as follows:

Investments in debt securities are initially stated at
fair value, which is their transaction price unless it is
determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs
from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical
asset or liability or based on a valuation technique that
uses only data from observable markets. Cost includes
attributable transaction costs.

Investments in debt securities which do not fall into the
categories of investments in securities held for trading
or held-to-maturity are classified as available-for-sale
securities. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value reserve.
Interest income from debt securities calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss in
accordance with the policy set out in Notes 2(u)(v).

When the investments in debt securities are derecognised
or impaired (see Note 2(k)(i), the cumulative gain or
loss recognised in equity is reclassified to profit or
loss. Investments in debt securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to
purchase/sell the investments or they expire.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G 3R R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BEHHERN  AARERER)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially
at fair value. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement
to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
except where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting, in which case recognition of any resultant
gain or loss is in accordance with Note 2(g).

Hedging

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as
a hedge of the variability in cash flows of a recognised
asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction
or the foreign currency risk of a committed future
transaction, the effective portion of any gains or losses
on remeasurement of the derivative financial instrument
to fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
hedging reserve. The ineffective portion of any gain or
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results
in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial
liability, the associated gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to be included in the initial cost or other carrying
amount of the non-financial asset or liability.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results
in the recognition of a financial asset or a financial liability,
the associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss in the same period or periods during which
the asset acquired or liability assumed affects profit
or loss (such as when interest income or expense is
recognised).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Mg R R ML (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRHERAN  AARBRER)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@)

Hedging (continued)

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the
preceding two policy statements, the associated gain or
loss is reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the same
period or periods during which the hedged forecast
transaction affects profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised, or the entity revokes designation of the
hedge relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is
still expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that
point remains in equity until the transaction occurs and it
is recognised in accordance with the above policy. If the
hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place,
the cumulative unrealised gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss immediately.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
Note 2(k)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs
(see Note 2(w)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G 3R R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BEHHERN  AARERER)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual values, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Estimated

useful lives

Plant and buildings 30 years
Machinery and equipment 15 years
Motor vehicles and other equipment 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part
is depreciated separately. Both the estimated useful life
of an asset and its residual value are reviewed annually.
No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress until it is completed and ready for its intended
use.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research and development activities is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

2 EXEHBEE)

(h)

M - BB KR ()

WEINEREREZ THMER
A A F AT B AME Y % -
55 K 54 TR B YRR SRR fih

STRIGBEE(E) ¢
)
fERER
BB RIEF 304
2R 7% 154
RE R E AR 54

WY% - BERZEEE S
DHAERFHTR - AJZE
ENRAGRAEEESRE
o MEBLES AN
E-BENBTUFERFHRK
HFHREBEHASFR - £
BEIRETIRAERERS
Al » SWAEHREMGTE o

HEE RS

MEEHNFAL IR EELR
R R

HEEE

1 75 % 181 7 °E 2 R MY A R R
RHpEHNEER —BREEE
S IREE AR Rk — &
B QAL (B A
RPI—FERXZ)BREES
HE - BRABENRYLTHAR
HORHEET MAWMZKER
HRGAEHEERAELA -

BRPBERARAT =% - PUEER

99



100

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Mg R R ML (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEHEHIN

2

MARBRER)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

LLeased assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or
loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

Payments made on the acquisition of land held
under an operating lease are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
(see Note 2(k)(ii). Amortisation is charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G 3R R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(Br=AEEBEIN  UARERER)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt securities
and receivables

Investments in debt securities and receivables
that are stated at cost or amortised cost or are
classified as available-for-sale securities are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
and

— significant changes in the market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRHERAN  AARBRER)

102

the receivable’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these receivables),
where the effect of discounting is material.
This assessment is made collectively
where these receivables share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for receivables which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for receivables
with credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the
receivable’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G 3R R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BEHHERN  AARERER)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EAEHBEE)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued) k) EBEREGE)
() Impairment of investments in debt securities () REBEFHRIRER
and receivables (continued) Rim{E (&)

-  For available-for-sale securities, the — mMAEHEEESEMm
cumulative loss that has been recognised in 5 ERAREE
the fair value reserve is reclassified to profit or WHRZETEETY
loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that EHoBEEER-
is recognised in profit or loss is the difference RERER 2 RET
between the acquisition cost and current fair B 18 & 5 A W K
value, less any impairment loss on that asset AEZHIAAEE
previously recognised in profit or loss. ZEZE5 - MNRE

A] 5E Bl B 1 18 2= B

Impairment losses in respect of available-
for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
receivables whose recoveries are considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded
using an allowance account. When the Group
is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against
the receivable directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRHERAN  AARBRER)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EXRSHBEGE)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued) K EBEREGE)
(i) Impairment of other assets (i) HMFERE
Internal and external sources of information are REBREREEHARER
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to D R SN E R AR - DA
identify indications that the following assets may WENATEERRFER
be impaired or an impairment loss previously BEIR - kR ERER
recognised no longer exists or may have BEEBRETBFESLA]
decreased: BEE AR
- property, plant and equipment; - WE BEREE
—  pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified - SBRABREKLEM
as being held under an operating lease; and EFAMEE LI
ETEfHHER
—  investment in a subsidiary in the Company’s —  AREFBRRE
statement of financial position. ARKTE A THEE °
If any such indication exists, the asset’s B REMZETR - A
recoverable amount is estimated. ERHFAEENTRE 2
gﬁ o

104

- Calculation of recoverable amount

—  AEAKEIZE

The recoverable amount of an asset is the BEMAKE &8
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal RARBERHEE
and value in use. In assessing value in A A R R EE
use, the estimated future cash flows are MEENREE -

discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current

ERHEEREE
B 2RRRER

market assessments of the time value of MGEHEKRKHEE
money and the risks specific to the asset. B8R EERERR

Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BEHHERN  AARERER)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EBREHBERAE)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued) k) EBEREGE)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued) (i) HMBFEREZ)
Recognition of impairment losses —  BERREER
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or WEESNEFER
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or CEEBMAIRR
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, BERBER KL S

exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measureable) or value in
use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRHERAN  AARBRER)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Impairment of assets (continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with IAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year
(see Notes 2(k)(i) and 2(k)(ii)).

Inventories

Inventories record the cost of raw materials waiting to be
assigned to specific construction contracts. Inventories
are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
The cost is calculated at acquisition or direct production
cost. The cost of inventories includes design costs,
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
production overheads. The net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated cost of completion.

When inventories are assigned to specific construction
contracts, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in the year in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down
of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the year the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the year in which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G 3R R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BEHHERN  AARERER)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see Note 2(k)(i)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,
the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see Note 2(k(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically
negotiated with a customer for the construction of an
asset or a group of assets, where the customer is able
to specify the major structural elements of the design.
The accounting policy for contract revenue is set out
in Note 2(u)(i). When the outcome of a construction
contract can be estimated reliably, contract costs are
recognised as an expense by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract at the end of the reporting
period. When it is probable that total contract costs
will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss
is recognised as an expense immediately. When the
outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract costs are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(0)

Construction contracts (continued)

Construction contracts in progress at the end of the
reporting period are recorded at the net amount of
costs incurred plus recognised profit less recognised
losses and progress billings, and are presented in the
statement of financial position as the “Gross amount due
from customers for contract work” (as an asset) or the
“Gross amount due to customers for contract work” (as
a liability), as applicable. Progress billings not yet paid
by the customer are presented as “Trade receivables
for contract work” under “Trade and bills receivables”.
Amounts received before the related work is performed
are presented as “Receipts in advance for contract
work” under “Receipts in advance”.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value, and are subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BEHERN  AARERER)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees of the Group.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the
effect would be material, these amounts are stated
at their present values.

The Group’s contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans are charged to profit or loss
when incurred, except to the extent that they
are included in the cost of inventories not yet
recognised as an expense.

Share-based payments

The shares awarded under the share award
scheme are acquired from open market. The
net consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs, is presented as
“Shares held under share award scheme” and
deducted from equity.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEHEHIN

2

MAR®RER)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n

Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

Share-based payments (continued)

For shares granted under the share award
scheme, the fair value of shares granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is based on the closing price
of the Company’s shares on grant date plus any
directly attributable incremental costs. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the shares,
the total fair value of the shares is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the shares will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of shares
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to profit or
loss for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of shares that vest with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve.

When the awarded shares are transferred to the
awardees upon vesting, the related weighted
average acquisition cost of the awarded shares
vested are credited to “Shares held under share
award scheme”, and the grant date fair value of
the awarded shares vested are debited to the
capital reserve. The difference between the related
weighted average acquisition cost and the grant
date fair value of the awarded shares vested is
transferred to retained profits directly.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BEHERN  AARERER)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

("

Employee benefits (continued)

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that they relate to business combinations, or items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRRHERAN  AARBRER)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in
the future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B A 3R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BEHHERN  AARERER)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRRHERAN  AARBRER)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

- the same taxable entity; or

= different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B A 3R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRAEEBEIN  UARBRER)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss
as follows:

(i) Contract revenue

When the outcome of a construction contract can
be estimated reliably, revenue from a fixed price
contract is recognised using the percentage of
completion method, measured by reference to the
percentage of contract costs incurred to date to
estimated total contract costs for the contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of contract costs
incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.

(ii) Service income
Service income from the rendering of services

is recognised when the related services are
rendered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRRHERAN  AARBRER)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Sale of raw materials

Other income is recognised when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the raw
materials have been transferred to the customers.
Other income excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any sales
discounts. No other income is recognised if there
are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of
the consideration due, the possible return of raw
materials, or continuing management involvement
with the raw materials.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BEHERN  AARERER)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Revenue recognition (continued)

(vi) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when there
is reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the
same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the
asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated into the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that
are stated at fair value are translated into the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value
was measured.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRRHERAN  AARBRER)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

\)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The results of operations which have a functional
currency other than RMB, the Group’s presentation
currency, are translated into RMB at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Statement of financial position
items are translated into RMB at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale
are interrupted or completed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRAEEBEIN  UAARBRER)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EBEAREHBEKE)
(x)  Related parties (x) FEEEEATL
(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s @ fHEBLATAL BIEZAL
family, is related to the Group if that person: HEZA T ZAREREE
A Fans
()  has control or joint control over the Group; () = ek K Hl A
ESE
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or i) HEAEEBERY
25
(i) is a member of the key management (i) BAAEBEKAE
personnel of the Group or the Group’s HARNFEFEEE
parent. B8 o
() An entity is related to the Group if any of the (o) (WFFE THIERGAL - A
following conditions applies: HEE B ARE B H R ¢
()  The entity and the Group are members of the () ZERBEAXNEES
same group. B—SB<zKER
E—J o
(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture iy —"XREBRS—E
of the other entity (or an associate or joint eI ENasa
venture of a member of a group of which the BhrE(KS—F
other entity is a member). BAEKERAIZS
ETIKEREZ
B AR A & D
IR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

2

AN

AR RER)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)  Related parties (continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those

family members who may be expected to influence, or

be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B A 3R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRAEEBEIN  UARBRER)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

v)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRRHERAN  AARBRER)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Notes 26 and 31 contain information about the assumptions
and the risk factors relating to fair value of shares granted
under share award scheme and financial instruments. Other
key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(@  Contract revenue

As explained in the accounting policies set out in Notes
2(0) and 2(u)(i), revenue and profit recognition on an
uncompleted project is dependent on estimating the
total outcome of the construction contract, as well as
the work done to date. Based on the Group’s recent
experience and the nature of the activity undertaken
by the Group, the Group makes estimates of the point
at which it considers the work is sufficiently advanced
such that the costs to complete and revenue can be
reliably estimated. As a result, until this point is reached
the gross amount due from customers for contract work
as disclosed in Note 18 will not include profit which
the Group may eventually realise from the work done
to date. In addition, actual outcomes in terms of total
cost or revenue may be higher or lower than estimated
at the end of the reporting period, which would affect
the revenue and profit recognised in future years as an
adjustment to the amounts recorded to date.

(b)  Provision for warranties

As explained in Note 28, the Group makes provisions
under the warranties it gives on construction of curtain
wall systems contracts, taking into account the Group’s
recent claim experience. As the curtain wall systems
required by the customers become more complex,
it is probable that the recent claim experience is not
indicative of future claims that the Group will receive in
respect of past construction of curtain wall systems. Any
increase or decrease in the provision would affect profit
or loss in future years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B A 3R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BEHHERN  AARERER)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

(©)

Impairment of receivables

The management maintains an allowance for doubtful
accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability
of the customers and debtors to make the required
payments. The management bases the estimates on
the assessment of recoverability of individual customer
or debtor balance, customer and debtor credit-
worthiness, and historical write-off experience. If the
financial condition of the customers or debtors were
to deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher than
estimated.

Impairment of long-lived assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
a long-lived asset may not be recoverable, the asset
may be considered “impaired”, and an impairment loss
may be recognised in accordance with accounting
policy for impairment of long-lived assets as described
in Note 2(k)(ii). These assets are tested for impairment
whenever the events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their recorded carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. When such a decline has occurred, the
carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In determining the
value in use, expected future cash flows generated by
the asset are discounted to their present value, which
requires significant judgement relating to the level of
revenue and amount of operating costs. The Group uses
all readily available information in determining an amount
that is a reasonable approximation of the recoverable
amount, including estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of the level
of revenue and amount of operating costs. Changes in
these estimates could have a significant impact on the
carrying value of the assets and could result in additional
impairment charge or reversal of impairment in future
years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRRHERAN  AARBRER)

3

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

(€)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets, after taking into account the estimated
residual values, if any. The management reviews the
estimated useful lives and residual values, if any, of
the assets regularly in order to determine the amount
of depreciation expense to be recorded during any
reporting period. The determination of the useful lives
and residual values, if any, are based on historical
experience with similar assets and taking into account
anticipated technological changes. The depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
and deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the deferred tax assets can be utilised.
In determining the amount of deferred tax assets to be
recognised, significant judgement is required relating to
the timing and level of future taxable profits, after taking
into account future tax planning strategies. The amount
of deferred tax assets recognised at future dates are
adjusted if there are significant changes from these
estimates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BEHERN  AARERER)

4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(@)

Turnover

The principal activities of the Group are the design,
procurement, production, sale and installation of curtain
wall systems.

Turnover represents contract revenue derived from the
design, procurement, production, sale and installation of
curtain wall systems.

The Group’s customer base is diversified. There was no
customer with transactions that exceeded 10% of the
Group’s turnover for the years ended 31 December 2014
and 2013. Details of concentrations of credit risk arising
from the Group’s largest customers are set out in Note
31(a).

Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities
are disclosed below.

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by geographical
locations of the construction contracts. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has presented
the following six reportable segments: Northeast China,
North China, East China, West China, South China
and Overseas. No operating segments have been
aggregated to form the following reportable segments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEHEHIN

4

MAR®RER)

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)

Northeast China: comprises construction
contracts carried out in the northeastern region
of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
which includes Liaoning, Jilin, Heilongjiang,
Shandong, Henan and Inner Mongolia provinces
and autonomous region.

North China: comprises construction contracts
carried out in the northern region of the PRC,
which includes Hebei and Shanxi provinces,
Beijing and Tianjin.

East China: comprises construction contracts
carried out in the eastern region of the PRC, which
includes Jiangsu, Zhejiang, Anhui and Jiangxi
provinces, and Shanghai.

West China: comprises construction contracts
carried out in the western and northwestern
regions of the PRC, which include Sichuan,
Yunnan, Guizhou, Hubei, Shaanxi, Ningxia, Gansu,
Qinghai and Xinjiang provinces and autonomous
regions, and Chongging.

South China: comprises construction contracts
carried out in the southern region of the PRC,
which includes Guangdong, Hunan, Fujian, Hainan
and Guangxi provinces and autonomous region.

Overseas: comprises construction contracts
carried out outside of the PRC.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BEHERN  AARERER)

4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 EEBERDEHRE (2)

(b)  Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purpose of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segements, the Group’s most senior executive

SEHRE  RERAR

SEHE D BRIRERED
BESEERME - A%
BR&ETHREEABRNI

management monitors the results, assets and TEAEEE KA AR &P
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment BENEE BEERE
on the following bases: f& :

Segment assets include all assets with the
exception of property, plant and equipment,
lease prepayments, deferred tax assets and
other corporate assets. Segment liabilities include
trade and bills payables, gross amount due to
customers for contract work, receipts in advance,
accrued expenses and other payables and
provision for warranties managed directly by the
segments.

BRZE - BB KR EA R
BAAS BECHRBEE
REMABEEIN - D8
BEBRMEEE - D&
BERRESRNREE
NEE BNEFART
TRABEE - TAMGRIR - R
7 32 B EL A A5 BRUA B %
Fo M EEEENRER
e

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the WA K G Jh2& 0] B ¥R
reportable segments with reference to revenue DEEENRAREESE
generated by those segments and the expenses NAXMAOBRZEZE D

incurred by those segments. No significant inter-
segment sales have occurred for the years ended
31 December 2014 and 2013. The Group’s
other operating expenses, such as selling and

BB o A = 20144 %2013
F12A31HILLFE @ Wk
SRR EAR D IBREHE
g AEEMHMEER

administrative expenses and finance costs, are S (HEERITBASY R
not measured under individual segments. The BEKA)  WARRBEIL
measure used for reporting segment result is gross DESTEHE o AR B

profit.

EEFBFTERER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRRHERAN  AARBRER)

4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 EEENRDERE (&)
(o)  Segment reporting (continued) (b) DEIRE(E)
() Segment results, assets and liabilities ) H"BER BERAR
(continued) (%)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable B ZE 2014 F & 20134 12
segments as provided to the Group’s most A31BIEFE - BERH
senior executive management for the purposes of FAREEZSITHEIEA
resource allocation and assessment of segment EUNBERETEDE
performance for the years ended 31 December KRB AREE A RHHH
2014 and 2013 is set out below. BRESIT -
2014
0145
Northeast North East West South

China China China China China  Overseas Total
Rt £ 3 £ g i) 3t
RMB'000  RMB'00  RMB'000  RMB'00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETZ  ARETR

Revenue from extemal RENGEPHBA
customersand reportable — RAEHAIRA

segment revenue 1855705 1840726 2,362,109 639,993 1210995 2,129,125 10,038,653
Reportable segment PR

gross proft 286,270 434,019 343,760 80,529 153,776 182,249 1,480,603
Reportable segment assets  AIEHNTTEE 2606086 1703618 2402532 1,136,041 1414563 2452838 11,715,658

Reportable segrent PEEvE
liabilties 1279805 1,054,713 1,739,490 611,288 858,416 1,691,799 7,285,511
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRAEEBEIN  UAARBRER)

4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 EEIENDEERE (&)
(o)  Segment reporting (continued) () I3RS ()
() Segment results, assets and liabilities ) H"BER BERAR
(continued) (&)
2013
135
Northeast North East West South

China China China China China  Overseas Total
38 2 £ i i A fa3t
RMB0OO  RWMB0OO  RMB0OO  RWMB000  RMBIOO0  RMBOO0  RMBIO0O
ARETL  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR

Revenue from extemal RENPERHIRA
customersand reportable R EFAIHA

segment revenue 2211568 1626211 2438917 004004 1421363 2420341 10,872404
Reportable segment ERAGER|/

gross profit/foss) (Z5) 492,139 289,189 497,988 45,214 219,371 (183709  12360,262
Reportable segment assets  AIERNTEE 2,423,611 1347030 2,503,711 1,030,787 1262960 2443454 11,040,653
Reportable segment iabities  FTEHATEE 1,184,268 877622 1,687,216 650,568 80798 1634474 6,792,083
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(5B ERIN AR RER)

4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 EEERDEHRE ()

(b)  Segment reporting (continued)

(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment assets (i) TTHEISBEIERAEREH
and liabilities EEEGE S
2014 2013
2014 £ 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets A R EEE 11,715,658 11,040,553
Property, plant and equipment  ¥13 « B &% 794,582 829,175
Lease prepayments TEES 551,708 597,338
Deferred tax assets EERIAE 289,696 237,903
Unallocated head office and ROBCAEES N AT B E
corporate assets 1,545,675 1,677,495
Elimination of receivables 7 BB R B L AE ER
between segments, and U 8
segments and head office (456,676) (447,940)
Consolidated total assets SfteEE 14,440,643 13,934,524
Liabilities =8
Reportable segment liabilities EE S = 7,235,511 6,792,083
Bank loans RITER 3,320,000 3,063,153
Income tax payable S TS HL 207,994 190,963
Deferred tax liabilities BRETFIABE 2,067 1,768
Unallocated head office and AOREX R ATEE
corporate liabilities 343,473 227,761
Elimination of payables 73 B E K BB B 48 EE
between segments, and FEAS SR 8E
segments and head office (456,676) (447,940)
Consolidated total liabilities afftRarE 10,652,369 9,827,788
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRAEEBEIN  UAARBRER)

4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b)  Segment reporting (continued)

(iii)

Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of the Group’s (i) revenue
from external customers and (ii) property, plant
and equipment and lease prepayments (the
“specified non-current assets”). The geographical
location of customers is based on the location
at which the construction contracts are carried
out. The geographical location of the specified
non-current assets is determined based on the
physical location of the assets. For overseas
construction contracts, the Group further divided
the customers based on regions. No individual
country has construction contracts generated
revenue exceeding 10% of the Group’s turnover
for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013,
and accordingly, the management considers the
current classification of customers into regions is
sufficient.

B RE

TRETEAAREE () R
BANBE P EIWA R (i)
¥ BEELZENUEE
NE2(EEFREBE
ElMHBRuENER -
BERMIBA B THARIRE
TEEARAEE S ©
EEIEMBE E R HIRA
E IR B ER BRI
o o BBINTIES LM
T AKEE Sk
EoEP - BE214 K
2018312 H31H Ik F
B BEGRNEREER
BiEARNKREEASEE
BERE10% A E - At
EEERAERNEZPH
BHOEBERE °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRRHERAN  AARBRER)

4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 EEERDEHRE ()

(o)  Segment reporting (continued) () PE3RE (E)
(i) Geographic information (continued) (i) METEE(E)
()  The Group’s revenue from external i) AEERBINIFR
customers: FHIA :
2014 2013
2014 £ 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

The PRC (excluding Bl (N EFEEAS RORRT)

Hong Kong and Macau)  (5Xffih)

(Place of domicile) 7,909,528 8,452,063
Europe region BN [= 607,458 735,430
Australia region SR b [ 919,996 615,843
Far East region IR [ 127,997 342,505
Middle East region MR ER (= 156,273 321,727
Americas region MR 223,662 309,105
Others Hih 93,739 95,731

10,038,653 10,872,404
(i)  The Group’s specified non-current assets: iy AEEBEEIFER
EEE
2014 2013
2014 F 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
The PRC (excluding P (TREEEKRF)

Hong Kong and Macau)  (5:ffh)

(Place of domicile) 1,329,844 1,400,341
Overseas MBI 16,446 26,172

1,346,290 1,426,513
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

OTHER REVENUE AND NET (LOSS)/INCOME 5

Other revenue
Government grants
Rental income from operating leases

Other net (loss)/income

Net income from provision of repairs
and maintenance services

Net gain from sale of raw materials

Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment and land use rights

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(@  Finance costs:

Interest on bank advances wholly
repayable within five years
Bank charges and other finance costs

Total borrowing costs

Interest income

Net foreign exchange loss

Forward foreign exchange contracts:
cash flow hedges, reclassified from
equity (Note 11(b))

(BBEEESN - UARKRER)

Hayg A R H AR (BE) WA
2014 2013
2014 5 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Haug A
LSRN 28,840 34,043
LEAERES A 3,507 2,572
32,347 36,615
HAbFE (BE) WA
RS RIRE R
EopEleny 4,194 6,405
SHE RV R F W 26 2,242
HEYWE  BEREEAR T
FRERF (B518), Ikas (5,062) 1
(842) 8,648

6 BiATFE

BATAE R, (Gt A) AT & B
‘&S

@ BERKA :

2014 2013
2014 £ 2013 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFTT
ARAFREZHEEN
HRITRFKAAE 194,669 161,002
RITUE R B Ath Bl & AR 36,912 29,297
BIEERA 231,581 190,299
FLEWA (16,742) (12,263)
SNEE B8 5 5E 56,998 86,874
REVNESR :
ReREEH - A=
BB (MEE110) (37,439) (104,891)
234,398 160,019

BRPBERARAT =% - PUEER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B RHERAN  AARBRER)
6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6
(@  Finance costs: (continued) ()]

No borrowing costs have been capitalised for the year
ended 31 December 2014 (2013: RMBNIil).

(b)  Staff costs': (b)

e TEREMER
A 5 RE (AR KA B R

Salaries, wages and other benefits
Contributions to defined contribution

retirement plans (Note (i) (Hiaz ()
Equity-settled share-based payment 75 B8 % (7 22 Eh 5121 #9 LA
expenses in respect of share award IR ARAEE DAIK(S -3k
scheme (Note 26) R (f17E26)
Note:

(i) The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes managed
by the local government authorities, whereby these
subsidiaries are required to contribute to the schemes
at rates ranging from 12% to 21% of the employees’
basic salaries. Employees of these subsidiaries are
entitled to retirement benefits, calculated based on a
percentage of the average salaries level in the PRC,
from the above mentioned retirement schemes at
their normal retirement age.

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group
established outside of the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes managed by
the respective local government authorities, whereby
these subsidiaries are required to contribute to the
respective schemes at rates stipulated by the relevant
rules and regulations of the respective jurisdictions.

The Group does not have any further material

obligations for payments of other retirement benefits
beyond the above annual contributions.
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RNEE2014F 12 A31 B IE5F
B EEER A E AL (2013

F:AREBEZIT) -
BITRA":
2014 2013
2014 F 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
964,066 976,731
103,777 103,191
15,277 12,088
1,083,120 1,092,010
Hiaz -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R 3R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(Br=AEEBEIN  UARBRER)

6  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6 BATFIBE(E)
()  Otheritems: ) EAfthIER :
2014 2013
2014 F 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Depreciation and amortisation® PrE R (MIEE13 & 14)
(Notes 13 and 14) 65,021 68,042
Impairment losses on trade and other & 5 K H A fEY ORI EE R
receivables (Notes 19(b) and 20(a)) (B15£ 19(b) K 20(a) 118,993 83,701
Operating lease charges in respect AR+ - HiERETF
of land, plant and buildings, motor VRE M B R A R AR
vehicles and other equipment” e’ 45,725 53,545
Auditors’ remuneration: ZER %
— statutory audit services — ETEZERTS 7,300 7,000
— other services — Hth A7 3,507 3,329
Research and development costs” FFEEp AN * 375,130 386,139
Increase in provision for warranties® (RS E N (f15228)
(Note 28) 104,132 90,690
Cost of inventories" (Note 17(b)) BFERA (Kt 170)) 8,558,050 9,512,152

? HZE2014F12 A31 B LFE
TEXRABEEIRAE - I
EREHEAY  KEHER
¥ RERARRERES
AR AARE 7204 BE T
(20134 : ARKET7206EH &
JL) c M bl EINET AL £
K TRE6(0) D B I B & 48
P % o

Cost of inventories includes RMB720.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: RMB720.6
million), relating to staff costs, depreciation and
amortisation expenses, operating lease charges,
research and development costs and provision for
warranties, which amount is also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately above
or in Note 6(b) for each of these types of expenses.

FRPBERA AT =% - PUEER 135



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEIEEN  UARBABA)
7 INCOME TAX 7 Fir
(@ Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss ()]
represents:
Current taxation (Note 27(a)): BNEA®LIE (HaE27(@))
— PRC Corporate Income Tax — PR FTISHE
— Overseas income tax —BINTIBAR
Deferred taxation (Note 27(b)): EAERRIA (et 27(b)
- Origination and reversal —ERERNES
of temporary differences & el
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (b)
profit at applicable tax rates:
Profit before taxation F AT A
Expected tax on profit before R R A R R A
taxation, calculated at the BRABEGERBA
rates applicable to profits A ETEEATR I8

136

in the jurisdictions concerned
(Notes (i), (i, (iii) and (iv))

Tax effect of non-deductible
expenses (Note (v))

Tax effect of unused tax losses
not recognised

Tax concessions (Note (vi))

Income tax

(R @) ~ (@) ~ (i) & (i)

NRHBRA RS EE

(B1eE ()
REERREBHIAERE

MRBEE
MRS (A4 (vi))
FTiE®
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BHBERAAEH

2014 2013

2014 F 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
48,489 13,999
2,336 23,420
50,825 37,419
(40,401) (32,286)
10,424 5,133

IR A S B R E A R 5T E

SRTABAERR

2014 2013
2014 & 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETIT
61,531 32,681
29,333 12,409
22,157 15,733
23,961 32,086
(65,027) (55,095)
10,424 5,133




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R 3R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(Br=AEEBEIN  UARBRER)

7 INCOME TAX (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting

profit at applicable tax rates: (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i

(ii)

(iv)

The Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to Hong
Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% for the year ended
31 December 2014 (2013: 16.5%). No provision
for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made, as
the Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in Hong Kong did not have assessable
profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year
ended 31 December 2014 (2013: RMBNil).

The Company and a subsidiary of the Group
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and the British
Virgin Islands, respectively, are not subject to any
income tax pursuant to the rules and regulations of
their respective countries of incorporation.

The subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC
are subject to PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of 25%
for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: 25%).

The subsidiaries of the Group incorporated in
countries other than the PRC (including Hong Kong),
the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands, are
subject to income tax rates ranging from 8.5% to 35%
for the year ended 31 December 2014 pursuant to the
rules and regulations of their respective countries of
incorporation (2013: 8.5% to 34%).

7 BB (E)

b) BEFAXEZERREFTEN
SEHAEREER (&)

@M

(i)

(v)

PIN/NCT )N Ei A7 s 2 a1 AVAE VPN
SEM B R RIRE R 2014 F
12431 B IEFE AR 16.5%
(20134 : 16.5% ) HOTH R B4
BBEFUSH - BRARAT KA
EEREBEMRAKTBA
FIREZE2014F12 A31 A1k
FEMEESNESFERN
FERFLFE - BRI S S T
BHAHREMRE (2013F : AR
BEZIT) o

RIBE S BEMARZBERD
BMAIRER - DRIRFEASE
EREBRZ RS R
B AN X B R AN R B — Y
RABAEBNERAEH

ANEBE R BB A RRNE
201412 A31HIEFEA
1225% (2013 4F : 25%) K
R B EFTEH o

RIEEE B MK ER AR
Bl RER - AEERFE (S
BEE) HESHSRAEBE
B S LASNB SR kB 7 A Ff
BARIEREZE2014F12 A
31 B IEFEANIK8.5% % 35%
TENMEHRBMATER
(20134F : 8.5% = 34%) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(5B 4EHM

7

AARBRER)
INCOME TAX (continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting

profit at applicable tax rates: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(v)

(vi)

The amounts mainly comprised non-deductible
entertainment and other expenses in excess of the
tax deductibility allowances under the PRC tax laws
and regulations.

One of the subsidiaries of the Group established
in the PRC has obtained approval from the tax
bureau to be taxed as an enterprise with advanced
and new technologies for the calendar years from
2012 to 2016 and therefore enjoys a preferential
PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of 15% for the year
ended 31 December 2014 (2013: 15%). In addition
to the preferential PRC Corporate Income Tax rate,
this subsidiary entitles an additional tax deductible
allowance amounted to 50% of the qualified research
and development costs incurred in the PRC by this
subsidiary.
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BIAR X B E R R R ER
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Hiat - (&)

W)

(vi)

ZECHETEBEBBET
BiERERIA T AR &
AV AT IR AREE T E At A7 -

AREBHA-—RFPEMBER
AIEEEHBE HitEE 2012
FE2016 F ILHEFHIEA
BT EBNTIE - K
HZE2014F12 A1 BILFE
ZE15% /M B EREH
BEB K (20134 : 15%) °
RTEZEBRBEMBHE
BRI ZMBRARE
BREXNHEEENEGE
B 38 B AN 9 50% hN T H1 B
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRAEEBEIN  UAARBRER)

8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8 EEME
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 78 of RIEHES A THENIE 622 ZMi & 11
Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance FBT78F BREF BB AR EHE
(Cap. 622), with reference to section 161 of the predecessor NEF161 EHENESNEFBN
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows: o
2014
N14F
Salaries,
allowances

and benefits ~ Retirement
in kind scheme Share-based
Directors’ #4+ contributions payments
fees BEE  BAGHE  Subtotal  BURGE Total
E=he  BUEA 3% Nt BRER &5t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTR AR¥TR ARETR ARMTR ARETR

(Note i)

(W)
Executive directors 7ES
Mr Kang Baohua REERE - 183 3 214 - 214
Mr Tian Shouliang BFREE - 193 3 24 - 224
Mr Guo Zhongshan Poilks - 193 3 24 - 224
Mr Wang Yijun IFERE - 181 3 212 - 212
Mr Wang Lihui TiERE - 180 3 211 - 211
Mr Zhang Lei ey - 179 3 210 564 774
Independent non-executive directors BUKHTES
Mr Poon Chiu Kwok BB 195 - - 195 - 195
Mr Woo Kar Tung, Raymond HRREE 195 - - 195 - 195
Mr Pang Chung Fai, Benny YHELE 195 - - 195 - 195

585 1,109 186 1,880 564 2,444
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRRHERAN  AARBRER)

8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8 EEME(E)

2013
20134
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement

in kind scheme

Directors’ 4 - contributions
fees AR RRGTE Total
ik EMER R Fae

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTE ARBTT ARETRT

Executive directors HITESE
Mr Kang Baohua REELE - 311 19 330
Mr Tian Shouliang HTREEE - 347 29 376
Mr Guo Zhongshan RIS - 344 29 373
Mr Wang Yijun ITEELE - 302 29 331
Mr Wang Lihui TUREEE - 327 29 356
Mr Zhang Lei RE T4 (20134

(appointed on 4 June 2013) 6 A4 BEZT) = 132 17 149
Mr Wu Qingguo REB LA (R20135F

(resigned on 29 May 2013) 5 A 29 HEHE) - 124 7 131

Independent non-executive FIFHITES

directors
Mr Poon Chiu Kwok qiralEias 156 - - 156
Mr Woo Kar Tung, Raymond ARIRCE 156 - - 156
Mr Pang Chung Fai, Benny THEEE 156 = = 156
468 1,887 159 2,514
There were no amounts paid during the year to the directors AEERFANMERESHBSNES
in connection with their retirement from employment or SR =BT /) 0 18 55 00 BE Y 22 Bh i <2 A+t
compensation for loss of office with the Group, or inducement ERIFIE - £ BESENEKR
to join. There was no arrangement under which a director BREEMME B THE

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BEHERN  AARERER)

8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8 EZMe (&)

Note: Kt

(i) This represents the estimated value of awarded shares 0] IR ARG 2 D RE T8I T
granted to a director under the Company’s share award EEVRERGD 2 hETEE - =6
scheme. The value of the awarded shares is measured B&AD 2 (BB THHeBE & 2(r) (i) Frak A~ 5
according to the Group’s accounting policies for share- BEARBARD BERNRZ €5TK
based payments as set out in Note 2(r)(ii). The details of B8 BEEYRINZEHE B
these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and TEFT I SR B AR (5 2 2 B
number of awarded shares granted, are disclosed under the BEREEEREP R EENE
section “Share award scheme” in the Report of the Board of ] —& R PtEE26 -

Directors and Note 26.

9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9 ReHMA L
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, none hamaHMALTF  BEEAAL
(2013: none) is a director of the Company. The aggregate of (20134 : M) RESF - WIHFBFENZ
the emoluments in respect of the five individuals (2013: five) AZAL(20134F : HR)KEENAR%E
who are not directors are as follows: (N

2014 2013

2014 F 20134

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETTT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind i R EEYERT 7,957 7,984
Discretionary bonuses B IBIEAL 101 149
Retirement scheme contributions RARGTEIE R 1,367 1,216

9,425 9,349
The emoluments of the employees who are not directors and AEBRAAZETMELIEEEZ A
who are amongst the five highest paid individuals of the Group TR BN T AT EE -

are within the following bands:

2014 2013

2014 £ 20134
(In Hong Kong dollar (‘HK$")) (BrBxD))
2,000,001 — 2,500,000 2,000,001 - 2,500,000 4 3
2,500,001 - 3,000,000 2,500,001 - 3,000,000 1 2
No emoluments were paid or payable to these employees FRIE M Z SR B TN SR
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as B & VE & N B2 3 hn BR AN &= B 14 9 42 )
compensation for loss of office during the year. HAER/REBABFE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRRHERAN  AARBRER)

10 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 10 AQFRRESFE
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
AABBRREEAFAED BIRIEES

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of BARES5HEIL(20134F « BEA
the Company includes a loss of RMB5.5 million (2013: a loss R¥548ET) ' EFRARBRES
of RMBS5.4 million) which has been dealt with in the financial ek (RHIEE29()) °

statements of the Company (see Note 29(a)).

11 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 11 H2mls
(@ Tax effects relating to each component of other @ BHEEMEEWESEKBS
comprehensive income WG E
2014 2013
2014 F 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARBTTT

Exchange differences BEREEENERZR

on translation into (FiAn &k Fitz)

presentation currency

(before and after tax) 45,746 72,357
Cash flow hedge: Bemain :

net movement in the hedging reserve HrEEEE

— Before tax amount —HiA&% (43,385) 37,093

— Tax benefit/(expense) ~HBER/(AX) 11,093 (9,620)

— Net of tax amount —FHiE (32,292) 27,473
Other comprehensive income Hith 2 e 13,454 99,830
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRAEEBEIN  UAARBRER)

11 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued) 11 Htb2EWE (F)
(o) Components of other comprehensive income, including b) ABBEEMEMEWSARKID
reclassification adjustments BREEFHEARE
2014 2013
2014 £ 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR¥TR

Cash flow hedges: WEmELE I+
Effective portion of changes in NG A FERR Y ETH

fair value of hedging instruments TERARBEEZS)

recognised during the year B SER D (5,946) 141,984
Reclassification adjustments for ER RS ER

amounts transferred to profit DB (Hit6(a)

or loss (Note 6(a)) (37,439) (104,891)
Net deferred tax credited/(charged)  REMEE ST A~

to other comprehensive income (?DB,%) A ZE A5 T F e

(Note 27(b)) (Hi:z27(b) 11,093 (9,620)
Net movement in the hedging reserve A E th 2w WS FE AT

during the year recognised FRE P RFEEENFRE

in other comprehensive income (32,292) 27,473

12 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 BREARRBERF
(@)  Basic earnings per share @ BREARREF

The basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 HE2014F 12 A31H IEFE
December 2014 is calculated based on the profit EREARRFBRBEARRFBZR
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company B FE ARE256H & T
of RMB25.6 million (2013: RMB104.4 million) and the (20134 : AR¥104.48&7T)
weighted average of 6,188,268,000 ordinary shares RRAEEBDEITINE T
(2013: 6,203,764,000 ordinary shares) in issue during 6,188,268,000 % & i % (2013
the year. £ : 6,203,764,000 f% & & A% )

o

uy%—"
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRRHERAN  AARBRER)

12 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 BREARBIERF(Z)
(continued)
(@) Basic earnings per share (continued) @ EREARZRN ()
The calculation of the weighted average number of R E 22014 F K2013F 12 A
ordinary shares during the years ended 31 December 31 B IE & E R T TR
2014 and 2013 was as follows: BEr&EMT :
2014 2013
2014 5 20134
’000 ‘000
T TH%
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January 1 A1 BE TR E @A 6,178,734 6,208,734
Effect of shares purchased and BIER D BT EIEE
vested under a share award KRB DR E
scheme (Note 26) (K17#26) 9,534 (4,970)
Weighted average number of ordinary 5 12 A 31 H #1044
shares at 31 December TEAEE 6,188,268 6,203,764
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b)) EEREERT
There were no dilutive potential shares outstanding R E =20144F % 2013F 12 A
during the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013. 31BEILFEREABEE SN
FERIBR D BEATIESN ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRAEEBEIN  UAARBRER)

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 Y% - MERRE

The Group PN
Motor
vehicles
Machinery and other
Plant and and equipment  Construction
buildings  equipment BRER  inprogress Total
HERET  BERRE Akt ERIE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR
Cost: KA
At 1 January 2013 1201341810 516,191 365,914 205,217 156,875 1,244,197
Additions NE 2,334 13,265 8,298 17,835 41,732
Transfer in/{out) 8)/(1) 153,627 408 = (154,035) =
Disposals HE = (349) (7,29) - (7,645)
At 31 December 2013 R2013E12 A31 B 672,152 379,238 206,219 20,675 1,278,284
Accumulated depreciation: 2IE
At 1 January 2013 Ro013%1 1A (103,565) (168,257) (129,445) - (401,267)
Charge for the year FAHE (15,163) (18,106) (21,600) - (54,869)
Written back on disposals HERD - 315 6,712 - 7,027
At 31 December 2013 2013512 A31R (118,728) (186,048) (144,333) - (449,109)
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2013 R2013%12A31H 563,424 193,190 61,886 20,675 829,175
Cost: A :
At 1 January 2014 201451510 672,152 379,238 206,219 20,675 1,278,284
Exchange adjustments I 7 B (545) (1,874) (13,862) - (16,281)
Additions AE 20,827 4,012 5,613 6,583 37,035
Transfer in/{out) ) /(1) 1,441 4,020 - (5,461) -
Disposals HE (1,048) (867) (5,703) (10,452) (18,070)
At 31 December 2014 12014512 A31H 692,827 384,529 192,267 11,345 1,280,968
Accumulated depreciation: e
At 1 January 2014 201451510 (118,728) (186,048) (144,333) - (449,109)
Exchange adjustments P R 78 1,212 8,624 - 9,914
Charge for the year FRHE (19,717) (16,949) (16,126) - (52,792)
Written back on disposals HEEE 251 330 5,020 = 5,601
At 31 December 2014 12014512 A31H (138,116) (201,455) (146,815) - (486,386)
Net book value: REFE
At 31 December 2014 2014612 A31 B 554,711 183,074 45,452 11,345 794,582
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRRHERAN  AARBRER)

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13 ¥ - BERREE)

At 31 December 2014, property certificates of certain MN2014412 831 B » EFHAERF
BERAARE198.78ET(20135F 12
31H : AR¥183.8 A& L)WM
RIEMEFE - Hh - AEBE 2 &
IR R BRE T S A ([ RRAR R )
EAERERSEEARET148E8
7L(2013F12 A31H : AR¥786H
BIT) MR REXM - HARREES
X ERBRREEAASER
EREMEERFAEEERIEX

properties with an aggregate net book value of RMB198.7
million (31 December 2013: RMB183.8 million) are yet to
be obtained. Of these properties, Mr Kang Baohua, the
ultimate equity shareholder of the Group, (the “Controlling
Shareholder”), has undertaken to procure the title documents
of properties with an aggregate net book value of RMB71.4
million (31 December 2013: RMB78.6 million). If these title
documents could not be obtained, the Controlling Shareholder
agreed to indemnify the Group for all the losses and damages

146

arising therefrom.

14 LEASE PREPAYMENTS 14 HBERBES
The Group
KEE
RMB’000
ARETIT

Cost: R :

At 1 January 2013 M2013F1 A1 H 650,613
Additions NE 7,597
At 31 December 2013 M2013F 12 A31H 658,210
Accumulated amortisation: S5T#Ess

At 1 January 2013 201341 A1 H (47,699)
Charge for the year F A (18,173)
At 31 December 2013 M2013F 12 A31H (60,872)
Net book value: BREFEE

At 31 December 2013 R2013FE12 A31H 597,338
Cost: A :

At 1 January 2014 R2014F1 A1H 658,210
Disposals RE (35,560)
At 31 December 2014 M2014F12 A31H 622,650
Accumulated amortisation: ZoTe -

At 1 January 2014 R2014F1 A1 H (60,872)
Charge for the year FEREH Y (12,229)
Written back on disposals H S B EE 2,159
At 31 December 2014 R2014F 12 A31H (70,942)
Net book value: BREFE

At 31 December 2014 M2014F12 A31H 551,708
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRAEEBEIN  UAARBRER)

LEASE PREPAYMENTS (continued) 14

Lease prepayments represented land use right premiums paid
by the Group for land situated in the PRC. At 31 December
2014, land use right certificates of certain land use rights with
an aggregate carrying value of RMB22.9 million (31 December
20183: RMB23.4 million) are yet to be obtained.

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY 15

Unlisted shares, at cost JE LR - A A

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the
Group.

EANEEAG=P)

BAESEASERARPEN L H
FIZTH) T E AR HES - R 2014
F12A31H  MARBRERERERA
R¥229FHE (2013412 318 ¢
AR®23ABE L) WE T HER
RER) 1 H{E FRAERE o

R—ENBLRZERE

The Company
¥ /N
2014 2013
2014 F 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETTT

27,366 12,089

TREFHHARENES BENL
BEEEAFEZMBRRER -

BRPBERARAT =% - PUEER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEHEHIN

15

MAR®RER)

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WRARER

Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium
Industry Engineering Co., Ltd.
("Shenyang Yuanda')*

EREAREIRERAH
(MEkEAl)

Shanghai Yuanda Aluminium

Industry Engineering Co., Ltd.**

FEEAREIRERAT"

Shenyang Haihui Technology
Investment Co., Ltd.*

ERERHRRERRAR"

Yuanda (UK) Co., Ltd."™*
BARBEBRAR

Shenyang Yuanda Metal Coating
Co., Ltd.”
BB BELARAT "

Place and date
of establishment/
incorporation
R/ R
K35 R AH

The PRC

17 April 1993
e

199364 R17H

The PRC

24 March 1998
H

199853 A 24

The PRC

20 April 2000
HE

20004 A20H

United Kindom!
30 April 2002
R

20024 A30R

The PRC

19 March 2003
HE

20033 A19H

15 R—AERBARZRE(E)

Proportion of ownership interest

BEERLA
Particulars of The
registered/ Group’s Held
issued and effective by the Held by
paid-up capital interest  Company subsidiaries Principal
i/ ERTR £z  HADE HHEEAF  activities
BRBRAZE ERER ®E BE  EEER
United States Dollar ~ 100% - 100% Design, procurement,
(‘USD") 323,298,200 production, sale and
323,298,200% 7T installation of
(E)) curtain wall systems
Hat R AE
HERREBRAS
RMB15,000,000 100% - 100% Design, procurement,
AR 15,000,000 production, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems
Bt B AE
HERRERRALR
RMB5,000,000 100% = 100% Purchase of materials
ARE for group companies
5,000,0007C AEBERREERME
British Pound Sterling ~~ 60% - 100% Design, procurement,
(‘GBP") 500,000 assembly, sale and
500,000 54 installation of
(T58)) curtain wall systems
RS A LR
HERRERRAL
RMB7,000,000 100% = 100% Plating and coating
NEE of metals
7,000,0007C CBEERER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WRARER

Shenyang Yuanhai Trading
Co., Ltd.™
EHREEHERAR"

Foshan Yuanda Aluminium
Industry Engineering Co., Ltd.*
BLEARETIRERAR

LLC Yuanda Curtain Wall**
BEARBERAR

Yuanda Aluminium Industry
Engineering (Macao), Ltd.™*
BABREIR(RM)ERAF™

Yuanda Australia Pty Ltd.™
BRRANEERAT

Place and date
of establishment/
incorporation
R/ R
KR A

The PRC

9 January 2004
e

200441 A9R

The PRC

9 March 2005
el

20053 H9H

Russian Federation
23 November 2005
RES

2005F11 A 23R

Macau

22 June 2006
2

200646 A 22 H

Australia

5 September 2006
BART
20069 H5H

Particulars of
registered/
issued and
paid-up capital
i/ ERTR
BRRARE

RMB1,000,000
AKH1,000,0007T

RMB20,000,000
AE#20,000,0007C

Russian Ruble
280,000
280,000 EHTET

Macao Pataca
8,028,000
8,028,00032 ¢

Australian Dollar
(*AUD’) 1,069,291

1,069,201 &7
(&zl)

(BBEEESN - UARKRER)

15 R—AERBARZRE(E)

Proportion of ownership interest
BEERLA

The

Group’s

effective

Held

by the
Company
HARAR
]

Held by
subsidiaries
L) P
BE

interest
£E
BERER

Principal
activities
TEER
100%

100% Purchase of materials

for group companies
REBRTEERIH

100% = 100% Purchase of materials

for and provision

of services

to group companies
REELAEERMH

RimE bRt R
100% - 100% Design, procurement,

assembly, sale and

installation of

curtain wall systems
B A LR

HERREBRZS
100% - 100% Design, procurement,

assembly, sale and

installation of

curtain wall systems
RS A iER

HERRERMRAH
100% = 100% Design, procurement,

assembly, sale and

installation of

curtain wall systems
SRS A ER

HERZERRZS
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B 5HERIN  UARERER)

15 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Name of subsidiary
WEARER

Yuanda USA Corporation**
BAEEBRAR™

Yuanda Qatar Aluminium Industry
Engineering Co., W.L.L™*

BARE (RER) TR
BRAR™

Yuanda Canada Enterprises Ltd.™
BEAMERBRAR ™

Yuanda Aluminium Industry
Engineering (Germany) GmbH™*
BRBRETIR (E)BRAR ™

Place and date

of establishment/

incorporation
R/
K35 R AH

United States of America USD1,000,000

16 May 2007
XH
200745 A 168

State of Qatar

11 February 2008
~ER
2008524118

Canada

15 Apri 2008
mEX
20084 4158

Germany

28 April 2008
e

200844 A28 H

Proportion of ownership interest

Particulars of The
registered/ Group’s
issued and effective
paid-up capital interest
M/ ERTR &8z
MR RAFE ERER
100%
1,000,000% T
Qatar Riyal 100%*
(“QAR") 200,000
200,000 FERE LR
(IERESRA])
USD500,000 100%
500,000% 7
Euro100,000 100%
100,000 47
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AR A

Held

by the
Company
HAAR
®H

Held by
subsidiaries
[
]

100%

100%°

100%

100%

15 R—AERBARZRE(E)

Principal
activities

TEEH

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

E SRS A LR
HERTEBRER

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems
RS A iR
HERZERRASR

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

SRS LR
HERLERRER

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

EE RS A LR
HERTEBREZR



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R 3R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WRARER

Yuanda Aluminium Engineering
(Indlia) Private Limited***
("Yuanda Indiia")

ERRETR (HE)BA
BRAR
(TRXEE)

Yuanda Europe Ltd.™*
("Yuanda Europe’)

ERBMNARAR
(TEARUM)

Yuanda Curtain Wall

(Hong Kong) Company Limited**

EARE (BR)BRAR™

Yuanda Kuwait General Contracting

for Buildings Underes™*
EANB NG REAR
BREER™

Place and date
of establishment/
incorporation
R/ R
KR A

Republic of India
(‘India")

28 July 2008
HEH£ME (T0E])
200847 A 28H

Swiss Confederation
29 July 2008

Tt 08

200847 A29H

Hong Kong

14 May 2009
&R

20095 A 14K

State of Kuwat
(*Kuwait’)

17 May 2009
R (R 1)
200945H17H

(BR=EHEHIN

MAR®RER)

15 R—AERBARZRE(E)

Proportion of ownership interest

Particulars of The
registered/ Group’s
issued and effective
paid-up capital interest
i/ER0R K@z
BRRARE {34
Indian Rupee 100%

(“INR’) 1,476,200
1,476, 200EEE .
(TENEER))

Swiss Franc 60%
(CHF") 1,000,000

1,000,000 5 L%ED
(BRTER])

2,000,000 shares
2,000,000 A3

100%

Kuwatti Dinar 100%"
(KWD") 1,000,000
1,000,000 BBV S 40 0

(TR H 40 )

WARL A

Held

by the
Company
HAAR
®E

Held by
subsidiaries
L) P
]

100%

60%

100%

100%"

Principal
activities

TEEH

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

EE RS A iER
HERTEBRZN

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

RS A LR
HERRERMRRH

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

SRS A ER
HERZERRZD

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

EE RS A ER
HERTEBRZN
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(B RHERAN  AARBRER)

15 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 15 R—BEMBARZRE (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

BEERLA
Particulars of The
Place and date registered/ Group’s Held
of establishment/ issued and effective by the Held by
incorporation paid-up capital interest ~ Company subsidiaries Principal
Name of subsidiary K,/ Hf/BRAOR £E82 HAAT MHBAT activities
WEAREH K35 R AH BRBRAGE ERER ®H ®E TEEK
Yuanda Curtain Wall (Vigtnam) Socialist Republic USD100,000 100% - 100% Design, procurement,
Co., Ltd.* of Vietnam 100,000%7T assembly, sale and
EARTE () BREM 29 July 2009 installation of
NG HELEERERN curtain wall systems
2009%7A298 Rt R AR
HERREBRAS
Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium Kingdom of Saudi Arabian Riyal 100% - 100% Design, procurement,
Industry Engineering Co., BR™  Saudi Arabia 500,000 assembly, sale and
EREAREIRERAT 21 November 2009 500,000% % installation of
PRAF™ PR HRETER curtain wall systems
2009%11A21H EGRE A i ER
HERRERMRAG
Well Galaxy Limited"™* The British Virgin USD1 100% 100% = Investment holding
BERARAR™ Islands e REER
25 February 2010
ERRRES
201062 A 250
Eurl Yuanda France™* France Euro13,020,000 60% = 100% Design, procurement,
EAAEBRAR ™ 18 March 2010 13,020,000 07 assembly, sale and
A installation of
201043 A 18H curtain wall systems
Hah R AR
HERZREBRAL
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEESN - UARKRER)

15 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 15 R—BEMBARZRE (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

HARELRL A
Particulars of The
Place and date registered/ Group’s Held
of establishment/ issued and effective by the Held by
incorporation paid-up capital interest  Company subsidiaries Principal
Name of subsidiary R/ o/ BEIR £ mANE] HHBAF activities
WEAREH K375 KA H BRBRARE {34 ®E ®E TEER
Yuanda (Hong Kong) Hong Kong 1 share 100% = 100% Investment holding
Holdings Limited** 23 March 2010 1R RAER
BA (BB BRERAR ™ &
201043 F23H
Endai Japan Co., Ltd."™* Japan Japanese Yen 100% = 100% Design, procurement,
EARRRA g4 28 April 2010 354,000,000 assembly, sale and
BA 354,000,000 8 installation of
20104 A28 curtain wall systems
SRS A ER
HERZERRZS
PT. Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium ~ Republic of USD150,000 99% - 99% Design, procurement,
Industry Engineering™* Indonesia 150,000% 7T assembly, sale and
BAEETRIE 9 June 2010 installation of
EREBRAF ™ Efe curtain wall systems
201066 A9H Rt RE AR
HERTEBRZN
CNYD Aluminium Industry Malaysia Malaysia Ringgit 100% = 100% Design, procurement,
Engineering Malaysia SDN. BHD.™* 10 June 2010 750,000 assembly, sale and
BARETRERAE Y S 750,000 5K &% installation of
HABBRLE 20106 A 10H 28 curtain wall systems

21
ax

iR AR
BERZEREEM

FRPBERA AT =% - PUEER



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEHEHIN

15

MAR®RER)

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WRARER

Yuanda Azerbaijan Limited
Liability Company***
BAMERBEREAAT ™

Yuanda Curtain Wall
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd.™*
EARR GTns) BRAR

Yuanda Mexico S.A. de C.V."**
BABHANEEABRAR ™

Haihui Curtain Wall (Cambodia)
Co., Ltd.*

BERE(RBR)ER
RfEAA™

Place and date
of establishment/
incorporation
R/ R
K35 R AH

Republic of
Azerbaijan

17 December 2010
222
2010F12A17H

Republic of Singapore
27 December 2010
AR AR
2010612 A17H

The United Mexican
States (‘Mexico’)
29 April 2011
2REF((2REF])
201144 290

Kingdom of
Cambodia

3 May 2011
RARIE
201145430

Proportion of ownership interest

Particulars of The
registered/ Group’s
issued and effective
paid-up capital interest
i/ ERTR g8z
BRRARE ERER
Azerbaijani 100%
Manat 400
AOMERES R

Singapore Dollar 100%
("5GD") 1,950,000
1,950,000 F A0 TT

i u)

Mexican Peso 100%
(‘MXN") 1,000,000
1,000,000 2F T &

(Ei5 )

Cambodian 100%
Riel4,000,000

4,000,000 KIBRER

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2014

WARLL A

Held

by the
Company
HAAR
®E

Held by
subsidiaries
L) P
]

100%

100%

100%

100%

15 R—AERBARZRE(E)

Principal
activities

TEEH

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

EE RS A LR
HERTEBRER

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

RS A iR
HERRERR AN

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

SRS A LR
HERRERRER

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

EERS AiER
HERTEBRER



15

Name of subsidiary

WRARER

Yuanda Brazil Aluminium Industry
Engineering and Trading Import
and Export Co., Ltd."™*

EAERREIRES
BHOARAT

Yuanda International Aluminium
Engineering India Private Limited™*

EARRRETIROE
BABRAF™

Yuanda ltaly SR.L.*
BABANBREERT

Shenyang Yuanda Investment
Co., Ltd.”
BHEAREARAR"

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

Place and date
of establishment/
incorporation
R/ R
KR A

Federative
Republic of
Brazil

7 July 2011
EEMALNE
2001E7ATH

India

7 July 2011
0
2011%7A7R

Italy

14 September 2011
EAM
2011E9A14H

The PRC

23 September 2011
e

201149 23H

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

(BBEEESN - UARKRER)

15 R—AERBARZRE(E)

Proportion of ownership interest

Particulars of The
registered/ Group’s
issued and effective
paid-up capital interest
i/ ERTR EE2
BRBAGFE BERER
Brazilian Real 100%
637,000
637,000EAE R
USD540,000 100%
540,000 7T
Euro20,000 60%
20,000B1T
RMB10,000,000 100%
ARE10,000,000 7

AR A

Held

by the
Company
HARAR
]

Held by
subsidiaries
L) P
BE

Principal
activities

TERH

100%

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

EE RS A iER
HERTEBRZN

100%

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

RS A iR
HERRERMR A5

100%

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

Hat o REAK
HERZEERZD

100% Investment

holding
RERR
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEHEHIN

15

MAR®RER)

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WRARER

Shenyang Yuanda Commercial
Services Co., Ltd. ™

BREABBREERAR

Yuanda Queensland Pty Ltd."*
BARTHARAR ™

Shenyang Yuanda Building
Materials Co., Ltd.**
EGEARMERAT

Yuanda Curtain Wall (Thailand)
Co., Ltd.™
EARKE (X8 ARAR ™

Shenyang Yuanda Ocean

International Logistics Co., Ltd.*

BBARETARNR
ARAA"

Place and date
of establishment/
incorporation
R/ R
K35 R AH

The PRC

18 November 2011
i
2011E11A18H

Australia
25 November 2011
BAN
2011E11A25R

The PRC

14 December 2011
e
20115127148

Kingdom of Thailand
30 January 2012
RIH

201241 A30H

The PRC

30 January 2012
e

20121 A30R

Particulars of
registered/
issued and
paid-up capital
i/ ERTR
BRRARE

RMB1,500,000
ARH1,500,0007T

AUD800,000
800,000 %7

RMB10,000,000
AR10,000,000 70

Thai Baht10,000,000
10,000,000 %

RMB5,000,000
AR 5,000,000
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Proportion of ownership interest

The
Group’s
effective
interest
g8z
ERER

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

WARLL A

Held

by the
Company
HAAR
®E

Held by
subsidiaries
L) P
]

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

15 R—AERBARZRE(E)

Principal

activities

TEEH

Provision of travel
services to group
companies

REEARRM
IR

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

EE RS A LR
HERZEBREN

Production and sale of
building materials

RERHERM

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

EE RS A LR
HERTEBRER

Provision of logistic
services o group
companies

MEEARRMY
YRR



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WRARER

Yuanda WA Pty Ltd. ™
BABRANEERAR

Yuanda SA Pty Ltd.™
ERERANZERAR ™

Shenyang Yuanda Xinchuang Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd.™
EEE AT EREERA A

Shenyang Ruijing Glass Technology
Co., Ltd.™
B RRRRRRERAT

Yuanda VIC Pty Ltd.™*
BAESHEERAT ™

Place and date
of establishment/
incorporation
R/ R
KR A

Australia

3 December 2012
EAME
2012124 3H

Australia

3 December 2012
BANT
2012%12A38

The PRC

12 August 2013
e

201348 A 12H

The PRC

25 September 2013
hE

201349 A 25H

Australia

28 October 2013
EAME
201310428 A

Particulars of
registered/
issued and
paid-up capital
i/ ERTR
BRRARE

AUD
1B

AUD1
12T

RMB50,000,000
AE#50,000,0007C

RMB10,000,000
AR10,000,000 7

AUD
1B

(BBEEESN - UARKRER)

15 R—AERBARZRE(E)

Proportion of ownership interest

BEERLA
The
Group’s Held
effective by the Held by
interest  Company subsidiaries Principal
£ mANE HHBAF activities
ERER ] BE TEER
100% - 100% Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems
EE RS A iER
HERREBRZS
100% - 100% Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems
RS A LR
HERRERMRRH
100% = 100% Real estate
development
BHERE
100% = 100% Production and sale of
glass products
EERHERBER
100% - 100% Design, procurement,

assembly, sale and

installation of

curtain wall systems
EERES A LR

HERREBRZS
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(5B ERIN AR RER)

15 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WRARER

Yuanda Pakistan (PVT.) Limited™*
BACEIABRAR

Canada Yuanda Aluminum
Corporation™*

MERERBRAT ™

Yuanda Services SA DE GV
EARBERAR ™

Place and date
of establishment/
incorporation
R/ R
K35 R AH

The Islamic

Republic of Pakistan
11 December 2013
EEmBFHBANE
2013F12A118

Canada

6 March 2014
nex
2014F3A6H

Mexico

29 May 2014
itk
201454298

established in the mainland China.

*k

Particulars of
registered/
issued and
paid-up capital
i/ ERTR
BRRARE

USDE0,000
60,0007

Canadian Dollar
(‘CAD’) 100

100MERTT
(TeA))

MXN500,000
500,000 2F EFH R

incorporated outside of the mainland China.
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Proportion of ownership interest

The
Group’s
effective
interest
g8z
ERER

100%

100%

100%

This company is a wholly foreign owned enterprise

These companies are limited liability companies established
in the mainland China.

These companies are limited liability companies

WARLL A

Held

by the Held by

Company subsidiaries

MARE  AMELT
4] 4]

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

]
pu)

c

ok

p=1113

IR
l>)

o

S

15 R—AERBARZRE(E)

Principal
activities

TEEH

Design, procurement
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

B SRS A LR
HERTEBRER

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

RS A iR
HERRERR AL

Provision of labor
and management
consulting services

RESTRER
B R%

AR BEKIZNINEEE D

AARPBEKINEREE

o RERR R ERSNEM AL

BRAF -



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRAEEBEIN  UAARBRER)

15 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 15 R—EHEBARZRE (&)

# The Group, through Shenyang Yuanda, owns 49% equity # REBEBESGERAEARAZZ N A
interests in these companies, where the remaining 51% B 49% % # - T H #R51% I #E Ty
equity interests are held on trust for Shenyang Yuanda HEREEEEREM A TAGEFER
by individuals resided in the respective jurisdictions. In REEGRAEA - RESTEEH
accordance with the respective entrust agreements, & ASENALTYEERNRZSE
these individuals do not have the right to vote or receive AAEEHINIE R S22 8
dividends declared or participate in the liquidation of these B At ARBESERAE A
companies. Accordingly, the directors of the Company SEER EHEAZEARB100%M%
consider the Group effectively owns 100% equity interests o

in these companies.

The following table lists out the combined financial information TRETEREBMREK B AR (R
of Yuanda Europe and its subsidiaries, a sub-group within the EEBEEAIFERERNMNBEER)
Group, which has material non-controlling interests (“NCI”). SEHTBEER - TXE2EHHNITHKER
The summarised financial information presented below WME AR IR AT EIKEER 28]
represents the amounts before any inter-company elimination. S5 o

2014 2013

2014 F 20134

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

Turnover S0 491,704 559,681

Profit/(loss) for the year ERFE(EE) 63,775 (192,048)
Profit/(loss) attributable to NCI SRR RS AR (E518) 25,510 (76,819)
Non-current assets ERBEE 12,791 6,552
Current assets TENEE 295,852 203,254
Current liabilities BB E (701,398) (696,477)
Net liabilities FEE (392,755) (486,671)
Net liabilities attributable to NCI FEBRIHERER O FEE (157,102 (194,668)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(B RHERAN  AARBRER)

16 SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS 16 EHIKRE
The Group
rEEHE
2014 2013
2014 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Investments in debt securities: REBERZRE
— with original maturity —REBEAE=EAN
within three months 300,000 -
The investments in debt securities represent wealth WMEBE S Z KRB GHEEIER
management products managed by financial institutions with FRANEBTEH FTHHORG s EBE
guaranteed principals and fixed or variable returns, and are o JYIRIBEHTEE 2(e) AT Sl & 5T UK FE
recognised in accordance with accounting policies set out in o
Note 2(e).
17 INVENTORIES 17 =FE
(@ Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial @ AHIBERARANEFEERE

position comprise:

The Group
rEHE
2014 2013
2014 % 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥®T R ARBTT

Raw materials B R 455,396 431,977
Less: write down of inventories Y& TR EUR (9,335) (14,652)
446,061 417,325
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B RS R R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRAEEHEIN - UAREAERL)

17 INVENTORIES (continued) 17 HE (&)
(b)  The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as ) RERNBERABFAIZIEASH
an expense and included in the consolidated statement W RANFEESTEONTAT ¢

of profit or loss during the year is as follows:

The Group
rEHE
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETRT

Carrying amount of inventories used ~ ARELESRMNEFES
in construction contracts BRmEE 8,563,367 9,521,499
Reversal of write down of inventories 17 &4 [a] (5,317) (9,347)

8,558,050 9,612,152

18 GROSS AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS FOR 18 BW NEFERIRER

CONTRACT WORK
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
2014 & 20135
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Contract costs incurred plus recognised WERRERARIES
profits less recognised losses in connection H& R A N E HERFE
with construction contracts in progress WE ERIEE
at the end of the reporting period 41,387,301 36,395,339
Less: progress billings W HEEIIE (36,819,445) (32,553,756)
4,567,856 3,841,583
Gross amount due from customers for EWEFARIIZ 5
contract work (Notes (i) and (i) (BIEE0) R (i) 5,933,550 5,152,193
Gross amount due to customers for ENEFARIiZE5
contract work (Notes (i) and (iv)) (B3 (i) % (iv) (1,365,694) (1,310,610)
4,567,856 3,841,583
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRRHERAN  AARBRER)

18 GROSS AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS FOR
CONTRACT WORK (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii

(ii)

(iv)

All of the gross amount due from customers for contract work
are expected to be billed within one year, and upon the billing,
the amounts of RMB835.9 million as at 31 December 2014
(81 December 2013: RMB700.8 million) related to retentions
receivable are expected to be recovered over one year.

Included in the gross amount due from customers for
contract work are amounts of RMBO0.4 million at 31
December 2014 (31 December 2013: RMB16.8 million) due
from affiliates of the Controlling Shareholder.

Included in the gross amount due to customers for contract
work are amounts of RMB6.6 million at 31 December
2014 (31 December 2013: RMBNIl) due to affiliates of the
Controlling Shareholder.

All of the gross amount due to customers for contract work
are expected to be recognised as revenue within one year.

Bt -

(i

(v)

18 EBW NEFEEIREHE(Z)

FEREKEFARIIRABREEN
—FERARR - RARE% - R20145
12 A31 BEEREFRBSEEN
SREARKES35.98EL(2013F 12
A31H : AR¥700.8 58 7T)EH
R—F &M -

BREFE R IRAERIER 2014
%12 A 31 B e FEYIZ AR AR B E A
AIFIEARK0.4EEL(20134F 12
A31H : AR%168BET) ©

ENEFARIIBEAEFBER
2014412 A 31 A &5 AR A% 5B
ARFIBARE 6.6 AEIT(20134F
128318 : ARBZL) -

FEENEFARTREABRAR
—FEARRBEA -

19 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 19 EFERURKREVRRE

The Group
REE
2014 2013
2014 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETR AREFT
Trade receivables for contract work due from: ARIIEE HEW
— Third parties —Z=7 2,990,433 2,798,523
— Affiliates of the Controlling Shareholder — PG AR SR B A ) 136,875 136,715
3,127,308 2,935,238
Bills receivables for contract work ERTIREREKEE 192,560 243,390
Trade receivables for sale of raw HERMEE U :
materials due from:
— Third parties —F£=5 1,327 1,559
— Affiliates of the Controlling Shareholder — PR AR SR B A ) 1,611 1,884
2,938 3,443
3,322,806 3,182,071
Less: allowance for doubtful debts (Note 19(b)) i = REEEME (4177 19b)) (457,841) (338,848)
2,864,965 2,843,223
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRAEEBEIN  UAARBRER)

19 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

At 31 December 2014, the amount of retentions receivable
from customers included in trade and bills receivables (net
of allowance for doubtful debts) is RMB906.4 million (31
December 2013: RMB836.3 million).

Except for retentions receivables (net of allowance for doubtful
debts) of RMB472.1 million at 31 December 2014 (31
December 2013: RMB485.0 million), all of the remaining trade
and bills receivables are expected to be recovered within one
year.

(@ Ageing analysis
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis

of trade and bills receivables, based on the invoice date
and net of allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows:

Within 1 month
More than 1 month

—fEAR

but less than 3 months
More than 3 months

but less than 6 months
A E 7 < {E

More than 6 months

Details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in Note
31(a).

BiE—EAEIR=EA

HBB={EREDREA

19 EBEZRURREWRERE(E)

R2014F 12 A31H  BIEEESE
W REWREBREANERESRE S
(R RERE) B AR 06.4
AE (201312 A31H : ARE

e —

836.3 A& L) °

B 201412 A31 H A R #4721
BEL(2013F12A31H : AR
485.0 B8 T) K EWIRE & (FIBR R
BRI HBBE B S RKA KR
FEW S IETE B —F ANk [E o

(@ BRERAMT

RBEMR - BZREHEE
WRE(RRRERE) RER

HEARBRER DT T
The Group
REE

2014 2013
2014 5 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
606,597 532,599
246,695 380,056
315,228 465,932
1,696,445 1,464,636
2,864,965 2,843,223

AEBEEE BRI EIE SR
¥ 31(a)

BRPBERARAT =% - PUEER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRRHERAN  AARBRER)

19 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

Impairment of trade and bills receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade and bills
receivables are recorded using an allowance account
unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount
is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off
against trade and bills receivables directly (see Note 2(k)

(0)-

The movements in the allowance for doubtful debts
account during the year are as follows:

At 1 January ®1A1H
Impairment losses recognised BRI EEE
Uncollectible amounts written off AT UG [B] ZRIE 5
At 31 December m12 4318

At 31 December 2014, the Group’s trade and bills
receivables of RMB457.8 million (31 December 2013:
RMB350.8 million) are individually determined to be
impaired. The individually impaired receivables related
to customers that were in financial difficulties and
management of the Group assessed that none or a
portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.
Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful debts
of RMB457.8 million (31 December 2013: RMB338.8
million) are recognised. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.
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19 EFEWRKEVRZEE(E)

(b)

B 2RI & B IRH R (E

B 5 UK & R B KR (E
BRI ERRERAR  BRIE
AEEEAREZFRANES
B WHELER T RERR
EERE I RIHREEKRRE
A sE (R 2(k)(3) ©

FRRRBEZSHOAT :
The Group

REE

2014 2013

2014 5 20134

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFIT

338,848 259,398

118,993 80,174

= (724)

457,841 338,848

R2014F12 A31H - A& H
WEBESERZIRERERAR
¥ 45788 & (2013612 A
318 : AR¥3508HETL)E
ERIEE ARE - BRIRERD
JRE U R T R 3R B B R B A
FPE@ mAKEERETH
T8 HA 48 5 U [0 51 {2 7] Uk 181 36 5
ERAER - Eit - B HRIEE
ERERBEARKA578EH B
JL(2013F 12 A31H : AR
338.8BH &) ° AEE I &
ZERERTHEEER -



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRAEEBEIN  UAARBRER)

19 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

(c) Trade and bills receivables that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables that

are neither individually nor collectively considered to be

impaired is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired

Less than 1 month past due
More than 1 month but less
than 3 months past due
More than 3 months but less
than 6 months past due
More than 6 months past due

W AR BRI E

BHEEAR
BEEES 1 {EAE
LR 3EA
BANEE 38 AR
L6 1EA
BHEE6EA

19

EZRURREVRRE(F)

© YELBRREEZESEYK KR
e

W BRI A R 2 B
5% 8 3R T B W B e 9 7T
T

The Group
rEHE
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTTT

653,270 545,391
577,339 578,508
208,823 278,290
212,156 400,230
1,213,377 1,028,879

2,211,695 2,285,907

2,864,965 2,831,298

BRPBERARAT =% - PUEER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRRHERAN  AARBRER)

19 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

(©)

Trade and bills receivables that are not impaired
(continued)

Given the nature of the Group’s business, except
for retentions receivables under credit terms granted
and bills receivables not yet matured, all remaining
receivables are considered past due once billings have
been made by the Group and the customers have not
settled the billings within the credit terms granted, where
applicable.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to bills receivables from the issuing banks and
retentions receivables from customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of customers that have a good track
record with the Group. These receivables mainly relate
to construction projects either in progress or at final
inspection stage. Based on past experience and credit
insurance scheme entered into by the Group (see
Note 31(a)), management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEESN - UARKRER)

20 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 20 ®BE - ANRREMBEKRRK
RECEIVABLES
@  The Group @ A&EE
2014 2013
2014 % 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREBTT
Prepayments for purchase BEFEHEMNK
of inventories (Note (aa)) (H15# (aa) 189,609 184,962
Prepayments and deposits KERERNRRIES
for operating leases 13,617 9,056
Deposits for construction contracts’ — E84 RIFRIZ & B4
bidding and performance (Note (bb))  #&% (K17 (bb)) 204,818 166,364
Deposits for purchase of forward BERBIRES RS
aluminium contracts 30,072 27,487
Advances to staff TEfT B T#R 27,564 20,829
Advances to third parties TENE=HER 25,007 23,391
Derivative financial instruments BIEReREY TR
held as cash flow hedging MiTESmT A
instruments — forward foreign —RHIMNES A
exchange contracts (Note 31(e)) (B1:£31(6) 85,059 117,511
Amounts due from the Controlling R U AZE AR R BR N EL B B
Shareholder and his affiliate N BIFRIE (H17F (cc))
(Note (cc)) 30 1,731
Amounts due from non-controlling FE U 2 B FE P A RE 25
interests of the Group (Note (cc)) FIE (H152 (cc) 2,498 2,703
Others Hib 24,002 34,260
602,276 588,294
Less: allowance for doubtful W RERBAE (H757F 20(@))
debts (Note 20(a)) (4,712) 4,727)
597,564 583,567
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRRHERAN  AARBRER)

20 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (continued)
(@  The Group (continued)
Notes:

(@a) Included in the balance are prepayments of RMB4.1
million at 31 December 2014 (31 December 2013:
RMB30.4 million) made to affiliates of the Controlling
Shareholder.

(bb) The balance represented deposits placed with
customers for contracts bidding and performance of
contracts in progress. The deposits will be released to
the Group upon the completion of the related bidding
and contract work, where applicable.

(cc) The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

Except for amounts of RMB7.6 million at 31 December
2014 (31 December 2013: RMB32.1 million), all of the
remaining deposits, prepayments and other receivables
are expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses
within one year.

Impairment of deposits, prepayments and other
receivables

Impairment losses in respect of deposits, prepayments
and other receivables are recorded using an allowance
account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of
the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss
is written off against deposits, prepayments and other
receivables directly (see Note 2(K(i)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRAEEBEIN  UAARBRER)

20 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 20 E& - ARNRREMERR(E)
RECEIVABLES (continued)
(@  The Group (continued) @ AEBE)
The movements in the allowance for doubtful debts FAREREEEWOT ¢

account during the year are as follows:

2014 2013
2014 & 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTT

At 1 January W1A1H 4,727 2,448
Impairment losses recognised R R (EEE - 3,527
Uncollectible amounts written off £ AR Y O] & 5B (15) (1,248)
At 31 December M®12A31H 4,712 4,727
At 31 December 2014, the Group’s deposits, M2014%12H318 - X% &
prepayments and other receivables of RMB4.7 million MRS -« T8 R % H it fE U 3k
(31 December 2013: RMB4.7 million) are individually AR 4. 78ET(20183F 12 A
determined to be impaired. The individually impaired 31H: ARB47TEEL)EME
deposits, prepayments and other receivables related to AEE ARME - ERRERNIZ
debtors that were in financial difficulties. Consequently, &~ TET 3 K E th fE W Fk b B
specific allowances for doubtful debts of RMB4.7 million HIE RSN EIEABRM -
(31 December 2013: RMB4.7 million) are recognised. A BXEERAEEREREG
The Group does not hold any collateral over these AR 47EET(20135F12 A
balances. 31H: ARB4TEEL) - &
SEYERZSESRSE TR
HHm o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRRHERAN  AARBRER)

20 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 20 &% ENRREMERK(E)
RECEIVABLES (continued)
(b)  The Company (b) ARAF]
2014 2013
2014 F 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBTT

Amounts due from subsidiaries PN — K Kt B A Bl FRIE

(Note (aa)) (K13t (aa)) 1,684,213 2,069,015
Prepayments and other receivables T {5 % E fih fE U X 67 110

1,684,280 2,089,125
Note: Hfat -
(aa) The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and (aa) ZHBEAEEREF 2EHE
have no fixed terms of repayment. ETEERER

All of the prepayments and other receivables are BT TB 2 % = fib e Uk =X 38 HA
expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses YA —E AU E e AR o

within one year.

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21 BELRELZEY
@  The Group (@) AEE
2014 2013
2014 % 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBTTT

Cash at bank and on hand RITFHREFHEES 2,545,912 3,250,689
Time deposits with banks RITE BT K 116,605 23,111

2,662,517 3,273,800
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRAEEBEIN  UAARBRER)

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 21 BHERBEESEEYW(E)
(o)  The Company (b) AT
2014 2013
2014 F 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR¥ETR

Cash at bank and on hand WITERRFHERS 8,957 22,002
(c) The Group’s business operations in the PRC are ) AEBEHFPRESAARES
conducted in RMB. RMB is not a freely convertible B AEBTIAR BH TN
currency and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is B [EHHRBENESSTH

subject to the exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC B FERINE S HI| T3 E o

government.
22 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 22 BIENRRENE
The Group
rEH

2014 2013

20145 20134

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETTT

Trade payables for purchase BEGFEEZENK

of inventories due to:

— Third parties =E=7 2,619,230 2,345,901

— Affiliates of the Controlling Shareholder — AR AR SR E B A ) 1,497 2,130

2,620,727 2,348,031

Trade payables due to sub-contractors R BENE S ERNK 765,259 601,090
Bills payables NS 1,277,220 1,326,086
Financial liabilities measured R SHRANET 2 HY

at amortised cost Ea =N 4,663,206 4,275,207
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRRHERAN  AARBRER)

22 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued) 22 BHEARRESRE(E)
All of the trade and bills payables are expected to be settled FIBEZENARENZEIEIRN—
within one year or are repayable on demand. FRFENEIZERKER o
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of RIEHR - EFENZINENERE
trade and bills payables, based on the maturity date, is as BREIEAH R BREE DATAA R ¢
follows:
The Group
rEH
2014 2013
2014 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBTTT

Within 1 month or on demand — (B A AR E K EH 3,594,756 3,061,118
More than 1 month but less than 3 months  #B3&—{& BB LR =18 B 312,885 270,394
More than 3 months HBiE={EA 755,565 943,695

4,663,206 4,275,207

23 RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE 23 FAWRE

The Group
rEH
2014 2013
2014 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT

Receipts in advance for contract work AR IETaW A 119,776 202,783
Receipts in advance represented advances received from JEW K IBIE GRS EARTAER
customers for which the related construction work has not BEZETREEWEPHETR o

been commenced as of the end of the reporting period.

All of the receipts in advance are expected to be recognised as T IBETEEI R — F NER AU
revenue within one year. Ao
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G 3R R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(@ The Group

Payables for staff related costs

Payables for miscellaneous taxes

Payables for transportation and
insurance expenses

Payables for interest expenses

Payables for construction and
purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Payable for legal claim

Deposits from sub-contractors

Deposits from suppliers for contracts’
bidding and performance

Amounts due to the Controlling
Shareholder and his affiliates
(Note (aa))

Others

Financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost
Derivative financial instruments
held as cash flow hedging
instruments — forward foreign
exchange contracts (Note 31(g))
Other derivatives — forward aluminium
contracts (Note 317(e))

Note:

(aa)

24 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES 24

FEf B THARAM A
RS2
FE A i 8 SRR A ST

PR BRI
R

FRREEMNK

DEEZANES

HEE T RIER
XS

FERTERR AR SR I HL BB A )
RIFIE (757 (aa))

HAl

REHKATTEN S RAE

FIERSRELTTAN
ITEER T A —EHINE
BRI (BiZ316)

HAb T4 T A —EHIRGE
AR (BiZ316)

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

(BRBEEASN - UARKRER)

PET A ST e LAt FE A 3K

@ ALK
2014 2013
2014 F 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
245,274 246,467
144,374 108,429
31,305 20,814
5,451 8,341
63,943 73,228
= 10,108
73,942 45,597
186,634 74,447
2,271 2,086
19,145 25,302
772,339 614,814
25,490 9,487
5,919 1,919
803,748 626,220

Hiaz -

ZA BB PR R R

(aa)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Mg R R ML (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(5B ERIN AR RER)

24 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES 24 EHZRHMEMRE)
(continued)
(@  The Group (continued) @ AKE#E)
Except for amounts of RMB14.4 million at 31 December BRmR2014F12 H31 B AR
2014 (31 December 2013: RMB2.7 million), all of the 1448 87T(20183F12 4311 :
accrued expenses and other payables are expected to ARE27TEET) ST
be settled or recognised in profit or loss within one year B FE 515 S N2 E b JE < X 7B
or are repayable on demand. R —FRIBERE FFIK
MR MERKIEERK(ERE -
(o)  The Company (b) AAF]
2014 2013
2014 F 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000

Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASTFT /B A A 7B
(Note (aa)) (H17# (aa))
Accrued expenses and FERTF S M B A R

other payables

Note:

(@a) The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

All of the accrued expenses and other payables are

expected to be settled within one year or are repayable
on demand.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G 3R R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

25 BANKLOANS

(@)

(BRBEEASN - UARKRER)

25 RITERK

The Group’s short-term bank loans are analysed as

follows:

Bank loans
Add: current portion of long-term
bank loans (Note 25(b))

RITER
o REAERTTE KA ANE
BB (HaL250))

At 31 December 2014, the Group’s short-term bank
loans (excluding the current portion of long-term bank

loans) are secured as follows:

Secured by property, plant and
equipment and land use rights of
the Group (Note 25(d))

Secured by property,
plant and equipment and
land use rights of the Group and
guaranteed by an affiliate of
the Controlling Shareholder
(Note 25(d))

Guaranteed by an affiliate of
the Controlling Shareholder

Guaranteed by a subsidiary of
the Group (Note 25(c))

Unguaranteed and unsecured

UAREEAME - BB K
AR A Ko - i {68 P
YRR3R (H17Z 25(0))

UAREEAWE - BB K
AR A Ko - {68 P
[(FEgiihd=z R SEE
PR BB B 1 AR AR
(Bizz 25(d)

HARSEERAREA
B A RIER

HAKE—RHBARER
(H1:E25(c))

SRR R IR IR

@ AKENEHRITERSTN

T
2014 2013
2014 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETFIT
3,190,000 2,833,153
130,000 100,000
3,320,000 2,933,153

R2014512 A31H » RERH
MHRTER(NEERART
ERHBNEIEE S ) BVIRIRA0 T

2014 2013

2014 F 2013 £
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
400,000 150,000

= 250,000

130,000 200,000

- 90,911
2,660,000 2,142,242
3,190,000 2,833,153
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Mg R R ML (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRHERAN  AARBRER)

25 BANK LOANS (continued)

(b) The Group’s long-term bank loans are analysed as
follows:

Secured by property, AREERDE -
plant and equipment and RS Te stk DA T2
land use rights of the Group T e AR
(Note 25(d)) VEXHR (Hfat 25(0))

Less: current portion of long-term
bank loans (Note 25(a))

The Group’s long-term bank loans are repayable as
follows:

—ERRRER
— 4B Py

Within 1 year or on demand
After 1 year but within 2 years

() The Company’s short-term bank loan

At 31 December 2013, the Company’s short-term bank
loan was guaranteed by a standby letter of credit issued
by a subsidiary of the Group. The bank loan had been
repaid in 2014.
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25 RITER(E)

(b)

AEENRBARITERD TN
T

2014 2013
2014 & 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
130,000 230,000
(130,000) (100,000)
= 130,000

AEEHRAFITERER
BERAT

2014 2013
2014 F 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
130,000 100,000

= 130,000

130,000 230,000

ARBEHRITER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G 3R R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BEHHERN  AARERER)

25 BANK LOANS (continued)

26

(d)

At 31 December 2014, the aggregate carrying value of
the property, plant and equipment and land use rights
pledged for the Group’s bank loans is RMB555.6 million
(81 December 2013: RMB636.5 million).

At 31 December 2014, the Group’s banking facilities
amounted to RMB1,800.0 million (31 December 2013:
RMB2,500.0 million) were utilised to the extent of
RMB1,130.0 million (31 December 2013: RMB1,225.0
million).

Certain of the Group’s bank loans are subject to the
fulfillment of covenants commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group
were to breach the covenants, the loans would become
payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors its
compliance with these covenants. Further details of the
Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in Note
31(b). At 31 December 2014, none of the covenants
relating to the bank loans had been breached (31
December 2013: None).

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

On 10 April 2013 (the “Adoption Date”), the directors of the
Company adopted a share award scheme (the “Share Award

Scheme”) as a mean of rewarding and retaining certain

employees of the Group and to attract suitable personnel for

further development with the Group. A trust has been set up

for the purpose of administering the Share Award Scheme.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the trust may purchase

shares in the Company from the Stock Exchange with cash

contributed by the Group, and to hold such shares until they

are vested.

25

26

RITEM(E)

d) H2014%F128318 M AE
ERRITEREIRBOME -
TS 2 5% 4 DA e = Hb {5 PR 4 Y
REEHERARKE68E
JL(2013F 12 A31H : AR
636.5HET) °

) H2014F128318 - A&EEH
RITRLAAARKE1,80008 &
(201312 H31H : AR
2,500.0887T) ' EBRARK

1,130.0 B &t (20134 12 A 31
H: AR¥A122508&7T) °

H AEBHNETRITER—MRE
ENESRMEBITILNERE
PR RFERFAIEE o AR
EEERRZH - AIBAERERE
BER ASETHEERS
BITHEHERE - AEBEER
HESRABRANE—THFBER
Bf 5E31(b) ° 72014412 A 31
A #EERITMERTER
BRI (2013512 A318 -
/) o

LRAEERS

2013%F4 A108 ([FRMBEH]) - &
NAIEBHEM—IER M 2R 8 ([
DEEEETE]) - (ERREIRBEARE
EETEE  URANEBRE—DH
BRI EEAL - BEAEERG EE
FTEIR A (ERT ©

RIBR D RE)ETE) - ZEFEA AR
AEBRENRES RERABEAR
DA - ARBBZERNEEZ
ERMEFBAL
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Mg R R ML (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEIEEN  UARBHBA)
26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 26 LRALEERZS (E)
(continued)
The directors of the Company may, from time to time, at its ARAREFATREORAERIBERERE
sole and absolute discretion, select any employee of the Group B EmEE (RHm T EERETE
(other than those classes of employees specifically excluded R ZEEBIEBGRIN) 2% H 2
as stated in the Share Award Scheme) for participation BTl - DA R EE R E (& EE AN E
in the Share Award Scheme and grant such number of BEEERHEREEENERKD - &
awarded shares to any selected employee of the Group at nil NEIEE GG B =R (5 i E
consideration. The directors of the Company are entitled to A iEHE(BHEREE B EEREAE
impose any conditions (including a period of continued service E/ERR) ©
within the Group after the award) with respect to the vesting of
the awarded shares.
The Share Award Scheme came into effect on the Adoption A& (7 SE BT I A ERAN B HAAE R - AR
Date, and shall terminate on the earlier of (i) the tenth R A TE R E 41 - ()40 B BiEY
anniversary date of the Adoption Date; and (i) such date FHEBFER © X)) ARRESAT
of early termination as determined by the directors of the RERPA IR BAHE -
Company.
Details of the shares held under the Share Award Scheme are e ip BT 23 A RO REIB T ¢
set out below:
2014 2013
2014 F 20134
Average  No. of Average No. of
purchase shares purchase shares
price held price held
¥ FiiEREG  Value 5 ARG Value

BEE % H EE BEE A {B1E
HK$ 000 RMB’000 HK$ ‘000 RMB’000

BT TR AR® BT TR AR®

Fr T

At 1 January ®W1A1HE 30,000 15,353 - -

Shares purchased FREE G

during the year 0.57 17,304 7,781 0.70 48,020 26,568
Shares granted and FAREREBHORN

vested during the year (27,090) (13,864) (18,020) (11,215)

At 31 December »12 A381 8 20,214 9,270 30,000 15,353
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G 3R R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

On 30 April 2014, 27,090,000 ordinary shares held under the
Share Award Scheme were awarded to certain employees of
the Group with a fair value per share of HK$0.71 (equivalent
to approximately RMBO0.56 per share). The fair value of the
awarded shares is determined by reference to the closing price
of the Company’s ordinary shares on 30 April 2014. These
awarded shares were vested on 9 May 2014.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@ Movements of current taxation in the consolidated
statement of financial position are as follows:

Income tax payable at 1 January
Provision for income tax on
the estimated taxable profits for
the year (Note 7(a))
Income tax paid during the year

FAENHAER

Income tax payable at 31 December

26

27

K1 A1 BB BN SR
FAGTERTAER
PRSTi G (et 7(a)

W12 A 31 B R ERFTEH

(BRBEEASN - UARKRER)

URAGEERS (&)

7201444 A30H » 27,090,000 %
BRSBTS AN EBRE R
TASBETEES  ERAAREBER
BROMAT(HERNERARKE
0.567T) ° REIRMO AR EEBETIZ
ERAREBRF2014F4 A30HK
WBEE - ZZREMRMHER 2014
F5H0HEE -

B O BIRR KRR FREH

@  ABE BRI E B BE
SHT -

The Group
REE

2014 2013
2014 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
190,963 190,373
50,825 37,419
(33,794) (36,829)
207,994 190,963
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRHERAN  AARBRER)

27 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 27 AOHUBRRRANFESR (2)
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b)) BEHREIAEEHBEEENAE:
The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities WA B FE AR 2R HE R BV IR FE
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial MEEERBENARKE D &
position and the movements during the year are as FAEEIT -
follows:

The Group NEE
Depreciation
allowances
in excess
of the
related
depreciation,
and
government Remeasurement
grants and Impairment of the
related losses  Provisionfor fair value of
depreciation ontrade  waranties derivative
Unused Ll andother  and expected financial
tax fiEh Write ~ receivables contract  instruments
losses  HEZHE down of B3R losses Effiirg
Deferred tax arising from: #8F  UREGRE  nentores EREKEY  BEREH  fiteRIR Total
RSB EELNERR HEEE  REBAE AR HEFE fhEE  NANEE it

RVBOO  RWBODD  RWBOO  RVBOD  RWBOD  RVBOO  RWBOI
ARRTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR ARMR ARRTR ARRTR

At 1 January 2013 ROBEIA1A 75,806 41,156 6,000 62947 2928 (1,739) 213469
Credited!{charged) tothe ARkERA/

consoldated statement of ()i s)

proft o loss (Note 7(8) 30,943 (6:804 2331) 17,684 7,968 (15,168) 32,280
Cherged o esenes (ote 110) RERAR (et 1) - - - - - (062) (062)
At 31 December 2013 R13%E12A31 B 106,799 34,352 3,663 80,631 37,216 (26,526) 236,135
Credied!{charged) tothe ARRERA/

consolidated statement of ()i 7s)

proft o loss ot 74 2028 (6216 (1329 17415 2869 764 40401
Orectet o resenves Note 1) RERARE 110) - - - - - 11,093 11003
At 31 December 2014 R14E12A31 B 126,827 28,136 2,334 98,046 40,085 (7,199) 287,629
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G 3R R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BEHHERN  AARERER)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(©)

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position:

Deferred tax assets recognised in

the consolidated statement of RRERLIEE B
financial position
Deferred tax liabilities recognised in A GBI FSA AR A

the consolidated statement of
financial position

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note
2(s), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets
in respect of unused tax losses of RMB512.8 million at
31 December 2014 (31 December 2013: RMB445.2
million), as it is not probable that future taxable profits
against which the losses can be utilised will be available
in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 December 2014, temporary differences relating
to the retained profits of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC amounted to RMB2,720.8 million
(81 December 2013: RMB2,663.4 million), of which no
deferred tax liabilities in respect of the tax that would
be payable on the distribution of these profits was
provided as the Company controls the dividend policy
of these subsidiaries and it has been determined that it
is probable that such profits will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

27 EOHBBRRRANAES (&)

(©

REHMBARRAER

ERHETHARE

B O AR R ARER AR

HIBEENBEREER
The Group
KEE
2014 2013
2014 & 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFIT
289,696 237,903
(2,067) (1,768)
287,629 236,135
REREETRIEE E

RIEKTEE 2(s) FTE A S HECR -
AREBIWARF2014F12 A31 H
HARE AT IEEEARKS12.8
BEIL(2013F12A31H : A
R 4452580 ) ERELER
HEE ' RAESHBUE AR
1% N B B2 AR SR A BEAE FE AR FR
FE R AR SR B A ARS8 o

RERIEEBIER

R2014F12 A31 8 » AL
B B A 7 AR B FE
Ty = A ARE27208HS
(201312 H31H : AR
2,663.4B87T) ' ERERES
78 9 Ik 5% 55 A1) B RS B IR R IR
ERIEEGEEDEE  REE
AR EES I EH B A R AR
BHE MEEETZZEME
AIRE N A] BARZRIED IR ©

BRPBERARAT =% - PUEER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Mg R R ML (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRHERAN  AARBRER)

28 PROVISION FOR WARRANTIES 28 RI&EE

The Group
rEH
2014 2013
2014 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETT

At 1 January Mm1A1H 157,084 116,007
Additional provisions made ERHREEINE S 104,132 90,690
Provisions utilised EBAEE (91,332) (49,613)
At 31 December ®W12 A31H 169,884 157,084
Less: amounts included as current W WRERRPET

liabilities at the end of MEBEANEHE

the reporting period (41,254) (63,977)

128,630 103,107

Under the terms of the Group’s construction contracts with its REAEBEERFITVNEES
customers, the Group will rectify any defects arising within one G REEEeEFHEISEEER
to ten years from the date of completion of the construction BER - BIEEAREESRTIA
contracts, depending on the terms negotiated with each HHR—Z=+FRNELERNRRE -
customer. Provision is therefore made for the best estimate of It BB RE SR — 2 +F R
the expected settlement under these construction contracts SERHEEASRMIBEZEEZZEAR
in respect of construction contracts completed within one R TE B BRI S E(E T T aT iR ©
to ten years prior to the end of the reporting period. The BEET N AEEN R R
amount of provision takes into account the Group’s recent WIEN B s BIRRIERRMETHE o
claim experience and is only made where a warranty claim is
probable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G 3R R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEEASN - UARKRER)

29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 29 EXR - RERRE

(@  Movements in components of equity @@ R ERD Ry B

AEEWE GRS AKE D
AT R R SR B RE R
EHESEHRT - FONEF
AR AR A B 6 (B B 4 22 4B X
HRD B ENFIREIIAT -

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in
the Company’s individual components of equity between
the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

Shares held
under share
award
Share Share scheme Capital  Exchange Accumulated
capital  premium RERGED reserve reserve losses Total
Bx  ROEE SHAERGE  EARE  EXRE  ZHEE )
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
(Note 29(c))  (Note 29}  (Note 29(di\ii)) (Note 29(a)(ii)) (Note 29()ii)
Wioge  HE20)  HE2e  BEd  KiE2a)
At1 January 2013 ROWEARIRZEE 5978 1868 - o IS T8y 2134984
Changes in equity for2013: 2013 E 2 E% %8 :
Loss for the year EREiE = - - - - (5,367) (5,387)
Other comprehensiveincome.~~ E#2 kG - - - - (96,963) - (96,963)
Total comprehensive income PEYEEE = 2 = = [06%3 0387 (102350
Dividends approved in respectof 3t F—4RB#EZ kS
the previous year (Note 290)fi) (290 - 013 - - - - 0137
Shares purchased under the RERD RG2S
share award scheme (Note 26 ZIR{3 (it 26) - - (26,568) - - - (26,568)
Shares granted under the RERAREER
share award scheme (Note 26) 2 Bkp (Hi226) - - - 12,088 - - 12,088
Shares vested under the RERGREHEZE
share award scheme (Note 26) 2 IR{7 (#7:2.26) - - 11,215 (12,088) - 873 -
A O U L SR LC B 4
At 31 December 2013 201351231 R
LB 519,723 1,454,354 (15,363) - (89,832) (62,102) 1,816,790
At1 January 2014 RAMEARIE ST tAeeds (63 - (9% (102 18167%0
Changes in equity for 2014: ~ 2014% 2% :
Loss for the year ERNEE - - - - - (5,461) (5,461)
Other comprehensive income Hir2 Al - - - - 4,857 - 4,857
Total comprehensive income PEgEeE = 0= = = 485 (5461) (604)
Dividends approved in respect of 3t F—EEHE 7R,
the previous year (Note 29b)(i)  (#iz£29)f)) - (390519 - - - - (390519)
Shares purchased under the BERR R RS
share award scheme (Note 26 ZIR{3 (i 26) - - (7,781) - - - (1,781)
Shares granted under the BERGRE:TER
share award scheme (Note 26)  ZIR{A (#/:2.26) - - - 15,277 - - 15,217
Shares vested under the RERAREHEEE
share award scheme (Note 26) — f (#/:2.26) - - 13,864 (15,217) - 1,413 -
R L I L
At 31 December 2014 R2014E12 831 Bz 519728 1,063,835 (9,270) - (84,975) (56,150) 1,433,163
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Mg R R ML (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRHERAN  AARBRER)

20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 20 EX-HERKRE(E)
(o)  Dividends ) &E
()  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the () HBEBRFANENZART
Company attributable to the year PRERAR 2
2014 2013
2014 F 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Final dividend proposed after R %R BAZR14 12255 Y 7R Hf

the end of the reporting fx B G E @A 0.108 7T

period of HK$0.10 per (20134 : BREBEAR

ordinary share 0.087#7T)

(2013: HK$0.08 per

ordinary share) 489,788 390,519
The final dividend proposed after the end of the RIREHREEZARE
reporting period has not been recognised as a F% B0 £ A 3R 5 HA R R SR
liability at the end of the reporting period. BBRE -

(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) HERE-—HMHFEERE
Company attributable to the previous financial NARABRERE  ER
year, approved and paid during the year RNEEEE MRS

2014 2013
2014 £ 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Final dividend in respect of the _E—BIEEEH R

previous financial year, &% SR E AR 0.08 T

approved and paid during (20134 : HARE @A

the year, of HK$0.08 per 0.04%7T) ' ERAFEE

ordinary share HEE KRS

(2013: HK$0.04 per

ordinary share) 390,519 201,374
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G 3R R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(Br=AEEBEIN  UARERER)

29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 29 BAE - HERRE(E)
(©)  Share capital € R
()  Authorised and issued share capital: () EERBBETRA:
2014 2013
2014 2013
No. of shares No. of shares
RAEE ieEE
’000 HK$°000 ‘000 HK$'000
TR TR T THL
Authorised: HEE
Ordinary shares of BREEC1ET
HK$0.1 each H A 12,000,000 1,200,000 12,000,000 1,200,000
2014 2013
20145 20134
No. of shares No. of shares
RPEE BREE!
’000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB’000
T8 TR Tk THL
Ordinary shares, BER BB
issued and fully paid: REE:
At 1 January and W1A1BR
31 December 12 A31H 6,208,734 519,723 6,208,734 519,723
(i) At 31 December 2014, 20,214,000 ordinary (i) M2014F12 B31 8
shares are held by the Company under the Share R AR AR D £E B &t &)
Award Scheme (31 December 2013: 30,000,000 #F 520,214,000/ & i@
ordinary shares) (see Note 26). % (20136 12 318 :
30,000,000 iz E:@i%) (R
FizE26) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Mg R R ML (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEHEHIN

MARBRER)

29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by Section 34 of the Companies Law,
Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands.

Shares held under share award scheme

The amount represents the consideration paid for
shares held under the Share Award Scheme.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the portion of the
grant date fair value of unvested shares under the
Share Award Scheme granted to employees of the
Group that has been recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for share-
based payments in Note 2(r)(ii).

Other reserve

The other reserve represents (i) the aggregate
carrying value of non-controlling interests
acquired by the Group in excess of the total
considerations paid; (i) the surplus/deficit of the
carrying values of the controlling equity interests
in subsidiaries under common control disposed
of over the considerations received; (iii) the
difference between the carrying values of the
controlling equity interests in subsidiaries acquired
and the considerations paid under the Group’s
reorganisation completed in 2010; and (iv) the
difference between the carrying value of the net
assets acquired and the consideration paid for the
acquisition of a business under common control in
2012.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G 3R R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)  Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

PRC statutory reserves

In accordance with the articles of association of the
subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC,
these subsidiaries are required to set up certain
statutory reserves, which are non-distributable.
The appropriation to these reserves is at discretion
of the directors of the respective subsidiaries.
The PRC statutory reserves can only be utilised
for predetermined means upon approval by the
relevant authority.

In addition, pursuant to the relevant PRC
regulations, with effect on 1 January 2012, a
reserve for production safety is required to be
set up and to be appropriated at a fixed rate
on the turnover of the subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC. The reserve can be utilised
for expenses or capital expenditures incurred in
connection with production safety.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations into
the presentation currency. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2(v).

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective
portion of the cumulative net change in the fair
value of hedging instruments used in cash flow
hedges pending subsequent recognition of
the hedged cash flow in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for cash flow hedges in
Note 2(g).

(BRBEEASN - UARKRER)

29 EX - RERKRE(E)

() RENEERBENE)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

o B T o

RIBA S B B8 A7)
MAMEIRAR - ZEM
BRABARYLET A
IRESETE R © RS-
e 2 B i & KB A A E
BEEWMIRRTE - FEDEE
Fé 12 R] R (R RS AE R 1A R
BRI TRCEE AR o

Lo - RIEE 2012F 1 A
1 F 8 A Rk A9 A8 BE P BDE
] AEBE TG EEA R
ARNIREEBENEE L
BIRRSL 2 2 AR - %
FEATRAEZNEBEEZ S
EEMEENRIHER
sz o

S EE G

SMNEFRBRIRERINE
B BHRERREINEEHR
EEMINEEER - ZHHE
THiRBEM 2V FTE &
ATERBEIE

B e

HhEERRERERRFR
BEHE20ARESRE
TR 25T BUORE
RERCHHRSREN
RengshmmsHsT
AWM ARBEMNRIFE
BHAMED
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Mg R R ML (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRHERAN  AARBRER)

29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(€)

Distributable reserves

At 31 December 2014, the aggregate amount of
reserves (including the Company’s retained profits, if
any, and share premium) available for distribution to
equity shareholders of the Company is RMB1,063.8
million (81 December 2013: RMB1,454.4 million). After
the end of the reporting period, the directors of the
Company proposed the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.10 per ordinary share for the year ended 31
December 2014 (2013: HK$0.08 per ordinary share) (see
Note 29(b)(i). The dividend has not been recognised as
a liability at the end of the reporting period.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for equity shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher equity shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose,
the Group defines adjusted net debt as total debt (which
includes bank loans and trade and bills payables) plus
unaccrued proposed dividends, less cash and cash
equivalents and short-term investments. Adjusted
capital comprises all components of equity other than
amounts recognised in equity relating to cash flow
hedges, less unaccrued proposed dividends.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G 3R R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BEHHERN  AARERER)

29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(f)

Capital management (continued)

During 2014, the Group’s strategy was to maintain
the adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at an acceptable
level. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to equity
shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to equity
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to
reduce debt.

The adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 December
2014 and 2013 was as follows:

29 EX - RERKRE(E)
H EBEAEERE)

R20145F - REEMNBERAE
AEFLEARFEBERE R
K RAERKE - B#EFN
AEZELE  AEEAEE
AR FREMBRSSE -
BTHBKRMD - REEARTR
R ERTEBEREILEEER
ELNRAET ©

R2014%5 K 2013F12 A31 HHEY
AR FEREE AR T ¢

The Group
rEH
2014 2013
2014 5 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREBT T

Current liabilities: MENEE :
Trade and bills payables = A NE S 4,663,206 4,275,207
Bank loans RITER 3,320,000 2,933,153
7,983,206 7,208,360
Non-current liabilities: EREELE
Bank loans IRITE - 130,000
Total debt AR 7,983,206 7,338,360
Add: proposed dividends hn s BURARE 489,788 390,519
Less: cash and cash equivalents B Be RIRSEEY (2,662,517) (3,2783,800)
Less: short-term investments B RRERE (300,000) -
Adjusted net debt RREBER 5,510,477 4,455,079
Total equity farEny 3,788,274 4,106,736
Less: hedging reserve T ERGEE (329) (32,621)
Less: proposed dividends T BURAZ R (489,788) (390,519)
Adjusted capital RAREER 3,298,157 3,683,596
Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio I ;FEREE AR X 167% 121%
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRRHERAN  AARBRER)

29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 29

()  Capital management (continued)

Total debt — bank loan wEE—RITER
Add: proposed dividends o ERARE

Less: cash and cash equivalents B RHERREEEY
Adjusted net debt BARFER

Total equity B

Less: proposed dividends W BRARE
Adjusted capital RAEER

Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio KRR FEHKEEAL R

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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&1 RERRE(E)

H EBEAEERGE)

The Company
AT
2014 2013
2014 5 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBT T

- 90,911

489,788 390,519
(8,957) (22,002)

480,831 459,428

1,433,163 1,816,790

(489,788) (390,519)
943,375 1,426,271
51% 32%

AR B HEAEFE R BBE
SHNERHE IR B AR E R I -



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRAEEBEIN  UAARBRER)

30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the balances disclosed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the material related party transactions

entered into by the Group during the year are set out below.

(@ Transactions with the Controlling Shareholder and his

30 EXBBLIRE

BRI FR AR E B D WER A4S
ERON - RERE N AR A E AR
ARZEINIT

(@)  ERIEARARIR Ko EL B8 A A H) XX

affiliates 2
2014 2013
2014 F 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Revenue from contract work AR IEEA 46,734 443,147
Sale of raw materials HERME 415 1,813
Purchase of raw materials i B R 12,919 15,167
Rental income from operating leases K& HERFE S UA 21 121
Net (decrease)/increase in BT REEE A TR TET A
non-interest bearing advances B OB AD) G ANFEE
granted to related parties (1,701) 105
Net increase in non-interest HEFaEE A T URENH) AT B
bearing advances received SRIE INFEE
from related parties 185 2,086

Further details on guarantees provided by a related party
for the Group’s bank loans are disclosed in Note 25(a).

Transactions entered into by the Company with (b)

subsidiaries of the Group

Net (decrease)/increase in
non-interest bearing advances
granted to subsidiaries

Net increase in non-interest bearing

advances received from subsidiaries

BB QRN R ER
OB hngeR

PP B A~ R EREY AT R
BRI I FER

Further details on a guarantee provided by a subsidiary

—BEBALTRARERTE
REHOEROE - TFHBR
B3t 25(a) #e5E -

ZAN/NGTEERN S ) PN RS
2

2014 2013

2014 F 2013 £
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®E T AREFIT
(384,802) 88,472
91,807 195,260

R2013512 A31 HEAREEE
T—ZKHBRABRARARIT

of the Group for the Company’s bank loan at 31
December 2013 are disclosed in Notes 25(a) and 25(c).

EFIREAERAE — DB
HBIEE25(a) K& 25(c) 55 o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRRHERAN  AARBRER)

30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(c)

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the directors of the
Company as disclosed in Note 8, is as follows:

ySEGIEEiER
RIRETEIR

Short-term employee benefits

Retirement schemes contributions

Equity compensation benefits in
respect of share award scheme
(Note 26)

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note
6(b)).

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to connected
transactions

Certain of the related party transactions included in
Note 30(a) above constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. These transactions
are disclosed in the Report of the Board of Directors as
required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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30 EXRBBMLIXZ (&)

TEEE A S
AEBEBEE NS
BRERMESIHENAARES
TEHFIBIT ¢
2014 2013
2014 & 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
2,032 2,840
216 186
1,316 892
3,564 3,918

FieEa SR B TAAN](R
Mz 6(b)) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BEHERN  AARERER)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks

arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk

management policies and practices used by the Group to

manage these risks are described below.

(@)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to gross
amount due from customers for contract work, trade and
other receivables and derivative financial instruments.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

In respect of the gross amount due from customers
for contract work and trade and other receivables
other than derivative financial instruments, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers and
debtors. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
and debtor’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customers and debtors as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customers and debtors operates. The Group generally
requires customers and debtors to settle progress
billings and retentions receivables in accordance with
contracted terms and other debts in accordance with
agreements. Credit terms of one to ten years may
be granted to customers and debtors for retentions
receivables, depending on credit assessment carried
out by management on an individual customer or debtor
basis. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers and debtors. In 2013, the Group
entered into a credit insurance scheme with an insurance
company to insure against the recoverablility of certain
trade receivables arisen from the Group’s overseas
construction contracts. At 31 December 2014, 13% (31
December 2013: 15%) of trade and bills receivables are
insured by this credit insurance scheme.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRRHERAN  AARBRER)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continued)

Transactions involving derivative financial instruments
are entered into with either banks or recognised futures
exchange in the PRC, and with whom the Group
has signed netting agreements. Given the high credit
standing of the banks and futures exchange in the PRC,
the management of the Group does not expect any
counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer or
debtor rather than the industry or country in which the
customers and debtors operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when the
Group has significant exposure to individual customers
and debtors. At 31 December 2014, 2.4% (31
December 2013: 1.8%) and 7.0% (31 December 2013:
5.8%) of the total gross amount due from customers for
contract work and trade and other receivables (excluding
the amounts due from the Controlling Shareholder and
his affiliates) were due from the Group’s largest debtor
and five largest debtors, respectively.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Group
as set out in Note 33(a), the Group does not provide any
other guarantees which would expose the Group or the
Company to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
gross exposure to credit risk arising from gross amount
due from customers for contract work and trade and
other receivables are set out in Notes 18, 19 and 20.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B A 3R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The treasury function is centrally managed by the Group,
which including the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables detail the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s and of the Company’s non-derivative financial
liabilities and derivative financial liabilities, which are
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest dates the Group and
the Company can be required to pay:

(BBEEESN  UARKRER)

31 UBEREEREMIANAAE
{8 (#&)

(b)

mBE 2R

AEESHEREMBHHA &
REESRNENRENER
EXRERRPREF/R - A%
BHBRRRERERERDE
CHFENEETREZENG
o AEREE R TR S
BRI ESRBEISTHR
MAKRRERE  AnEERE
HEkEMRBESH

TRFLRAEERAR R
TEERBERITESRAR
RESHEEEENRT AR
B BDEREFREMEAR
ERE(BREREGRMNEFTHE
FY )8 SR IR 3 (fi [ SF B R )
BEREHELEEANRTAH
) RAEERARBFEMNK
ME&F HHEEH

The Group XEKH
2014
2014 £
Contractual
undiscounted
cash flow
within 1 Carrying
year or on amount at 31
demand December
R—EARE
EREEZEEAR M12A31H
BEESRE FREE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AR%T T
Trade and bills payables B SN ENEE 4,663,206 4,663,206
Accrued expenses and other LEESHPK ARG T 2 R FERT
payables measured s I B e 5k
at amortised cost 772,339 772,339
Bank loans RITER 3,398,496 3,320,000
8,834,041 8,755,545
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRAEEBEIN - AR RERL)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 31 UHREBREERSMIANAARE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B(E)
(o)  Liquidity risk (continued) () RBESRER(E)
The Group (continued) *&KE(E)
2014
20145

Contractual undiscounted cash (outflow)/inflow
RRABRRS (RE)/HRA
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but

1 year or on less than less than

demand 2years 5years
—£R BB—F BBmE Total
HEEKR BYRME BHOREEF #ct

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR

Derivatives settled gross: BREEMETAEE:
Forward foreign exchange & {ER &84T
contracts held as cash flow ~ ERJREAINEA[E

hedging instruments (BtaE3110))) -

(Note 31(d)f):

- outflow — i (1,169,966) (682,691) (155,581) (2,008,238)

- inflow —mA 1,179,560 675,287 153,037 2,007,884
Other forward foreign ErMINEAR

exchange contracts (s 300)))

(Note 31()i):

— outflow — (711,609) (77,104) (14,551) (803,264)

- inflow A 756,145 78,284 14,413 848,842
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B A 3R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(B AAEEHEIN - UAREBERL)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 31 UHREABREERSMIANAARE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B (&)
(b)  Liquidity risk (continued) b) REEER )
The Group (continued) *&KE(E)
2013
20134
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BRRERRLML
More than Carrying
Within 1 year but amount
1 year or on less than at 31
demand 2 years December
—ERH BE—F Total  HM12A31H
[E2X BORmE st HREE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETTT ARETTT ARETT ARETT

Trade and bills payables BHENTRENEE 4,275,207 - 4,275,207 4,275,207
Accrued expenses and RE AT SR EST
other payables measured BT R E M EM T

at amortised cost 614,814 - 614,814 614,814
Bank loans FITER 3,015,889 132,033 3,147,922 3,063,153
7,905,910 132,033 8,037,943 7,953,174
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MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRRHERAN  AARBRER)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 31 FEXEREEREMIBENAAE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B (&)
(o)  Liquidity risk (continued) () mBIECRER (&)
The Group (continued) *&KE(E)
2013
2013
Contractual undiscounted cash (outflow)/inflow
BRRERR ST
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but
1 year or on less than less than
demand 2 years 5 years
—FR HE—F BRmE Total
FERK BORmE BIRLE st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETTT ARETT ARETT

Derivatives settled gross: BREEMETAEE:
Forward foreign exchange & {ER &84 M T
contracts held as cash flow  ERJREAINEA[F

hedging instruments (Bta£3110))) -

(Note 31(d)f):

~ outfiow — i (504,044) (717,779) (74550 (1,386,373)

—inflow —RA 624,140 730,641 77,009 1,431,790
Other forward foreign ErBINEAR

exchange contracts (Ha310)))

(Note 31()i):

— outflow — (661,273) (326,865) (68,484) (956,622)

- inflow —RA 611,519 340,969 70,959 1,023,447
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The Company

Accrued expenses and
other payables
Bank loan

Interest rate risk

(BBEEESN - UARKRER)

31 FEXEREEREMIBENAAE

B(#E)
() mBECRER ()
b X/
2014 2013
20145 20134

Contractual Contractual

undiscounted undiscounted

cash flow cash flow

within 1 within 1

year or on year or on
demand Carrying demand Carrying
R—%R% amount at 31 R—EERZ  amount at 31
EEREEZ December EEN[EEY December
EREKEE  ®12A31H BRRMHE  W12A31A
BERE BREE RBene BRAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET R ARETTT ARETT

TR &

HAFERT R 287,440 287,440 195,515 195,515
BITER - - 91,803 90,911
287,440 287,440 287,318 286,426

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from

interest bearing borro

wings. Borrowings issued at

variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to

cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk

respectively.

(©

FEmR

AEEONERRERERKRE
BEE - FBM X K EEH
REHWEED RS A RE X
XEEREMNEEREAAE
BERN=ER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRRHERAN  AARBRER)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 31 FEXEREEREMIBENAAE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B(E)
()  Interest rate risk (continued) € FIERRREE)
() Interest rate profile (i) FIEFEE
The following tables detail the interest rate profile of TREFMANER KA A

the Group’s and the Company’s borrowings at the
end of the reporting period:

The Group
A5H
2014 2013
20145 20136
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BERAI® BIRM=
% RMB’000 % RMB'000
AR#TR ARETT
Fixed rate borrowings: EEANREES
Bank loans RITER 5.70% 2,330,000 5.67% 1,657,242
Variable rate borrowings:  SEFIREE :
Bank loans RITER 5.49% 990,000 5.48% 1,405,911
Total borrowings HEEHE 3,320,000 3,063,153
Fixed rate borrowings as  EEFIREE (G
a percentage of total BEAEE L
borrowings 70% 54%
The Company
LN
2014 2013
2014 % 20134
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BRA= A=
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
ARBT T ARETFT
Variable rate borrowing: THANEREE :
Bank loan BITER - =
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRAEEBEIN  UAARBRER)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2014, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have decreased/increased the
Group’s profit after tax and retained profits by
approximately RMB8.4 million (2013: RMB12.0
million).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
after tax and retained profits assuming that the
change in interest rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and had been applied
to remeasure those non-derivative financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk at the end of
the reporting period. The impact on the Group’s
profit after tax and retained profits is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest expenses of such
a change in interest rates. The sensitivity analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2013.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRRHERAN  AARBRER)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
revenue from and costs incurred for contract work,
and purchases of imported materials which give rise
to receivables, payables and cash balances that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which the transactions
relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily
USD, Euro, SGD, AUD, GBP, CHF, KWD, Bahraini Dinar
(“BHD”), CAD, RMB, HK$, QAR and Vietnamese Dong
(“VND").

A significant portion of the Group’s business is
overseas construction contracts, and these contracts
are generally settled in currencies other than RMB.
The Group uses forward foreign exchange contracts
to minimise its exposure to currency risk arising
therefrom. The Group’s management believes that
RMB will appreciate against most foreign currencies in
the foreseeable future, and accordingly, the Group will
continue to increase the use of forward foreign exchange
contracts to hedge its foreign currency exposure.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B A 3R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRAEEBEIN  UARBRER)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)

(i)

Forecast transactions

The Group hedges portion of its estimated foreign
currency exposure in respect of highly probable
forecast revenue from overseas construction
contracts.

The Group uses forward foreign exchange
contracts to hedge its currency risk and classifies
these as cash flow hedges. At 31 December
2014, RMB1,179.6 million (31 December 2013:
RMB624.1 million) of the forward foreign exchange
contracts have maturities of less than one
year after the end of the reporting period, and
RMB828.3 million (31 December 2013: RMB807.7
million) of the forward foreign exchange contracts
have maturities of more than one year after the end
of the reporting period.

At 31 December 2014, the Group had forward
foreign exchange contracts hedging forecast
transactions with a net fair value of RMBO.1 million
(31 December 2013: RMB43.5 million) recognised
as derivative financial instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRRHERAN  AARBRER)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Recognised assets and liabilities

Change in the fair value of forward foreign
exchange contracts that economically hedge
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies is recognised in profit or loss
(see Note 6(a)). At 31 December 2014, the net fair
value of forward foreign exchange contracts used
by the Group as economic hedges of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies was RMB44.8 million (31 December
2013: RMB64.5 million) recognised as derivative
financial instruments.

In respect of the remaining receivables and
payables denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the entity to which they
relate, the Group ensures that the net exposure
is kept to an acceptable level, by buying or selling
foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary
to address short-term imbalances.

Exposure to currency risk

The following tables detail the Group’s and the
Company’s exposure at the end of the reporting
period to currency risk arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown in RMB,
translated using the spot rates at the end of the
reporting period. Differences resulting from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency
are excluded.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B A 3R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(B AAEEHEIN - UAREBERL)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 31 UHREABREERSMIANAARE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B (&)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) ) E¥ERGE)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (continued) (i) EBRHEWERE(Z)
The Group NEE
2014
AN14E
USD Ewo SGD AUD GBP CHF KWD BHD CAD PRMB HK§ QAR WND

MEk  EA 58

in Bn oFmET A RR RiED BHR MR meAn ARR Rn AR MEE
RMBOO0 RMB'00D RMB'O00 RMBOO0 RMB'000 RMB0O RMBO00 RMB'000 AMBO0 RMB'00 RMBU00 RMBOO0 RMBI000
AR AR® AR® AR® ARM ARM AR® AR® ARM ARE AR® AR® ARM
fno fn f o f ot o fi fn ot T i i R

Gross amount due fom customers — ERR AR it

for contract work 41,361 - 006 8 - - - - - - - - -
Tradle and bils receivables BHENE RN E 886,314 39,362 133142 232898 376,886 58618 22015 14435 20822 - 082 23874 23742
Deposts, prepayments and e BN REMEN

other receivables 17,274 - - 300 523 152215 - - - - 305,736 - -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEN 6679 35 § M 58 - - - %0 oM - - -
Trade and bils payables ERRNHRENER (9422 (4g31) - - ) (2600 - = = - - -
Aocrued expenses and other payebles - EsfB REERE 0,173) ] - - - - - - - (09,070) - - -
Gross exposure rsing fom BRTEERAREL

recognised assets and liabiltes ofeliectd 843033 38040 162176 234365 386,960 208233 22015 14435 32072 (96,351) 486,540 23874 23742
Notional amounts of fomward foreign ~ FRfEE8 Esivady 88

exchange contracts Used hECREREE

2 economic hedges (136,252) (14,369) (133,371) (215,669) (306,362) (3,361) - - (21,1%9) - - - -
Net expostre arising fom recognisedd R &RR A BRELE

assets and lebiities Bk SR 106,781 23671 26805 18,696 80618 204872 22015 14435 4936 (96,351) 486,540 23874 23742
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRRHERAN  AARBRER)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 31 FEXEREEREMIBENAAE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B (#E)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) o) EERkREE)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (continued) (i) EHBRHEWERE(Z)
The Group (continued) REE ()
013
W13E
UD Emwo SGD AD GBP CH KD B CAD RMB  HKS QAR WD

HEs B AR

X BT OFNET BT A% ROAD BRE RRA meAn ARR BT MR 4EE
RVBOD RVBOOD RMBO0D RWBOOO RMBOOD RVBOND RVBOX0 RWBYOD RMBOD RVBOND RVBOX0 RWBT0D RMBON
ARE AR AR® AR® ARE ARE AR® ARR ARR ARE AR® ARR ARR
fir n = Tt Tt 7t ¥ Tt Tt Tt T Tt T

Gross amount due fomcustomers — ENE AR LfRtEsE

for contract work 76206 14262 1022 8% - = - - - - - - -
Trade and bils receivables EHENERENEE 816271 41999 123048 131634 298460 63872 27,777 13619 34202 - 70698 28127 13659
Deposts, prepayments and e BN RAMEN

ofher receivables 414 - - - 4501 180,623 - - - - 1583 - -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEN WO 60 UM BT 10197 - - - - 1490 - - -
Trade and bl payables BARNFRENZE (218m - = - - By - = = = [ - -
Accrued expenses and ot payeles St RAKIER T Qe W - - - - - - - - - - -

Gross exposure arsing fom BEZEERAREL
recognised assets and liabifes ol 182324 56881 167704 133000 313167 240794 271777 13619 4202 14926 72240 23127 13659

Notional amounts offomward foreign {8 ey 8

exchange contracts used NECREEEE
as economic heges (691,109 (12187) (141427 (181.430) (B851) (221 = - - - - - -
Net exposure asig fiom BETEERAREL
tecognised assets and labiites MEREE 91215 44744 16337 1576 Q06316 200573 77T 13619 425 14006 7220 23107 136%9
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRAEEBEIN  UAARBRER)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Exposure to currency risk (continued)

The Company

Cash and cash equivalents ReRIRESEEY

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax and retained
profits that would arise if foreign exchange rates
to which the Group has significant exposure at the
end of the reporting period had changed at that
date, assuming all other risk variables remained
constant.

31

BEEAREEREMIANDIAE
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(iii) FEZRORBEEE (Z)

AT
2014 2013
2014 F 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETTT

2,719 14,777

(iv) BBESDH
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRRHERAN  AARBRER)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)

(iv) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

USD

Euro

SGD

AUD

GBP

CHF

BHD

CAD

RMB

HK$

QAR

VND
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31 BRXEREEREMIAENARE

BH(#)

(o ERERGE)

(iv) BRESH(E)
2014 2013
2014 F 20134

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) in (decrease) in

Increase/  profit after Increase/ profit after
(decrease) tax and (decrease) tax and
in foreign retained in foreign retained
exchange profits exchange profits
rates  BEFER rates  HEFER
SMEERE % REFHE HVEE i R RE A
LH(TER) %/ (BL) EA/(TR) #m/ CBd)
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMET T AREFT

5% 30,396 5% 4,238
(5%) (30,396) (5%) (4,238)

15% 3,018 10% 3,803
(15%) (3,018) (10%) (3,803)
10% 2,448 10% 1,389
(10%) (2,448) (10%) (1,389)
20% 3,178 20% 268
(20%) (3,178) (20%) (268)
15% 10,281 10% 26,036
(15%) (10,281) (10%) (26,036)
15% 26,121 10% 20,449
(15%) (26,121) (10%) (20,449)

5% 936 5% 1,181
(5%) (936) (5%) (1,181)

5% 613 10% 1,158
(5%) (613) (10%) (1,158)

10% 419 10% 2,911
(10%) (419) (10%) (2,911)

5% (4,818) 5% 746
(5%) 4,818 (5%) (746)

5% 20,680 5% 3,073
(5%) (20,680) (5%) (3,073)

5% 1,015 5% 983
(5%) (1,015) (5%) (983)

5% 1,009 5% 581
(5%) (1,009) (5%) (681)




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRAEEBEIN  UAARBRER)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 31
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

BREREEREHMIANARE
B(#&)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) ) E¥ERGE)

BRESWH (Z)

(iv) Sensitivity analysis (continued) (iv)

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit after tax and retained profits
measured in their respective functional currencies,
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period for presentation
purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change

ERENNDMERES
HEAKREERASEHN
D EMTENTRRNE
RRBMBERNREZE
TiRmERREE RER
MEXRBRESARE - A
HEIIRE -

FRESNBRREERIN

in foreign exchange rates had been applied to MIERMEHAFHT =
remeasure those financial instruments held by the AEBHAMSAEER

Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of the reporting period, including
inter-company payables and receivables within the
Group which are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currencies of the lender or the
borrower. The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency. The sensitivity analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2013.

R AR A E B A HNE
FERE SR T BN
ERARERANEE
EASNY B FHER AR SE
& R &) A RE 3R & e
e DM TBEERES
INETEH I TSR B A S
B 25 EEmEENE
B HREDTIIRE
2013 FHR M EAE#ETT o

BRPBERARAT =% - PUEER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEHEHIN

MAR®RER)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in IFRS 183, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities at the measurement date.

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not
available.

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.
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e =

(i)

EEFTE

BRoREEHENSHE
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R EEER

TREIRE BRI 15
SRERNEAHK [ EBE
FE] EMRHRE K
AtESEERMTAZA
REEIBER=BEIAE
BER - 2ZRMEETTE
s ABIRH) AT R 1 &%
EZMHEATRAIEE

e FIEMRE: ERFE
IEERNE PN 8
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M5 ER ARG HE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRAEEBEIN  UAARBRER)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 31 FEEREEREMIANAAE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) BE(E)
(e)  Fair value measurement (continued) e 2AnEE=E)
() Financial assets and liabilities measured at () BAOAREEENEMSE
fair value (continued) ERAR(E)
The Group
REE
Recurring fair value Fair value measurements
measurements: categorised into Level 1
BEQNAEEBETE PERE—EBNAAEEFE
2014 2013
2014 F 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBT T
Assets BE
Derivative financial instruments: #7444 R T A :
— Forward foreign exchange — = HRONE S XY (132 20(@))
contracts (Note 20(a)) 85,059 117,511
Liabilities 8E&
Derivative financial instruments: $T4& g T A :
— Forward foreign exchange — R ARONE B XY (f122 24(a))
contracts (Note 24(a)) 25,490 9,487
— Forward aluminium — = HAatE & R (Kt 24(a)
contracts (Note 24(a)) 5,919 1,919
31,409 11,406
During the years ended 31 December 2014 and R = 2014 F K 20134
2013, there were no transfers between Level 1 12A31BHIEFEA » F1
and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The N E2E 7 MR

Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

HE - TMEESARELS
BEZHAE - AEEZK
RBNEELEZ TS HIfE
REARRAABEER
ZHEEERIAR -

BRPBERARAT =% - PUEER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(5B ERIN AR RER)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e)  Fair value measurement (continued)

(i) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values at 31
December 2014 and 20183.

32 COMMITMENTS
(@ Capital commitments
At 31 December 2014, the outstanding capital
commitments of the Group not provided for in the
consolidated financial statements were as follows:
Commitments in respect of land T RETE AR
and buildings, and machinery 22 Ko 2R i RO AAHE
and equipment
— Contracted for —B&14
— Authorised but not contracted for ~— — B REEKRET LY

212 YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2014

31 BRXEREEREMIAENARE
BE(#E)

€ 2RAREEEGE)

(i) AFRAABEIREDHS
MEERARHARKE

R 2014 K 2013 12 A
31 8 » ANEERK AR E#
SHAN AT BR ) Bt T A AR

HEEEAAEETES
AEER -
32 RiE
@ BAREE
MR2014512 A31 H » A
BMERP W ARBE ZAEER
ERBEAFESENT ¢
The Group
REE
2014 2013
2014 & 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T AREFIT
5,558 3,876
59,181 59,251
64,739 63,127




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRAEEBEIN  UAARBRER)

32 COMMITMENTS (continued) 32 FEIEE)
(b)  Operating lease commitments (b) AEHEEANE
At 31 December 2014, the total future minimum lease R2014F12A318 * AEER
payments of the Group under non-cancellable operating BRI RGEEEHERARAR
leases are payable as follows: REEASBEEL R ¢
The Group
rEH

2014 2013

2014 20134

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR¥ETR

Within 1 year —FER 4,937 4,010
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFN 1,348 1,867
After 5 years AF% 3,497 3,609
9,782 9,486
The Group leases certain land, plant and buildings, NEBREKEHEHEMMBEES
motor vehicles and other equipment under operating Fi+4  BMEERESFE  "HER
leases. Except for the lease of land for a period of 50 Hi &M o lRAES0FH i
years, the remaining leases typically run for an initial HEI EAFHE—RILT A
period of 1 to 10 years, with an option to renew the lease H1 2104 @ WA R EREESE
when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases HEEEGRREEERE -
includes contingent lease rentals. HEAEEsAES -

BRPBERARAT =% - PUEER 213
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRRHERAN  AARBRER)

33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33 DHARAE
(@) Guarantees issued @ BEHER
At 31 December 2014, the Group has issued the R2014% 12 A31H » ZEEE
following guarantees: B TR
The Group
KEH

2014 2013

2014 20134

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Guarantees for construction BRESEIE - BOK

contracts’ bidding, [RED & B PE(R

performance and retentions 2,676,717 2,359,009
As of the end of the reporting period, the directors of NIBEHR NRARIEERE
the Company do not consider it probable that a claim 18 1] fe 1 IR AR 15 (F (a] 12 1R
in excess of the provision for warranties provided by the NEE IR BRI E IR
Group will be made against the Group under any of the HREBENER - KEFER
guarantees. The maximum liability of the Group as of the MEHRBIEDREERN R
end of the reporting period under the guarantees issued EEEALEXFEENSRE -

is the amount disclosed above.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B G R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BEHERN  AARERER)

33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)  Contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims

U)

In December 2009, Shenyang Yuanda and
Yuanda India, both wholly owned subsidiaries of
the Group, jointly received a notice that they are
being sued by a former sub-contractor in India in
respect of Shenyang Yuanda’s and Yuanda India’s
non-performance of the terms as stipulated in the
sub-contract agreement entered into between
Shenyang Yuanda and this former sub-contractor.
Shenyang Yuanda has made a counterclaim
against this sub-contractor for non-performance
of the sub-contract agreement. As at the date
of these financial statements, the above lawsuit
is under reviewed before the Arbitral Tribunal
of New Delhi in India. If Shenyang Yuanda and
Yuanda India are found to be liable, the total
expected monetary compensation may amount
to approximately INR1,410.8 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB136.1 million) plus accrued
interest. Both Shenyang Yuanda and Yuanda
India continue to deny any liability in respect of
the non-performance of the terms of the sub-
contract agreement and, based on legal advice,
the directors of the Company do not believe it
is probable that the arbitration tribunal will find
against Shenyang Yuanda and/or Yuanda India.
No provision has therefore been made in respect
of this claim.

33 HREEE)

b) AREEHERNIAREE

U

R2009F 128+ A& E
MR E=EM B R RESER
ARENERRNEREER
A FBEEHEERAT S
BREMEGEARHER
AT BITER R R E I AT
DB D BHBE
TR IERUR L B 5F < J&RG
BANMESESBEARE
BT EEiBERLERR
R RZEFUHHwEA
H - EMEREAIERENE T
EEMHESE o (WEBS
BRARHERERAWETER
BLEEMF EHSEME
BN REAYET,410.8B 8
ENEEL (BERHAR
#1361 A&IT) MFEETAI
B o EarAMIERA
HEESREATETY
B RGN EREF
MBBERER - AAA
EEZWTEEIHESH
EEGERAR,RENER
ARG - AR LI R
REHERE o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(B RHERAN  AARBRER)

33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued) 33 BAAE#E)

BRZRBFRNVIRAEE)

(b)  Contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims (continued) (o)

216

(i)

(i)

In April 2009, Shenyang Yuanda received a
notice that it is being sued by a construction
agent in Kuwait in respect of damages arose
from the termination of the agency agreement
entered into between Shenyang Yuanda and this
former agent. As at the date of these financial
statements, the above lawsuit is under reviewed

(i)

R2009F4 8 /&[5 =
REEBA - B EM R
FHREEREREESGE
ANER L RT A IR ET A AR ER
R R IEMEERNEBEER
HAREF - Rt F BBk
HE - EatsFaAEREHE

before the Court of First Instance in Kuwait. If FEIRNERERIRE © (WiEl5
Shenyang Yuanda is found to be liable, the total BEAWHERE FEE-

expected monetary compensation may amount
to approximately KWD11.2 million (equivalent

TEHA S S EREE R AL 4
ZNM2AERESEEMNE

to approximately RMB234.2 million). Shenyang (HERVIARKE234.27
Yuanda continues to deny any liability in respect of EBL)  BERANERBES
the claim and, based on legal advice, the directors REMARENEMEE -

of the Company do not believe it is probable that
the court will find against Shenyang Yuanda. No
provision has therefore been made in respect of
this claim.

In addition to the lawsuits mentioned in Notes

(i)

MREERBR - ARF]
EXWTHREZIESHIR
B E AR - AL ERL
TR RFT R B

& Bt 5 33(b) (i) & 33(b)(ii)

33(b)(i) to 33(b)(ii), certain subsidiaries of the Pt 9 SR A5 - AEEE
Group are named defendants on other lawsuits :FWE’& RWIEAERE
or arbitrations in respect of construction work METTH RS TR/ H A
carried out by them. The directors of the Company AP E A o &
consider the amounts involved in these lawsuits NAIBEERBEZEFAR

and arbitrations are insignificant to the Group,
both individually and in aggregate. As at the date
of these financial statements, these lawsuits and
arbitrations are under reviewed before courts or
arbitrators. If these subsidiaries are found to be
liable, the total expected monetary compensation
may amount to approximately RMB24.2 million.
Based on legal advices, the directors of the
Company do not believe it is probable that
the courts or arbitrators will find against these
subsidiaries of the Group on these lawsuits and
arbitrations. No provision has therefore been made
in this respect.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R 3R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(Br=AEEBEIN  UARBRER)

NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 31 March 2015, the directors of the Company have
proposed a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in Note
29(b)(i).

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The directors of the Company consider the immediate and
ultimate holding company of the Company as at 31 December
2014 to be Best Outlook Limited, which is incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands. This entity does not produce financial
statements available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS,
AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
IASB has issued a few new standards and amendments to
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2014 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

34

35

36

FREREHEEER

MR201543H31H  RAAEEZE
RN AR S o E— P BERWE
29(b)(i) B ©

HERBRERAF

RAREEFRR - ARAIN20145F12
A 31 Bz E#ERGRERARAER
BRARE - HREEE LB S
B o WEBWEREAIHEARAL
RS BRE

BE2014F12A31BLLFEECHE
B e R A BB FTRT 22 R ~ RS
AIRZREBURERNTE

HELFUBHRETIZAS  BRe
SRR EEE MG TEHE201445
12 A31 BIEFE MR A FET R
RAEANEET - HW AR EMBIRE
NERAN o 525 aT 2R RERNEET B
FEATEIE - Brlge RS EHRE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(B RHERAN  AARBRER)

36 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS, 36
AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
2014 (continued)

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

2010 4F F 2012 F BB~ 87 155 2 & 2E Rl < F [Z 20t
Annual improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
2011 F 2 2013 F A FBIBR AT 753 & E Rl & F 2 208
Annual improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

2012 F Z 2014 FHEIBR B 7548 2 2B Rl 2 F /228
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38, Clarification of
acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation

BE2014512A31BLFEEH
B e R A BB FTRT 22 A ~ RS
AR REARERNE ()

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
NN

g2 1&

FIREVE st

HAR AR

1 July 2014
20145 7H1 R

1 July 2014
201447 H1H
1 January 2016
20161 A1 H
1 January 2016

B S ERFE 16 RER S ERIE 38R ZER] - BEARRTITE RS 201651 A1 H

Amendments to IAS 27, Equity method in separate financial statements

BIFR 2 5r2ERIZE 27 SR 2 18R] - B U BHK 2 #HEm):
Amendments to IAS 1, Disclosure initiative

RErEAE 1SR 2ER] - FEEA

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
BRI RE ERE 155 - KA FEFERZ K
IFRS 9, Financial instruments

BRI GHRELEFE N - 2T A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R 3R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BEHIERIN  AARERER)

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS,
AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
2014 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these new standards and amendments to
standards is expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far it has concluded that except for IFRS 15, Revenue from
contracts with customers, for which the Group is still under
the process in assessing the impact of its application, the
adoption of the remaining new standards and amendments
to standards is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and Audit”,
of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
come into operation from the Company’s first financial year
commencing after 3 March 2014 (i.e. the Company’s financial
year which began on 1 January 2015) in accordance with
Section 358 of that Ordinance. The Group is in the process of
making an assessment of the expected impact of the changes
in the Companies Ordinance on the consolidated financial
statements in the period of initial application of Part 9. So far
it has concluded that the impact is unlikely to be significant
and will primarily only affect the presentation and disclosure of
information in the consolidated financial statements.

36

BE2014F12A31 BLLFECHE
B e R A BB FTRT 22 A ~ 2ERIME
AR REARERNE ()

AEE ERHAZF ] E R R ERIE
RINEE  THRHERTIPERE -
BRIAL - 5[ BERMBHRE LS
165 KEEFERZ K] ME
AEBDEFLEEERBZEZE Rt
2N AR BHERMER T HET 2R &
EREFTE B &Ewm  ARASERAT
RABEHEEMBEHRRERERY
@,

BEoh - FTEB N TG (E622F) F
9FF [BR B REs] 2 HERBIKOIE
358IFMAA RN 2014FE3 A3 &R
182 BB B FEE (BN A RR 2015
FI1A1BRBEZHBREE) ABE
B o 7N B IE 2 5T A RG22 4878
FEE EAEAEIOBBRESRETS
MR AT E - 125 2 Ewm B
ZAREWTIEKXN + EXZSFERE
MHRERANERZ 27 RIEE -
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Five Year Financial Summary
LENBRE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRHERAN  AARBRER)

220

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
2014 & 2013 F 20124 20114 20104
RMB’000 RMB'O00 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
Results E5
Turnover ok 10,038,653 10,872,404 11,844,578 10,797,007 9,260,912
Profit from operations g NES 295,929 192,700 560,999 1,195,863 1,086,162
Finances costs & AN (234,398) (160,019) (131,543) (156,779) (84,805)
Profit before taxation R ETAE 61,531 32,681 429,456 1,039,084 1,001,357
Income tax Fris 5 (10,424) (5,133) (61,546) (213,482) (214,140
Profit for the year FRFE 51,107 27,548 377,910 825,602 787,217
Attributable to: BAR A /MG -
Equity shareholders of the ViN/NE] )3
Company 25,597 104,367 438,491 850,324 806,132
Non-controlling interests IR 25,510 (76,819) (60,581) (24,722) (18,915)
Profit for the year FAFE 51,107 27,548 377,910 825,602 787,217
Assets and liabilities EERERE
Non-current assets IERENEE 1,635,986 1,664,416 1,660,774 1,478,160 1,484,633
Current assets mENEE 12,804,657 12,270,108 10,559,387 8,600,332 5,384,543
Current liabilities mEaE 10,521,672 9,592,913 7,794,337 5,783,105 5,652,710
Net current assets/(liabilities) RENEE
(BfRE)=ZE 2,282,985 2,677,195 2,765,050 2,817,227 (268,167)
Total assets less BB
current liabilities RBAaG 3,918,971 4,341,611 4,425,824 4,295,387 1,216,466
Non-current liabilities ERHAG 130,697 234,875 230,612 275,340 349,788
NET ASSETS BEE 3,788,274 4,106,736 4,195,212 4,020,047 866,678
Capital and reserves BERNEE
Share capital R& A 519,723 519,723 519,723 519,723 1
Reserves B 3,425,653 3,781,681 3,790,962 3,553,562 898,148
Total equity attributable to Vi N/NEE] )y g
equity shareholders MG R
of the Company 3,945,376 4,301,404 4,310,685 4,073,285 898,149
Non-controlling interests etk (157,102) (194,668) (115,473) (53,238) (31,471)
TOTAL EQUITY e 3,788,274 4,106,736 4,195,212 4,020,047 866,678

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2014



Technology Leads Markets, Services Create Value

MHEslEm®BE BKHAEMEIE



	Cover
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Financial Highlights
	Corporate Culture & Mission
	Chairman’s Statement
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Directors and Senior Management
	Corporate Governance Report
	Report of the Board of Directors
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
	Notes to the Financial Statements
	Five Year Financial Summary
	Back Cover


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Gray Gamma 2.2)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (Japan Color 2001 Coated)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.6
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo false
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo false
  /PreserveFlatness false
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings false
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Remove
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile (\265L)
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
    /CFangSongHK-Light
    /CFangSongHKS-Light
    /CGuLiHK-Bold
    /CGuLiHKS-Bold
    /CGuYinHK-Bold
    /CGuYinHKS-Bold
    /CHei2HK-Bold
    /CHei2HK-Xbold
    /CHei2HKS-Bold
    /CHei2HKS-Xbold
    /CHei3HK-Bold
    /CHei3HKS-Bold
    /CHeiHK-UltraBold
    /CHeiHKS-UltraBold
    /CJNgaiHK-Bold
    /CJNgaiHKS-Bold
    /CKanHK-Xbold
    /CKanHKS-Xbold
    /CNganKaiHK-Bold
    /CNganKaiHKS-Bold
    /CO2YuenHK-XboldOutline
    /CO2YuenHKS-XboldOutline
    /COYuenHK-Xbold
    /COYuenHK-XboldOutline
    /COYuenHKS-Xbold
    /COYuenHKS-XboldOutline
    /CPo3HK-Bold
    /CPo3HKS-Bold
    /CPoHK-Bold
    /CPoHKS-Bold
    /CSong3HK-Medium
    /CSong3HKS-Medium
    /CSuHK-Medium
    /CSuHKS-Medium
    /CWeiBeiHKS-Bold
    /CXLiHK-Medium
    /CXLiHKS-Medium
    /CXYaoHKS-Medium
    /CXingHK-Medium
    /CXingHKS-Medium
    /CXingKaiHK-Bold
    /CXingKaiHKS-Bold
    /CYuen2HKS-Light
    /CYuen2HKS-SemiBold
    /CYuen2HKS-Xbold
    /CYuenHK-SemiMedium
    /MBeiHK-Bold
    /MBitmapRoundHK-Light
    /MBitmapSquareHK-Light
    /MCuteHK-Light
    /MCuteHKS-Light
    /MDynastyHK-Xbold
    /MDynastyHKS-Xbold
    /MElleHK-Medium
    /MElleHKS-Medium
    /MGentleHK-Light
    /MGentleHKS-Light
    /MHGHagoromoTHK-Light
    /MHGHagoromoTHK-Medium
    /MHGKyokashotaiTHK-Light
    /MHGReithicTHK-Light
    /MHeiHK-Bold
    /MHeiHK-Light
    /MHeiHK-Medium
    /MHeiHK-Xbold
    /MHeiHKS-Bold
    /MHeiHKS-Light
    /MHeiHKS-Medium
    /MHeiHKS-Xbold
    /MKaiHK-Medium
    /MKaiHK-SemiBold
    /MKaiHKS-Medium
    /MKaiHKS-SemiBold
    /MLiHK-Bold
    /MLiHKS-Bold
    /MLingWaiFHK-Light
    /MLingWaiPHK-Light
    /MMarkerHK-Bold
    /MMarkerHKS-Bold
    /MNgaiHK-Bold
    /MNgaiHKS-Bold
    /MQingHuaHK-Xbold
    /MQingHuaHKS-Xbold
    /MSungHK-Bold
    /MSungHK-Light
    /MSungHK-Medium
    /MSungHK-Xbold
    /MSungHKS-Bold
    /MSungHKS-Light
    /MSungHKS-Medium
    /MSungHKS-Xbold
    /MWindyHK-Bold
    /MWindyHKS-Bold
    /MYoungHK-Medium
    /MYoungHK-Xbold
    /MYoungHKS-Medium
    /MYoungHKS-Xbold
    /MYuenHK-Light
    /MYuenHK-Medium
    /MYuenHK-SemiBold
    /MYuenHK-Xbold
    /MYuenHKS-Light
    /MYuenHKS-SemiBold
    /MYuenHKS-Xbold
    /MYuppyHK-Medium
    /MYuppyHKS-Medium
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages false
  /ColorImageMinResolution 100
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 200
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages false
  /GrayImageMinResolution 150
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 200
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages false
  /MonoImageMinResolution 300
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<
    /CHT <FEFF005b57fa65bc00200027006d006500640052006500730027005d00204f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc87a25e55986f793a3001901a904e96fb5b5090f54ef650b390014ee553ca57287db2969b7db28def4e0a767c5e03300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /BleedOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /ConvertColors /NoConversion
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /NA
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MarksOffset 6
      /MarksWeight 0.250000
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /NA
      /PageMarksFile /RomanDefault
      /PreserveEditing false
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
    <<
      /AllowImageBreaks true
      /AllowTableBreaks true
      /ExpandPage false
      /HonorBaseURL true
      /HonorRolloverEffect false
      /IgnoreHTMLPageBreaks false
      /IncludeHeaderFooter false
      /MarginOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetadataAuthor ()
      /MetadataKeywords ()
      /MetadataSubject ()
      /MetadataTitle ()
      /MetricPageSize [
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetricUnit /inch
      /MobileCompatible 0
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (GoLive)
        (8.0)
      ]
      /OpenZoomToHTMLFontSize false
      /PageOrientation /Portrait
      /RemoveBackground false
      /ShrinkContent true
      /TreatColorsAs /MainMonitorColors
      /UseEmbeddedProfiles false
      /UseHTMLTitleAsMetadata true
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


